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FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBEREERE

For the year ended 31 March

BE3AMALEE
% change
increase/
(decrease)
&, CEL)
% B8

Revenue (HKS'million) Wz (B E#oT) 110 346 (68.1%)
Gross profit (HKS'million) EN(HEETT) 40 175 (77.2%)
Operating loss (HKS'million) KEEE(EEFT) (179) (146) 22.6%
Per share R
Basic loss per share (HK cents) BFRYEARNEE CE) (35.83) (29.14) 23.0%
Diluted loss per share (HK cents) GRRESEEE OB ) (35.83) (29.14) 23.0%
Share price BB

— High (HKS) —=0ET) 1.31 143 (8.4%)

— Low (HKS) —KCET) 0.99 1.14 (13.29%)
Financial ratios ML =
Gross profit margin (%) EFIE (%) 36.2% 506% (144 ptE 22
Average inventory turnover (days) FHEEEES(H) 258 245 5.3%
Average trade receivables turnover FH KRR EAER(H)

(days) 71 41 73.2%
Average trade payables turnover FHREMNERREAER(A)

(days) 429 194 121.1%
Gearing ratio (%) BEAELE %

— Borrowing to total assets — EEHREE 107.8% 68.7%  39.1 ptE B

As at 31 March
M3H31H

% change

increase/
(decrease)
&, OmL)
% B8

Total equity (HKS'000)
Total assets (HKS'000)
Number of shares in issue (000)

fm@E (T/87T)
REE(TET)

EBRITROEME (TK)

(228,287)
529,089
716,190

37,203
734,639
716,190

(713.6%)
(28.0%)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEREN W R

The board of directors ("Board” and “Directors” respectively) of Vestate
Group Holdings Limited ("Company”) presents the audited consolidated
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, “Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2019 ("Year").

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the development and retailing of a
diversified range of footwear products under its own brands, namely,
ARTEMIS, COUBER.G, FORLERIA, A+A2, TRU-NARI, MY WALKER and WALACI,
through its self-managed retail shops (“Self-managed Shops”) and
concession points in department stores ("Concession Points”). The Group
possesses a sales network across the regions of the People’s Republic of
China ("PRC"), Hong Kong and Taiwan.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group operated a total of 12 Self-managed Shops
in Hong Kong and 69 Concession Points (61 in the PRC, 1 in Hong Kong
and 7 in Taiwan). During the Year, the Group had a net decrease of 13 Self-
managed Shops, 211 Concession Points and 1 Franchised Stores. The
following table summarizes the number and distribution of Self-managed
Shops, Concession Points and Franchised Stores (collectively, “Retail
Points”) in terms of geographical regions as at 31 March 2019 as
compared to last year.

BEEEERERAR(ARATDDEES(H
AETEEGIRIEE))EFRARE REM
BRAR(#BIAE®E])#HE2019F3A31H
FFE(RFE]) O BT EEE -

¥ ERE
AEEFBEXAFREEETELE(BE
EDRBERATEFHEES ([BrHEH D
B KEZTE B R EARTEMIS - COUBER. G *
FORLERIA * A+A2 ~ TRU-NARI * MY WALKER &
WALACIZ S TEEIEER - AEERPEAR
HMB([HPE)  BEREEMEEEEZH

EHRA

R2019F3 A31 B ARERBEEZES K12
A8 &5 - I8 69 R +F 6 & #h (61 ALY P
B 1R EERIEURGE) - RAFE -

REBEEEE TSN MFTEEER
D RIFRI3E 21 E k1 TR
20199 3 31 BiRMEmE| D 2 8 &5 - FRTiH
EHMEHCEER(RE I ZEH])) 248
oA F 7 e -

As at 31 March R3HA31H
2019 2018
Self- Self-
managed  Concession  Franchised managed  Concession Franchised
Region i Shops Points Stores Shops Points Stores Total
S S
RAHER  KEES BEE HITHEHR  GEER @zt
The PRC M
Beijing I - 23 - 23 3 62 - 65
Eastern China E3 - 1 - 1 - 57 - 57
Southern China i) - - - - 1 29 - 30
Western China B3 - 3 - 3 - 3 - 33
Central China #Eh - 17 - 17 - 49 - 49
Northern China ESl - 7 - 7 - 40 1 4
Sub-total N - 61 - 61 4 270 1 275
Hong Kong &k 12 1 - 13 21 2 - 3
Taiwan s - 7 - 7 - 8 - 8
Total @t 12 69 - 81 25 280 1 306

Annual Report 2018/2019 2018/2019 £ 4 R
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEREN W R

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

For the Year, the Group recorded a decrease of 68.1% in its consolidated
revenue to approximately HK$110 million (2018: HK$346 million). Revenue
from the PRC, Hong Kong and Taiwan markets decreased by 78.9%, 41.9%
and 13.8% respectively. The overall same store sales of the Group dropped
by approximately 34.9% and the overall gross profit margin of the Group
decreased by 14.4 percentage points to 36.2%. The Group’s overall
operating expenses as a percentage of turnover increased by 68.0
percentage points. Loss attributable to the equity holders was
approximately HK$257 million (2018: HK$209 million). Loss per share
amounted to approximately HK$35.83 cents (2018: HK$29.14 cents).

The three geographical market segments, namely the PRC, Hong Kong and
Taiwan accounted for 48%, 46% and 6% of the Group's total revenue
respectively (2018:72%, 26% and 2%).

Various measures on inventory management were taken during the Year in
order to clear excessive stocks and maintain a healthy inventory level. As at
31 March 2019, the Group's inventory balance (net) was HKS3 million,
down 97.4% from HK$97 million as at 31 March 2018.

The PRC

During the Year, the revenue generated in the PRC was approximately
HKS$53 million (2018: HK$251 million), representing a decrease of 78.9% as
compared to the previous year. The operation in PRC incurred a loss of
HK$62 million for the Year (2018: HK$54 million).

Same store sales dropped by approximately 53.9% and operating deficit to
revenue ratio increased by 96.3 percentage points as compared to last
year.

Hong Kong

During the Year, the revenue generated in Hong Kong was approximately
HKS51 million (2018: HK$88 million), representing a decrease of 41.9% as
compared to the previous year. The operating loss in Hong Kong
decreased by HKS9 million, representing an decrease of 41.6% as
compared to last year. Same store sales dropped by approximately 25.2%
while operating deficit to revenue ratio increased by 0.1 percentage points
to 24.6% as compared to last year.

Vestate Group Holdings Limited BEREBZEEKRAER QA

¥KREEERREE

RAFE  AEBZEAKRERL68.1%EH
MOBEBETT(20184F : 346 BB L) ° 2K AE
FE-FERGEMBZREZD A TR
78.9% ~ 41.9% K 13.8% o ANE B 2 B[R /5
SHE TRAA34.9% @ MALEE 2 BEEEF| KL
TE14 4B DEE36.2% o NEFE 2 ZEFEK
EEREEEBENL R FFA68.0MEE DR -
HHEAEEBIBNE2TEEEL(20184F ¢
209B &%) - BAREEL A35.83/81U(2018
£ :29.14840) -

FE - FELRGE=(AETISD MG RER
4 U8 25 9 Bl B48% - 46% K 6% (2018 4F -
72% ~ 26% KX.2%) °

RAFE  AEBERAZEFTEEEREE - U
BEBEHFETHFRETFTEKTE - %2019
FIAMNB  AEBZFEFELEHBIEEE
TT 0 WN2018E3 A3 B 29T BE B T MK
97.4% o

R

RAFEE  RAFPBEZWHFZLHASSEEET
(2018 F " 251EH BB L) BREF T B
78.9% c RAFE » B ZEEEAEEG2H
BAIIL(20184F : 54FEETT) °

HEFLE - FIEHE TBKA53.9%  MEE
R 2 LR A E 7T 96.3E B 2 # o

&8

RAFE REEBZWEHNASIBEEST
(2018F :88EHB B B L) B®REF T B
41.9% - BEBEZEEBFBRLIBERBTT &
EFRADA41.6% ° EBEFLLE - BIEHE B
#925.2% + MmAL & E 18 B a2 tE R RIE hn0.1
BB DB E24.6% °



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEREN W R

Taiwan

During the Year, the revenue generated in Taiwan was approximately HKS6
million (2018: HKS7 million), representing a decrease of 13.8% as compared
to the last year. The operating loss in Taiwan decreased by HK$0.3 million,
representing a decrease of 33.7% as compared to last year. Same store
sales decreased by approximately 3% while operating deficit to revenue
ratio decreased by 2.5 percentage points to 8.4% as compared to last year.

Outlook

Since a large number of market players in the retailing markets and the
competition in these markets will further intensify which would manifest in
the form of price concession, leading to additional pressure on the Group's
profit margin. To enhance the Group's competitiveness and maintain the
scale of operation in these markets, the Group is required to allocate
substantial resources on a number of aspects including (i) development of
the Group's product portfolio and (ii) increasing the Group’s brand'’s
awareness by adopting a more aggressive marketing and advertising
strategy.

Looking ahead, Sino-US trade disputes and China’s increasingly complex
business environment will face more difficulties and challenges. The Group
will scaled down the operation of the retail business due to (i) the decline
in revenue and the loss-making performance of footwear retailing to the
Group and (ii) the unfavourable business environment of footwear
retailing, apply resources to existing businesses and actively explore the
new businesses to maintain business stability while diversifying industry
risks.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Financial Position

The Group financed its operations with internal funding, issuing the bonds
and the standby evolving loan facilities by the independent third party and
China Investment S.p.A,, a company with 70% interest owned by Ms. CAl
Jiaying, the Director of the Company.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had cash and cash equivalents amounting
to HK$1.8 million (2018: HKS54 million). The Group has no outstanding
bank borrowings (2018: HKS5 million). Current and non-current convertible
bonds were approximately HK$ 142 million and HK$28 million respectively.
As at 31 March 2019, the current ratio stood at 0.7 times (2018: 3.3 times)
and the gearing ratio stood at 107.8% (2018: 68.7%).
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BEZKEEBRV0IEEBT BEFE L
BK33.7% o MEAFLLE - F/EHE TKLI3%
B mE R 2 b RBI TR 2588 5 2
E8.4% o

R

HREEMHSEAEMSLHEFUAEER
EATEMS  FZMENEFBE—2MN
B - e S EFEEEKEINES - B
AAREBERNBRF O REFZEMSENEER
B AEEERETHFASRAEER B
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THEMESRE AR AEENRENEE -
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ERIFEEAREERE Z RS - AR
(i) AN SR B AR D N B T B 1R R 3R K (i)
HETEXNTNEHRE  AEEKHERT
EEBNEE  BERRMNBERES  XE
BRI EGARREBIRE - ABOBRITE
[\ o

B 7 [

B AR

REENAFES « BITEFURBLE=F
% China Investment S.p.A. (AR 718 E& 1+
BLALHET0%#ER 2 AF) iRt ERER
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEREN W R

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had no banking facilities (2018: Nil) and no
charge on its assets. The Group also had no bank loans and bank
guarantees as at 31 March 2019 (2018: HKS5 million).

During the Year, inventory turnover days increased to approximately 258
days (2018: 245 days). As at 31 March 2019, inventory amounted to
approximately HK$3 million (2018: HK$97 million).

Capital Expenditure

During the Year, the Group’s capital expenditure amounted to HKS$0.6
million (2018: HK$16 million), comprising principally the purchase of
leasehold improvements, computer equipment and computer software.

Foreign Exchange Management

The Group operates principally in the PRC and Hong Kong and its
transactions are mainly denominated in Renminbi or Hong Kong dollars.
The Group does not expect any significant foreign currency risk and did
not enter into any forward contract to hedge its foreign exchange risk
during the Year.

Convertible Bonds

(@)  The Company issued the convertible bonds to subscriber in principal
amount of HK$30,000,000 on 5 July 2016 (“First Bonds"). The First
Bonds may be converted into 16,574,585 new Shares at a conversion
price of HK$1.81 per share and the bonds bear coupon interest at
the rate of 6% per annum and due 2020. The net proceeds from the
First Bonds had been fully utilized. Pursuant to the terms of the First
Bonds contain specific performance obligations imposed on Mr. ZHU
Xiaojun (“Mr. Zhu"), an executive Director, the chairman of the Board
and a controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr. Zhu is required (i)
in his personal capacity or through any entity or company controlled
by him, to hold at least 50% of the issued share capital of the
Company; and (ii) to remain as an executive Director. Any non-
compliance with the aforesaid specific performance obligation will
constitute an event of default and upon the bondholder giving a
notice to the Company, the bonds will immediately become due
and payable in accordance with the terms and conditions of the First
Bonds.

Vestate Group Holdings Limited BEREBZEEKRAER QA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE W& D

The Company also issued the convertible bonds to subscriber in
principal amount of HK$150,000,000 on 24 August 2016 (“Second
Bonds"). The Second Bonds may be converted into 81,300,813 new
Shares at a conversion price of HK$1.845 per share and the bonds
bear coupon interest at the rate of 10.5% per annum and due 2019.
The net proceeds from the Second Bonds were approximately
HK$146,900,000. As at 31 March 2018, the Company had utilized the
net proceeds of approximately HK$127,956,000 and had unutilized
the net proceeds of approximately HK$18,944,000. Due to the "One
Belt, One Road” ("OBOR") project has been completed and had no
potential acquisition to be invested in the near future. The Company
resolved to reallocate the unutilized net proceeds, originally
allocated for the development of the OBOR related business and
other future acquisitions, to the general working capital of the Group
so as to enhance the efficiency of the deployment of the net
proceeds. During the Year, the net proceeds had been utilized as
follows:

1. Interest payment of the First Bonds and Second Bonds 1.

2. Payment of salary and rental expenses for the operation 2.
of the existing businesses of the Group

() ARDFIRFR20164F8 A 24 B AR A 2%
77 7K 4 58 /5 150,000,000 7 7T 2 7] ¥ j% (&
F(E-MESR]) - FoHEHFTLHE
B T AR 1.845% T #1312 /581,300813 8
IR - BHEMEFRERI0SEZEE -
W 2019F Rl o BE_MEH ZIBER
THSH 58 4 /4 146,900,000 78 7T © A 2018 4F 3
A318 - NABIEEAEHRIBEFEL
127,956,000 7T + M AR AF F T 13 5 8%
RE#) /418,944,000 7T c AR [ —H—§%
([—&—&IBEEDTAREHALE
BEREZBEWRBEE  AQ2FER
RERESHEAEERAR T K2
EHEREMAKRRBIBEEIE 2 R EAFME
RIBFE ETORBEAER KL
BEES  RAERMBRIBFE X
o RAFE  FISHREFEDIEUT
FREM -

TE—HEERE . HKS$6,556,00005 7T
&EH 2 F B

X EREEIRAER HKS12,388,00078 7T
ZEHeMEeRY

Total net proceeds utilised

EEAMSFIRFRH 2 A8

HK$18,944,00078 7T

As at 31 March 2019, the net proceeds of the Second Bonds had
been fully utilized. During the Year, no Share was issued by the
Company upon the subscriber exercise of their conversion rights of
the bonds.

Corporate Bond

On 8 May 2017, the Company issued the bonds to the investor in principal
amount of HK$350,000,000 at interest rate of 12% per annum for the first
year and 13% per annum for the second year and due 2019 (“Bonds”).
Pursuant to the terms of the Bonds, a specific performance obligation is
imposed on Mr. Zhu, that during the term of the Bonds, Mr. Zhu, together
with parties acting in concert with him, should own directly or indirectly
more than 50% of the voting shares of the Company. Any breach of the
aforesaid specific performance obligation may constitute a breach under
the subscription agreement, pursuant to which the investor is entitled to
redeem the Bonds immediately in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the Bonds.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEREN W R

Pledge of Assets
As at 31 March 2019, the Group had no pledge of assets. (2018: Nil).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had no material contingent liabilities or
off-balance sheet obligations (2018: Nil).

GROUP STRUCTURE

During the Year, there was no material change in the corporate structure
of the Group.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had a total of 261 employees (2018: 1,169
employees) and the total staff cost for the Year was HK$87 million (2018:
HKS$156 million), representing 78.6% of the Group's total revenue. The
Group offers competitive remuneration packages to its employees,
including mandatory retirement funds, insurance, medical coverage and
purchase discounts. In addition, incentive share options and performance-
based discretionary bonus on an annual basis may be granted to
employees subject to the Group’s and individual performance. The Group
also provides regular trainings and workshops to its frontline and back
office staff on sales techniques, product knowledge and team building.

MAJOR AND CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 17 June 2017, the Company entered into the preliminary agreement
with the vendor, a company incorporated in ltaly ("Vendor”), in relation to
the Company will acquire the properties located at Milan, Italy from the
Vendor (“Properties”) for a purchase price of Euro 34,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$297,160,000) (“Acquisition”). The Vendor and the
Company will further enter into the notarial deed of purchase, which is
within six months after completion of the construction of the Properties.
The construction of the Properties commenced in June 2017 and the
Properties are currently under construction and the construction is
expected to be completed in end of September 2019.

The Company currently has decided not to proceed with the acquisition of
the Milan Properties, which is still under construction. The Company
considers it can either (i) obtain full refund of the deposit in accordance
with the Refund Agreement, or (ii) alternatively, to identify a potential
buyer to acquire the estate units under the Acquisition Agreement at a
premium subject to the mutual consent of the parties to the Refund
Agreement to terminate the Refund Agreement.

Vestate Group Holdings Limited BEREBZEEKRAER QA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEREN W R

The Vendor is beneficially owned as to 70% by Ms. CAl Jiaying, an executive
Director, and hence the Vendor is a connected person of the Company.
The Acquisition constitutes a connected transaction on the part of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of the Acquisition
are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 17 June 2017 and
the circular dated 31 October 2017.

DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED
COMPANIES

(@)  On 2 July 2018, Genius Earn Investments Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group (“Vendor”), entered into the disposal
agreement between with the purchaser in relation to the disposal of
49% of the issued share capital of Ascent Pride Investment Limited
("Target Company”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group
("Disposal Agreement”), at the consideration of HK$50,000,000
("“Disposal”). The Target Company owned the companies
established in the PRC principally engaged in development and
retailing of footwear products in the PRC. The Vendor and the
purchaser shall use its best endeavours to procure the fulfillment of
the conditions set out in the Disposal Agreement. If the said
conditions have not been satisfied on or before the date falling six
months after the date of the Disposal Agreement, or such later date
as the Vendor and the purchaser may agree in writing (‘Long Stop
Date"), the Disposal Agreement shall cease and determine and
thereafter neither party shall have any obligations and liabilities
towards each other hereunder save for any antecedent breaches of
the terms of the Disposal Agreement. On 2 January 2019 and 2 July
2019, the Vendor and the Purchaser entered into the extension
letters to extend the Long Stop Date to on or before 31 October
2019 due to additional time is required to arrange for the signing of
the Assignment Deed and the Deed of Novation. Upon completion
of the Disposal, the Group will remain to have 51% interests in the
Target Company. Pursuant to Rule 14.44 of the Listing Rules, a
written shareholder’s approval for the Disposal Agreement has been
obtained from the controlling Shareholder, in lieu of holding a
general meeting of the Company. Details of the Disposal are set out
in the announcements of the Company dated 6 July 2018 and 2
January 2019 and the circular dated 17 August 2018. As at the date
of this report, this transaction has not completed.

(b)  As disclosed in the annual report of last year, the Group signed the
MOU with potential buyer to sell the financial services business
("Possible Disposal’). On 1 November 2018, the Company sell 66%
of issued share capital of the Carlyon Investment Holdings Limited
("CIH"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, to two potential
buyers at the total consideration of HK$5,000,000. Upon completion
of the Possible Disposal, the Group will remain to have 34% interests
in the CIH. The Group currently has no intention to sell out the
remaining portion of the financial services business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEREN W R

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

There are various risks and uncertainties including business risks, capital
risks and financial risks that may have different levels of impact on the
Group's financial performance, operations, business as well as future
prospects. The financial risk and capital risk are set out in Note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements. Besides, the following are the key risks
and uncertainties identified by the Group. There may be other risks and
uncertainties in addition to those shown below which are not known to
the Group or which may not be material now but could turn out to be
material in the future.

() Increase in rental and concession fees;

(i) Reliance on key management personnel;

(i) Misjudgement of fashion trends or changes in consumers’ demand
or failure to respond to such changes in a timely manner;

(iv)  Competition in footwear market in the PRC and Hong Kong; and

(v)  Economic downturn in the PRC and Hong Kong.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SRERBE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to establishing and maintaining good corporate
governance practices within the Group to have better transparency and
protection of shareholders’ interest in general. We believe that a well-
balanced corporate governance structure will definitely enable better
management of its business risks and thereby ensure the Group is
operated in the best interests of its shareholders and other stakeholders.

The Board as a whole is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the “Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report” ("CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ("Stock
Exchange”). These functions included:

to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

to review and monitor the Company'’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and

to review the Company's compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Currently, there are three board committees under the Board, namely
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee.
All these committees perform their distinct roles in accordance with their
respective terms of reference which have been posted on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange. These committees report directly
to the Board on their works and make recommendations on matter where
appropriate.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Company has complied with all applicable code provisions set out in
the CG Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2019 (“Year”), except
that:

(@)  According to code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the
chairman and the chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Throughout the
Year, Mr. ZHU Xiaojun (“Mr. Zhu") is the Chairman of the Board and
is responsible for providing leadership and ensuring effective
running of the Board. The duties of the chief executive are
undertaken and performed by the Chairman of the Board, thus Mr.
Zhu also responsible for the Group’s day-to-day operations and
implementation of the Group's strategies and is assisted by a
management team, comprising executive Directors, general
managers and department heads of the Group, with authority and
responsibility for developing and exercising both operational and
non-operational duties. Despite a part of responsibility of chief
executive is vested in Mr. Zhu, in which all major decisions are made
in consultation with the other Board members and the senior
management of the Company. The Board believes that there is
sufficient balance of power and the current arrangement maintains a
strong management position of the Company. This was in deviation
from A.2.1 of the CG Code.

(b)  According to Rule 3.10(1) and 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the Board is
required at least three independent non-executive Directors and the
audit committee of the Board ("Audit Committee”) must comprise
a minimum of three members. Following the resignation of Mr.
LEUNG Man Ho as the independent non-executive Director and
ceased to the member of both Audit Committee, the remuneration
committee of the Board ("Remuneration Committee”) and the
nomination committee of the Board ("Nomination Committee”)
with effect from 29 September 2018, the Board has two independent
non-executive Directors and the Audit Committee comprises only
two members. This was in deviation from Rules 3.10(1) and 3.21 of
the Listing Rules.

However, following the appointment of Mr. YU Lei as an
independent non-executive Director and a member of each of the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee with effect from 28 December 2018, the Company has
three independent non-executive Directors and the Audit
Committee comprises three members in compliance with the
requirements under Rules 3.10(1) and 3.21 of the Listing Rules.
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THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for setting the Group's directions, strategies and
policies, approval of annual budgets and business plans, overseeing and
reviewing the effectiveness of risk management and internal control
systems, formulating the corporate governance policy and supervising a
management team comprising executive Directors, general managers and
department heads of the Group. The Board reserves the right to decide all
policy matters and material transactions of the Group.

Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises four executive Directors
and three independent non-executive Directors ("INED”), in compliance
with the minimum number of INEDs required under Rule 3.10(1) of the
Listing Rule. Details of the Board composition are as follow:

Board of Directors

Executive Director
Mr. ZHU Xiaojun (Chairman)

Membership of Board Committee(s)
Member of Remuneration Committee
Member of Nomination Committee

Mr. KANG Jianming —

Ms. CAl Jiaying —

Mr. YIN Wansun —

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. ZHAO Hong Chairman of Audit Committee
Chairman of Remuneration Committee
Chairman of Nomination Committee
Member of Audit Committee

Member of Remuneration Committee

(appointed on 29 September 2018)

Mr. CHAU Wai Hing

Member of Nomination Committee

Mr. YU LeijNote Member of Audit Committee
Member of Remuneration Committee
Member of Nomination Committee
Note:

Mr. YU Lei appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director and a member of
each of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee with effect from 28 December 2018.
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The Board believes that the balance between executive Directors and
INEDs is reasonable and adequate to provide sufficient checks and
balances that safeguard the interests of shareholders and the Group. The
INEDs provide the Group with diversified expertise and experience. Their
views and participation bring independent judgment and advice on issues
relating to the Group's strategies, performances, conflicts of interests of all
shareholders are taken into account. The number of INEDs has been no
less than one-third of the number of the Board members and at least one
of whom possesses the appropriate professional accounting qualification
and related financial management expertise as required under the Listing
Rules.

Appointment and Re-election of Director

In accordance with the article of association of the Company (“Articles”),
the Board shall have the power from time to time to appoint any person as
a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to
the existing Board. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a causal
vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of the Company
after his appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting. Any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall
hold office only until the next following annual general meeting ("AGM")
and shall then be eligible for re-election. At each AGM, one-third of the
Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation and all
Directors are subject to retirement at least once every three years.

The Chairman and Chief Executive

The CG Code provides that the roles of the chairman and the chief
executive should be separate and performed by different individuals.
During the Year and up to the date of this report, as explained in the
section headed “Corporate Governance Practices” on page 14 of this
report, Mr. ZHU Xiaojun assumed the roles of the chairman and the chief
executive of the Company simultaneously.

Independent Non-executive Director

All INEDs are appointed for a specific term and are subject to retirement by
rotation. No INED has served the Company for more than 9 years. Each of
the INEDs has made an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considered that all INEDs are
independent.
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Company Secretary

The company secretary reports to the chairman and the senior
management. All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary to ensure that Board procedures, and all applicable
laws are followed. During the Year, the company secretary has complied
with the relevant professional training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.

Training and Professional Development

The Company encourages all Directors to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. The training records for the Year had been provided to the
company secretary by all Directors of the Company. A summary of trainings
received by the Directors for the Year is shown as below:

Name of Directors

NEWE
REAMEREIFERSREEABER 285
ERERARME 2B R MR - AREREST
EXgRFMIEERER - NAFE - 1A
WMECHA LMARRNEI0BHE T ZHEEE
FHIMRE

BN ERER
ARBEBEREEFDEBEFERR - NG
ERERNF BRI BRESHES
SELABERAEZER - ARREBEEC
AARWEREAFRE 2HEIIRE A FEE
SRXBIZHMBIIRAT -

Type of training

5318

Mr. ZHU Xiaojun (Chairman) RKEELRE(FE) B
Mr. KANG Jianming EREERASEAE B
Ms. CAl Jiaying BEBZT B
Mr. YIN Wansun RRZBF ST B
Ms. ZHAO Hong i1/ G B
Mr. CHAU Wai Hing Bl e B
Mr. YU Lei AL B

Notes: BitsE

A: attending briefing sessions and/or seminars A HEBRER LG

B: reading seminar materials and updates relating to the latest development of B IR SR URAMETRALHM

the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements

Directors and Officers Liability Insurance

Appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance has been arranged for
the Directors and officers of the Company for indemnifying their liabilities
arising out of corporate activities. The insurance coverage of directors’ and
officers’ liability is reviewed on an annual basis.
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BOARD MEETINGS

The Board conducts meetings on a regular basis and on an ad hoc basis of
at least four times a year to discuss the Group's business strategies as well
as the operation and financial performance of the Group, and to review
and approve the Group's annual and interim results. The Board members
are served with notices of at least 14 days and provided with all agendas
and adequate information for their review at least 3 days prior to the
meetings. After the Board meetings, draft minutes are circulated to all
Directors for comments before confirmation and sign-off. Minutes of Board
meetings and meetings of board committees are kept by the company
secretary and are available for inspection by any Director at any reasonable
time on reasonable notice. During the year, four Board meetings were
held.

All Directors are adequately briefed on updates on amendments to or
latest developments of the Listing Rules and other applicable laws, rules
and regulations concerning their obligations as Directors and good
corporate governance practices. They were also provided with the Group's
monthly management updates which give a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group's performance, financial position and prospects
to enable the Board and each Director to discharge their duties.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Currently, the Audit Committee comprises three members, all INEDs,
namely, Ms. ZHAO Hong (Chairman), Mr. CHAU Wai Hing and Mr. YU Lei
(appointed on 28 December 2018). During the Year, Mr. LEUNG Man Ho
("“Mr. Leung") resigned as INED and ceased as a member of the Audit
Committee effective from 29 September 2018 and Mr. YU Lei was
appointed by the Board as INED and as a member of Audit Committee
effective from 28 December 2018 in replacement of Mr. Leung. No
member of the Audit Committee was a former partner of the Company’s
existing auditing firm. The chairman of the Audit Committee possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications in accountancy and experience in
financial matters.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to review the Group's financial
reporting system, risk management and internal control procedures, to
review the Group’s financial information, to oversee relationship with the
Group’s external auditors and make relevant recommendations to the
Board. The Audit Committee held two meetings during the Year and its
works performed include reviewing the adopted accounting principles
and practices, the annual and interim consolidated financial results and
reports, reviewing external auditors’ audit plan, terms of engagement and
recommended auditors’ fees for the Board's approval, reviewing the
management letters and reports issued by the external auditors and
reviewing the internal audit review reports for assessing effectiveness of
internal control systems of the Group.
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The Audit Committee was provided with sufficient resources to discharge
its duties and may seek independent professional advice at the Company’s
expense, where necessary.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Currently, the Nomination Committee comprises four members, the
majority of the members of the Nomination Committee are INEDs, namely,
Ms. ZHAO Hong (Chairman), Mr. ZHU Xiaojun, Mr. CHAU Wai Hing and Mr.
YU Lei ("Mr. Yu") (@appointed on 28 December 2018). During the Year, Mr.
LEUNG Man Ho resigned as INED and ceased as a member of the
Nomination Committee effective from 29 September 2018. In replacement
of Mr. Leung, the Board appointed Mr. Yu as INED and as a member of
Nomination Committee effective from 28 December 2018.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the size,
structure and composition of the Board and to make recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategies, to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
members of the Board and make recommendations to the Board on
selection of individuals for directorships, to assess the independence of
INEDs and to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession plan for Directors, in particular
the Chairman and chief executive officer. The Nomination Committee was
provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and may seek
independent professional advice at the Company’s expense, where
necessary.

The Board adopted the board diversity policy with the primary objective of
enhancing the effectiveness of the Board and its corporate governance
standard. All Board appointments are based on merits, and have paid due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board in selecting candidates.
Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates may bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the Year and had
reviewed the progress of implementation of the board diversity policy and
the structure, size and composition of the Board including the directors’
skills, knowledge and experience and had made recommendations to the
Board on the appointment of the individuals as the Director of the
Company.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Currently, the Remuneration Committee comprises four members, the
majority of the members of the Remuneration Committee are INEDs,
namely, Ms. ZHAO Hong (Chairman), Mr. ZHU Xiaojun, Mr. CHAU Wai Hing
(appointed on 29 September 2018) and Mr. YU Lei (appointed on 28
December 2018). During the Year, Mr. LEUNG Man Ho resigned as INED
and ceased as a member of Remuneration Committee effective from 29
September 2018 and Mr. YU Lei was appointed by the Board as INED and
as a member of the Remuneration Committee effective from 28 December
2018 in replacement of Mr. Leung.

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for
all Directors’ and senior management remuneration and on the
establishment of formal and transparent procedures for developing
remuneration policy, to review and approve the management'’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives, to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of Executive Directors and senior management, to make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration of INEDs and to
ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in deciding his
own remuneration. The Remuneration Committee was provided with
sufficient resources to discharge its duties and may seek independent
professional advice at the Company’'s expense, where necessary.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the Year and

discussed the remuneration package for certain Directors as well as other
remuneration related matters.
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DIRECTOR’S ATTENDANCE RECORDS AT MEETINGS EENEBRZHELHE
The attendance of each Director at the Board Meeting, Audit Committee T%%ﬁﬁ'J$¢FR§$EA§$AAE§ %ﬁ%
Meeting, Nomination Committee Meeting, Remuneration Committee B&&:% * 124 ié‘é\.E FHEEee:

RBRAG 2 HERR

Meeting and shareholder's meeting during the Year are set out below:

Attendance/Number of meetings held
for the year ended 31 March 2019
BE2019F3 31 BLFELE BTz 888E

Audit  Nomination Remuneration
Board Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting 2018 AGM
EREEE REZEE FHZEES 20185
Ezeel =f o g% BRAEXE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. ZHU Xiaojun REBEE

(Chairman of the Board and (EES TR REH

Member of the Remuneration and RigtZEEHE)

Nomination Committees) 4/4 - 22 2/2 11
Mr. KANG Jianming BEBLLE 3/4 - - - 171
Ms. CAl Jiaying BERLT 4/4 - - - 11
Mr. YIN Wansun Bk EE 4/4 - - - 1/1
Independent Non-executive BUHHTEE

Directors
Ms. ZHAO Hong LN

(Chairman of the Audit, Nomination (Bl RERHHZEETE)
and Remuneration Committee) 4/4 212 22 2/2 1/1
Mr. CHAU Wai Hing"o' BB A A

(Member of the Audit, Nomination

(B EERHMZEBHE)

and Remuneration Committees) 4/4 212 22 - 11
Mr. LEUNG Man Ho''o2 DY F A

(Member of the Audit, Nomination (Ft  RRERFMNEREHE)

and Remuneration Committee) 2/2 11 212 2/2 1/1
Mr. YU Leitete3 REL LMD

(Member of the Audit, Nomination (B BERFHNEEECHKE)

and Remuneration Committee) /1 - - - -
Notes: PisE
1. Mr.CHAU Wai Hing appointed as a member of Remuneration Committeeon 1.  EABEEFEZERAFTMEZESKNE - B

29 September 2018; 201849 A 29 HABAER ¢

2. Mr. LEUNG Man Ho resigned as an independent non-executive Director and 2.~ RN REEBFEBEUIFNTER R IBHEE

EZEEE REZESRFWNZESRAE
2B B2018F9 A2 BAM K

ceased as a member of each of Audit Committee, Nomination Committee
and Remuneration Committee on 29 September 2018; and

3. Mr. YU Lei appointed as an independent non-executive Director and a 3. ?EE?Ei?f%;{fﬁrﬁiﬁﬁﬂﬁ§$&%ﬁ§

member of each of Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and B2 REZESRFHEESEEZKE
Remuneration Committee on 28 December 2018. H20184F 12 A28 HABAERL ©
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DIRECTORS’ AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers” contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
("Model Code") as its code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiries with all Directors, they have
confirmed their compliance with the Model Code throughout the Year. On
June 2013, the Company has adopted written guidelines on terms no less
exacting than the Model Code for relevant employees in respect of the
dealings in the Company’s securities.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditor subject to endorsement by
the Board and final approval and authorization by the shareholders of the
Company in general meetings. During the Year, BDO Limited has resigned
as external auditor with effect from 24 May 2019 and the Board has
appointed Elite Partners CPA Limited as external auditor with effect from 5
June 2019 to perform the following services and their respective fees
charged are set out as follows:

EERHERREETZRERS

ARBE BN ET R A SR FrEl e [ B
TABEFETES R HHREST] ([RESF
RID - ERERRESFETESFR I ZITRT
Al - RAZRBERFLRHEERR  RECDHE
RRRNEFE—BHBTIRETH - 1R20135F6H -
ARBCHENEAEBEREEARRESE
HZEMIES Bl GERAE T LBEEFAE
e

SNEERXEIEM
ENZESREEEIINEZBMZ2ET EF
ZARER  HAESESS HERAKAR
AR IR AR S _EE R SR AR IR o AR
FE BEUGEEXSHANEEMERAFE
BT AN BIAD - B 201955 A24 HAEAW
MEEEEZARTEESTMELMERA
A AINERZERD - B2019F 6 ASB AR
HERET TR RAEERHSMT

Type of Services li& % Eicl 2019 2018
HKS$’000 HKS$'000

FET FEIT

Audit services EANZ RIS 1,200 1,650
Non-audit services IEEAZIRTS - 44
Total #et 1,200 1,694

INTERNAL AUDITOR

The Company has an independent internal audit team, which plays a major
role in providing objective assurance to the Board that a sound and
effective risk management and internal control system is in place and
operated by the management. The head of the internal audit department
directly reports to the Audit Committee on risk management and audit
matters. The annual audit works plan covered the business activities and
process of the Group's core operating business. Moreover, ad hoc reviews
will be performed on specific areas of concern identified by the Audit
Committee and the management from time to time.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the ultimate responsibility for the Group's risk management
and internal control system, while the management ensures the sufficient
and effective operational controls over the key business process are
properly implemented with regular review and update. Review the internal
controls of the Group mainly covering financial, operational and
compliance controls, as well as risk management functions. The risk
management and internal control system are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The implementation of the Group’s risk management evaluation was
assisted by the internal audit department so that the Group could ensure
new and emerging risk relevant to the Group's operation are promptly
identified by management, assess the adequacy of action plans to manage
these risks and monitor and evaluate the effectiveness of the action plans.
The Audit Committee reviews regularly the Group’s risk management
systems.

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's risk management
and internal control system through the Audit Committee. To maintain a
sound and effective system of internal control and safeguard our
shareholders’ investment and the Group's assets at all times, the Group has
an independent audit team to review and monitor all critical aspects of the
Group's activities and its internal control. During the Year, the Board had
reviewed the findings of the internal control review and evaluation of risk
level of the Group could take and effectiveness of risk management
measures performed by the internal auditors and external auditors
together with the Audit Committee and, after discussion with the
management and external auditors, was satisfied that the Group's internal
control system and assessment of risk management was sound and
adequate for the Year. The Board would continue to review and improve
the Group's risk management and internal control system, taking into
account the prevailing regulatory requirements, business development
needs and the interests of shareholders.

The Board also reviews annually the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience of the Group's accounting and financial
reporting function, and their training programmes and budget.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy on November 2018, where
the Company would, where the situation allows, declare dividends to
shareholders every year and may declare special dividends from time to
time. In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining the
dividend amount, the Board will take into consideration the Group’s
distributable profits generated during the year, the financial situation and
liquidity of the Group, the investment needs and the retained profits that
should be set aside for future development purposes. While sharing the
profit with shareholders, the Company will also maintain sufficient reserves
to meet its liabilities and to ensure the implementation of the Group's
strategy for future development. The payment of dividend is also subject
to any restrictions under the laws of Cayman Islands, the laws of Hong
Kong and the articles of association of the Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board has established a shareholders’ communication policy setting
out the channels by which information is communicated with its
shareholders. The Company’s corporate communications includes among
other things, announcements, financial reports, circulars and other
corporate communications which are disseminated through its website at
www.vestategroup.com and the website of the Stock Exchange in
compliance with the disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules.

The Company regards the AGM as a platform to provide an important
opportunity for direct communication between the Board and the
Company's shareholders. All Directors will make an effort to attend general
meetings. The chairman of the AGM proposes separate resolution for each
issue and invites presence of chairman of each of the Board Committees
for answering questions at the AGM. External auditor also attends the AGM
to answer questions about the conduct of audit, the preparation and
content of auditors’ report and the confirmation of auditor's
independence. The notice of AGM and related papers are distributed to
shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the AGM. At the AGM,
the Chairman ensures that detailed procedures for conducting a poll are
explained.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, any one or more shareholders of the
Company holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held
within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionist(s) may convene such meeting, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall
be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there had been no significant change in the Company's
constitutional documents.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Group in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This is the third Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG") Report (the
"ESG Report’) issued by Vestate Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group” or “We").

This report has been prepared with reference to the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

SCOPE OF REPORTING

The Group is principally engaged in the development and retailing of a
diversified range of footwear products under its own brands through its
self-managed retail shops, concession points in department stores and
franchised stores. The Group has an extensive sales network spanning
across the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"), Hong Kong and Taiwan.

In addition to the continuous assessment of the scope of the Group's
existing footwear sales business in the report of the Year, the Group has
also assessed the newer businesses as appropriate to gradually increase
the scope of disclosures based on their significance to the Group.

Unless otherwise stated, the environmental data mainly cover the Group's
footwear sales business in Hong Kong and PRC. The data on operating
points in Taiwan are excluded due to their insignificant impact on the
environment.

REPORTING PERIOD
The reporting period covers 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019 (the “Year”).

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND ITS IMPORTANCE

Different stakeholders are of different significance to the Group. However,
we believe that resources should be deployed on the information
disclosures for the Group's most significant stakeholders, such as
employees and suppliers, and then the rest. We are open-minded to
encourage our stakeholders to express their views through various
channels, either official or unofficial.

With reference to the views of our stakeholders, we prioritize the ESG

issues based on their urgency and significance. The relevant information
will be used to formulate our short and long-term sustainability strategies.
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APPROACH FOR ESG MANAGEMENT

We believe that continuously promoting a culture of sustainability in the
course of our business and incorporating relevant principles into our
business operations would be beneficial to the long-term development of
our business and stakeholders as a whole.

Based on our first ESG Report, we have reviewed and improved the data
collection process, broadened the scope of disclosure, gradually achieving
a best practice. Through regular information collection and reporting, the
Group has got a better understanding of its work on environmental
protection, staffing, operations and management. Such kind of internal
review would also serve to constantly improve our ESG management.

To ensure effective use of resources, the Group has been perfecting its
environmental protection policies for employees’ reference. By developing
good work habits in the workforce, we hope to cultivate a corporate
culture featuring energy and resource conservation.

Sales business is our principal business. In order to effectively manage the
social and environmental risks in the supply chain, we take the suppliers’
ESG policies into consideration in the selection process so as to reduce the
risks associated with sustainable development.

In addition to maintaining the sound and steady development of its
existing business, the Group is constantly seeking opportunities for growth
and business diversification. This means we need to better manage the
risks associated with product liability.

The Group is aware of the corruption and money laundering risks
associated with its business activities. To stay vigilant against corruption at
all times, the Group will from time to time remind its employees and
members of the board of those issues to ensure their integrity and self-
discipline.

We recognize that there is still room for improvement in the sustainable
development of the Group. Looking forward, we will keep abreast of the
needs and views of our stakeholders as far as we can to enhance the
Group's ESG performance.
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ENVIRONMENT
Emissions

Greenhouse gas emission is one of the main contributors to global
warming. Global warming is hazardous to the balance of natural
ecosystems and threatens food supply and living environment for human
beings. Therefore, it is imperative to reduce greenhouse gas emission for
improving air quality and creating a pleasant and habitable environment.
In addition to taking practical measures to minimize the impact of our
operations on the environment, we encourage our employees to
contribute to environmental protection by lending concrete support and
shouldering social responsibilities.

The Group is principally engaged in the footwear sales business. The main
source of direct gas emission is the fleet that transports goods from
warehouses to stores. Transportation for some of our shipments is
outsourced to logistics providers, who are responsible for indirect
greenhouse gas emissions. Other greenhouse emission comes from
purchased electricity for our offices, warehouses and stores.

For the Year under review, the Group’s direct and indirect gas emissions
are as follows:

(i) Carbon Emissions

Emission of Greenhouse Gases Coverage

HEEE

BERBHN

BE

2958
BERBHRBEREHEECHTIEXR £
HRERFEEBNERRRAGNTE  EHE
ABHNRYHEFNEERE - Bt - FERE
REHW HEERmE  2ERMNERER
% BERATRENER - RIIRRRERT
BERDRREEHRBERNTE - Eah)
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AEBEZZ2UFEERIHERT  BERRBHEN
MEBRRESEMHERERXIEHNELE
% - aRBMBBOEMNERZIE TR
HrEm  WEREREHEBNREEN X
ERAE RENEHINEENAELN -

REEFEAN  AEEEZREERETRN
T

() WmHEHE

Total Carbon dioxide equivalent
emissions (tons)
“EmEEHRELR (M)

2019 2018

Retail business in the PRC, Hong Kong 49 74

Scope 1:
#BE
Direct emission of greenhouse
gases offices and warehouses, Dongguan
Emissions from vehicles offices
EERAEREHEN hEETEER
B BEAMAEREE -
REMAE
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Emission of Greenhouse Gases

BERBHN

Total Carbon dioxide equivalent
Coverage emissions (tons)

REEE 8RR EBR R EATT (W)

2019 2018

Scope 2:
#ED2
Indirect emission of greenhouse
gases from energy
consumption
Purchased electricity
RERE R = R A8

SN E

Scope 3:
#HIES3 -
Indirect emission of greenhouse
gases
Outsourced transportation
vehicles
Staff business trips by air

B8 = R BEHE N

Retail business in the PRC, Hong 1,222 2,422
Kong offices and warehouses,
Dongguan offices, Guangzhou
offices and warehouse
PERTEER  BER
WAERRE REWHAE -

BN AEREE

Retail business in the PRC, Hong Kong 14 71
offices and warehouses, Dongguan 5 32
offices, Guangzhou offices and
warehouse

TRERTEXS BER
MREREE  REMHAE -

M 38 ) 5 4 BMNHAEREE
BB TR RM LI T

Notes: 5T

1. Information about carbon emission is prepared with reference to the 1L RBEER D2 BE R AR ORR
Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs published by the Stock BABERURIZEEMIES| ) R K
Exchange as well as the Greenhouse Gas Protocol published by the BERBEHEARZRAEREMD
World Business Council for Sustainable Development (WBCSD) and CRAERERERTE) -
the World Resources Institute (WRI).

2. Emission data of business trips by air is calculated using the carbon 2. =R AR A HE R E B R YR B R
emission calculator of the International Civil Aviation Organization. R Az 484 (International Civil Aviation

Organization) iR BENET H 2851 & -
3. Asof the date of this Report, information of certain scopes is not yet 3. HBIETARERE X REGECE

available.

FHERBEIRM
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Use of Resources

In response to environmental issues, the Group has adopted relevant
policies and measures to minimize the environmental impact of its
businesses in the course of day-to-day operation. Specific measures are as
follows:

Raise the awareness of environmental protection within the Group
and optimize the use of resources

In order to raise the awareness of environmental protection and ensure
optimal use of resources within the Group, the Group would share
information with its employees at all levels and implement various
measures to promote energy conservation, water conservation and
optimal use of air conditioning. The Group also constantly reminds its
employees of messages such as saving water, and turning off lighting and
air conditioning that are not needed after work or during lunch break and
switching their computers to sleep mode. We also set up collection boxes
for used papers, encourage our staff to use double-sided printing, send
documents through emails and review documents online. Our staff is also
advised to give up the daily use of disposable paper cups. Environmental
protection tips in electronic forms are provided and related activities are
organized to encourage staff participation. They are also encouraged to
upload the information about environmental protection they received to
the shared file on the central network of regional offices. In this way, green
living information can be shared among our staff and that would serve to
enhance their quality of life and contribute to environmental protection.
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Incorporate the concept of environmental protection into the
design and renovation of our stores

The design and renovation of our stores that features the combination of
waste reduction with various factors such as energy conservation and the
use of reusable materials is our primary concern.

In the course of our operation, store improvement and renovation is
indispensable, despite its impact on the environment. Therefore, we
address the problem at source. Furniture is designed for reuse, renewable
materials are used whenever possible and more energy-efficient lighting is
adopted in illumination. Proper waste disposal during the renovation or
refurbishment process is ensured by outsourcing the procedure to
contractors recognized by environmental protection authorities. We have
centralized the planning and management of store design and furniture
manufacturing since mid-2016. In some regions, contractors recognized by
environmental protection authorities are engaged for waste separation,
and such practice will spread to various provinces and cities.

Reduce emissions

We understand that the harm to the environment caused by the emission
of pollutants from vehicles and aircraft should not be neglected. However,
it is inevitable to use vehicles to transport our products between various
sales points and warehouses, while our management needs to travel on
business by plane and other means of transport. The Group will continue
to monitor our use of transportation and establish appropriate measures to
balance the interests of our stakeholders. Our existing measures include
gradually aligning the emission standard of our business vehicles with EU
standards, maintaining good maintenance for vehicles, and encouraging
better use of video conferencing, conference calls and other electronic
means for communication instead of business trips, either onshore or
abroad.
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Strengthen the management of performance indicator measures

We strengthen statistics and data collection in relation to fuel and energy
consumption as well as the waste generated from offices, warehouses and
sales points in the course of business. Through data processing and
analysis, we can further optimize our environmental protection policies.

(i)
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Utilization of Resources

Category of resources used

EREANES

Coverage

R E

EENEREEE
BAMREBBEMSEORAE - BERE
ERE AR - BER N EERYE R IR

% BBANEBRNT E—SECRME
SRR -

iy BRERE

Energy consumption in total
Eb/ﬁﬁﬁﬁs n—l-

2019 2018

Direct fuel consumption

of vehicles:

ET? REREAE
Unleaded petrol
Diesel
B TM
Sem

Direct fuel consumption
of vehicles in total:

BEESERBEARH

Indirect fuel consumption of
vehicles:
Fﬁ?‘f/mﬁﬁkﬂﬁﬁi :
Unleaded petrol
Diesel
B TM
5e0m

Indirect fuel consumption
of vehicles in total:

Fﬁgl%imﬂﬁﬁsx\ -
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Bk %

Retail business in the PRC,
Hong Kong offices and
warehouses, Dongguan
offices

HEIRZEER B
NEREE REWAE

Retail business in the PRC,
Hong Kong offices and
warehouses, Dongguan
offices

TERTERY  HAEM
REREE REPAE
ERARR

20,323 litres A F+
10,605 litres A F+

11,883 litres A F+
8,000 litres A Ft

19,883 litres 2F 30,928 litres X F

18,495 litres A F+
11,787 litres A F+

2,668 litres A Ft
3,052 litres A F+

5,720 litres 27 30,282 litres X F+
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Category of resources used Coverage Energy consumption in total
EREANER HEEE BEREREAG
2019 2018
Purchased Electricity Retail business in the PRC, 1,511,118 kwh FELEF 3,026,483 kwh F ELFF
SNEE S Hong Kong (offices/stores/
warehouses), Guangzhou
(offices/warehouses),

Dongguan (offices)

TERTEXRY B

(#JJ#"*/E%%/F J%)
BMRAE/BE)
% (D=
Notes: M E
1. Information about carbon emission is prepared with reference to the 1. REERER D2 RE R HENCRE
Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs published by the Stock BREBURRERIES ) EREEK
Exchange as well as the Greenhouse Gas Protocol published by the BEEBeEYRERMAER MO
World Business Council for Sustainable Development (WBCSD) and (CRAERBBREEATE) -
the World Resources Institute (WRI).
2. Emission data of business trips by air is calculated using the carbon 2. MERENPEREERJIRA R
emission calculator of the International Civil Aviation Organization. R Az 48 45 (International Civil AV|at|on
Organization) X BF T H 2851 & ©
3. As of the date of submission of the Report, information of certain 3. BHUIRXWMERE BHoREHEZ
scopes is not yet available. BRBERERME
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Environment and Natural Resources

The Group continues to implement its environmental protection
policies. It is believed that saving energy and reducing emissions
would not only help improve the environment, but also benefit the
Company by saving costs. The resources closely relate to the Group
are the petrol consumed in transportation, electricity consumed and
paper used in the workplace. During the year, we rationalized our
office space based on actual business needs so as to save electricity.
We have also gradually replaced the existing lighting with energy-
saving one. Above all, we still expect to further reduce the use of
resources. The Group will further enhance its performance on
environmental protection by the following means:

Make good use of resources

Reduce carbon emission and waste

Continue to identify and manage risks associated with the
environment

Keep abreast of any update on all applicable laws and
regulations associated with environmental protection issues
Promote recycling and reuse of waste

Promote awareness and education on environmental
protection among staff

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

In an era where intense competition abounds, we regard intelligent,
creative and dedicated staff as the Group’s most valuable asset. We
acknowledge good employment relationships and a committed team is
the key to the Group's efficient operations.

We care about the communication with our staff, encourage our staff at all
levels to express their views through various staff activities, such as
meetings, suggestion boxes and websites. We advocate a harmonious
environment and strive to break the barriers between staff by organizing
different types of meetings and outdoor activities from time to time,
creating a healthy and harmonious working environment.
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Employment

During the period, the Group employed approximately 261 employees, of
which approximately 177 were based in the PRC, 64 in Hong Kong and the
remaining in Taiwan. We are in compliance with the employment
regulations of the regions where our business is operated, details of which
are set out below:

1. Labour wages, overtime pay and related benefits meet (or exceed)
the local minimum wage levels;

2. Leaves and statutory paid leaves comply with the local government
requirements;

3. Our employees are treated equally by the Group. The employee’s
social identity, such as ethnicity, race, nationality, gender, religion,
age, sexual orientation, political factions and marital status, will not
affect their employment, remuneration package and promotion;

4. Staff Code of Practice of the Group is formulated with reference to
the employment regulations of relevant regions and complies with
the standard requirements of the national and local government.

Health and Safety

The Group values the health and safety of our staff. We consider that health
is essential for wealth and a bright future. Basic medical benefits and a safe
working environment are offered to employees to reduce casualties and
money loss incurred during work.

In compliance with fire regulations, we set up fire escapes, emergency
lightings and diagram for emergency exit. Well-stocked first-aid kits are in
place at each work station. Guidance and working guidelines regarding
moving goods safely and the use of trolleys are provided for staff exposed
to higher risk of work-related injuries, such as warehouse staff. Our retail
staff is provided with occupational health guidance, which gives
instructions on the safe use of folding ladders, climbing ladders and
stocking shelves to avoid injuries.
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Development and Training

In the fast-changing market with intense competition, we believe that only
by pursuing knowledge and innovation, staying alert, leveraging on
intelligence and creativity, and above all, improving efficiencies of the
management teams can we respond to new challenges in this new era.
Consequently, the Group's objective is to increase the capabilities of our
staff at all levels. To accommodate the employees’ career development, we
will continue to establish a series of courses based on the needs to
enhance employees’ skills and encourage employees’ continuous learning.

We provide induction trainings for the new frontline staff. Such trainings
comprise introduction of the Company, rules of the Company,
occupational safety and the Trade Descriptions Ordinance; fundamental
store management, product knowledge, sales techniques and customer
services, helping new staff fit into our team as soon as possible.

The Group also supports self-improvement and encourages our staff to
fully utilise their expertise at work to enhance quality. We continuously
recommend our staff to attend suitable seminars or courses selected by us.

Seeking high-caliber individuals and cultivating talents are the Group's key
objectives for which we will work relentlessly to achieve through store
management training programmes or other alternatives.

No excellent enterprise can survive without a united and competitive
team. Therefore, we encourage employees to actively participate in the
meetings and outdoor activities organized by the Group, during which
team spirit is built and past performances are reviewed, so that effective
strategies can be developed to face the new challenges in a new era.

Labour Standards

Child labour, compulsory or forced labour is prohibited in all business
segments of the Group. At present, we are not aware of any significant risk
of child labour or forced labour within the Group. In the case of resignation
of own accord, employees may leave the post as long as reasonable
notification is given as required by their employment contracts.
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OPERATING PRACTICES
Supply Chain Management

Comprehensive supply chain management and sound procurement
management are relatively important to the sustainable operations of the
Group.

In general, we lay greater emphasis on the product quality, service quality
and business stability of suppliers in the supply chain management system,
and less attention is paid to their performance on environmental
protection and social responsibilities. We will continue to show concern for
the suppliers’ performance of corporate social responsibility. The related
personnel assess and establish a list of suppliers, with whom contact and
communication will be made. Suppliers not yet included into the list are
encouraged to lay emphasis on corporate social responsibility and comply
with relevant laws and regulations.

Product Responsibility

The Group is of the view that products form the core competitive edge of
an enterprise. Our quality inspection and assurance process includes: (i) our
leather materials are sent to National Leather Products Quality Supervision
and Inspection Centre for assessment, (i) our products are required to pass
the National Quality Inspection for Light Industry for Leather and Fur of
Footwear Products, (iii) our professional personnel perform random
inspection at suppliers’ premises, provide deficiency reports for
substandard products identified during the inspection process, offer
improvement advice and demand the suppliers to implement
improvements or provide detailed improvement proposals, and (iv) follow
up such proposals and continuously supervise the suppliers’ performance.

We will continuously optimize our product procurement process in
response to changes in the Company’s procurement model and carefully
scrutinize the inspection documents to ensure compliance with relevant
laws and regulations.

For new businesses such as securities brokerage, the related operating
personnel shall comply with the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Code of
Conduct for Persons Licensed by or Registered with the Securities and
Futures Commission and Trade Descriptions Ordinance, to ensure that all
information given is correct and not misleading, defamatory or fraudulent,
In addition, we have set up appropriate working standards and codes to
make sure that all employees clearly understand the operating
requirements.
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Customer Services
Data Privacy Policy

We comply with the laws and regulations in relation to personal
information and the protection of customers’ rights. We will not share, sell
or lease any information provided by our customers in order to protect
their rights. The personal information collection statement is set out on our
website.

Anti-corruption

The Group takes integrity, law-abiding and effective operation as our
operation philosophy. We strongly believe that the image of honesty,
integrity and fairness is one of the important assets of the Group. To this
end, all the staff are expressively required to devote great efforts to protect
the Group's reputation by keeping fraud, disloyalty or corruption at bay.
The Group regularly reminds its staff to follow instructions and related
guidance in performing job duties. Meanwhile, our management has
formulated a whistleblowing policy and delegate the Audit Committee
comprised of Independent Non-executive Directors to receive and follow
up relevant cases.

The Company’s new businesses, such as securities brokerage business,
have commenced in line with the development approach of the Group.
The Group does not tolerate corruption, bribery, extortion, as well as
fraudulent and money-laundering activities. The relevant companies make
reference to the relevant regulations, such as Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance, the United Nations (Anti-Terrorism Measures) Ordinance and
the Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance,
and require their employees to strictly abide by the relevant regulations
and guidelines.

Whistleblowing Channel

We have formulated a whistleblowing policy and all staff of the Group was
notified again in the Year.
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COMMUNITY

As a responsible enterprise, we will continuously adopt appropriate
approaches to broaden the communities we serve and support the
employment of people of different backgrounds.

Community Investment

In addition to participating in community public welfare activities as usual
and providing various types of employment opportunity at all times, the
Group has also continued to provide multiple short-term internship
opportunities for students from vocational training colleges. They may
learn from others’ working experience and acquire relevant expertise
through face-to-face interviews, and enrich their practical experience
through exchange of reflection on working experience, gains and losses at
work and knowledge. We will also sponsor non-profit organizations for
holding charitable fund-raising activities and implement non-
governmental subsidized employment schemes that serve juvenile
offenders under probation orders as well as rehabilitated offenders,
teenagers with learning disabilities, ethnic minorities and newly-arrived
migrant women. We have also been awarded the “Caring Company” logo
by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service for seven consecutive years,
recognizing our effort in the promotion of caring for our society. In the
future, we will continuously invest various resources in our community.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

ESHE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. ZHU Xiaojun (“Mr. Zhu"), aged 48, is the Chairman and an executive
Director of the Group. He also serves as a member of both the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Board.
Mr. Zhu is the bother-in-law of Ms. Cai Jiaying, who is an executive Director
of the Group. Mr. Zhu is responsible for the overall management and
strategies planning for the business development of the Group. He is
currently the general manager of Shanghai Sunrise Pension & Services
Company Limited in the PRC. He is a sole director of China Consume
Elderly Care Holdings Limited, a controlling shareholder of the Company
and also a director of major subsidiaries of the Group including Trunari
Enterprises Company Limited, Senet International Limited and Walker Shop
Footwear Limited. Mr. Zhu is experienced in the industry of electronic
commerce. He joined the Group in February 2016.

Mr. KANG Jianming (“Mr. Kang"”), aged 44, is an executive Director of
the Group. Mr. Kang obtained a Master’s Degree in Philosophy from the
Beijing Normal University. He also completed an Executive MBA
programme from Zhongshan University in the PRC and the China
UnionPay Senior Management Programme from the Business and
Administration Department of the Tsinghua University in the PRC. Mr. Kang
worked as an economist in the Guangdong Branch of the Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China Limited from March 2005 to December 2006.
Afterwards, he worked as the business director of Guangzhou UnionPay
Network Payment Company Limited from October 2007 to September
2015. Mr. Kang obtained the intermediate level qualification in Finance and
Economics conferred by the Ministry of Personnel of the Government of
the PRC (currently known as the Ministry of Human Resources and Social
Security of the Government of the PRC) in November 2002. In November
2014, Mr. Kang was appointed as a member of the 3rd Committee of the
Guangdong’s Association for Promotion of Cooperation between
Guangdong, Hong Kong and Macao. He has extensive experience in the
industry of e-Payment, finance and economics. Mr. Kang joined the Group
in February 2016.

Ms. CAl Jiaying (“Ms. Cai”), aged 38, is an executive Director of the
Group. Ms. Cai is the sister-in-law of Mr. Zhu Xiaojun, who is a Chairman
and an executive Director of the Group. Ms. Cai graduated from the
Shanghai Art & Design Academy with a Bachelor’s Degree in Fashion
Design. Ms. Cai has extensive experience in the fashion design industry and
she also has years of experience in ladies’ fashion design, brand
development as well as the management and business operation. She is
also the general manager of Shanghai Anxin Insurance Agency Limited.
Ms. Cai joined the Group in April 2016.
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Mr. YIN Wansun (“Mr. Yin"), aged 58, is an executive Director of the
Group. Mr. Yin obtained a Bachelor’'s Degree in Engineering from the
Dalian University of Technology (formerly known as X T EFR) in the
PRC. He is currently the managing director of Shanghai Fudi Industry
Company Limited and is responsible for monitoring the overall business
operations. Mr. Yin has over 20 years of experience in the corporate
management field. He joined the Group in May 2016.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. ZHAO Hong (“Ms. Zhao”), aged 49, is an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Group. She also serves as a chairman of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Board. Ms. Zhao holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in Accounting from the
Shanghai University of Finance and Economics and a Master's Degree of
Business Administration from the China Europe International Business
School in the PRC. Ms. Zhao obtained the qualification of Accountant
specializing in Accounting (Corporate) conferred by the Ministry of Finance
of the PRC in May 1996. She is currently a non-practicing member of The
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She is currently a finance
director of EBT Digital Communication Retail Group. Ms. Zhao has extensive
experience in the financial and accounting fields. She joined the Group in
April 2016.

Mr. CHAU Wai Hing (“Mr. Chau”), aged 53, is an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Group. He also serves as a member of the Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Board. Mr. Chau is also
appointed as the member of the Remuneration Committee of the Board
effective from 29 September 2018. Mr. Chau obtained a Bachelor's Degree
in Quantitative Analysis for Business, Postgraduate Certificate in
Professional Accounting and Master Degree in Finance from the City
University of Hong Kong. He also holds a Master Degree in Professional
Accounting from the Southern Cross University in Australia. He is a fellow
member of the Institute of Public Accountants in Australia, a fellow
member of the Institute of Financial Accountants, a chartered member of
the Chartered Institute for Securities and Investment and a member of the
Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute. Mr. Chau resigned as a
member of nomination committee and also resigned as the chairman,
executive director, a chairman of investment committee and authorized
representative of Cocoon Holdings Limited (listed on the Main Board of
Stock Exchange) with effect from 14 December 2018 and 18 February 2019
respectively. From December 2008 to April 2015, Mr. Chau was the
chairman and an executive director of UBA Investments Limited (listed on
the Main Board of Stock Exchange). Prior to joining UBA Investments
Limited, he possesses over 18 years of experience in banking, finance and
wealth management and held senior positions at several international
financial institutions including Bank of America (Asia) Limited and Merrill
Lynch (Asia Pacific) Limited. He joined the Group in February 2017.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

ESHE

Mr. YU Lei (“Mr. Yu”), aged 45, appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director and a member of each of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the Board
effective from 28 December 2018. Mr. Yu holds a Master of Business
Administration Degree from Sun Yat-sen University. He worked as an
executive director, the chief executive officer and the chairman of the
executive committee of Daoche Global Group Limited (listed on the Main
Board of Stock Exchange) from January 2018 to December 2018. Mr. Yu has
over 10 years of management experience. He has been a director of 1t 5
KA XALEERD BBR AR (for transliteration purpose only, Beijing Pai
PR Communications Co., Ltd) since January 2016, the shares of which are
quoted on the National Equities Exchange and Quotations in the PRC
(stock code: 839457).
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The Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the Year, the Company acted as an investment holding company
and its subsidiary corporations were principally engaged in (1) retailing of
footwear in Hong Kong, the PRC and Taiwan; and (2) e-Commerce and
e-Payment business.

An analysis to the Group's performance for the Year by segment is set out
in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group's results for the Year and the state of the Company’s and Group
affairs as at 31 March 2019 are set out on pages 63 to 172 of this annual
report.

The Board has recommended not to declare final dividend for the Year
(2018: Nil).

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year are
set out in Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements and in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 68, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2019, the Company did not have any reserves available for
distribution as calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands (2018: Nil).

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group did not make charitable contributions and
other donations (2018: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment during the
Year are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles and the laws
of the Cayman Islands which oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years is set out on pages 173 to 176 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s securities during the Year.

SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS AND CONVERTIBLE
BONDS

Details of the movements in the Company’s issued share capital, share
options and convertible bonds during the Year are set out in Notes 26, 34
and 31 respectively to the consolidated financial statements.

GROUP’S BORROWINGS

Details of the Group's borrowings as at 31 March 2019 are set out in Note
29 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the members of Board of
Directors of the Company are:

Executive Directors

Mr. ZHU Xiaojun (Chairman)
Mr. KANG Jianming

Ms. CAl Jiaying

Mr. YIN Wansun

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. ZHAO Hong

Mr. CHAU Wai Hing

Mr. LEUNG Man Ho (resigned on 29 September 2018)
Mr. YU Lei (appointed on 28 December 2018)

Mr. LEUNG Man Ho resigned as independent non-executive Director of the
Company on the date as abovementioned. He confirmed that he has no
disagreement with the Board and nothing relating to the affairs of the
Company needed to be brought to the attention of the shareholders of
the Company.

In accordance with Article 86(3) of the Articles of Association, any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at such
meeting. Accordingly, Mr. YU Lei, an independent non-executive Director
of the Company, shall hold office until the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company ("AGM").

-/ 44 Vestate Group Holdings Limited EIREBEZERAER A &

TFEMBHE

AEBBEAEAYREE2EE EENEE
BEFRAERFE 17321768 °

BE HEIBEARRFAZES

RAFE  ARBRETAMER AL ERE
B HERBEERMARRZES °

BRAE - BRERTERRES

ARAZBETEA - BEERATBBRESR
REE 2 SEFHIBE D BN 76 M IR M
26~ 34 231 ¢

rEEEE
NEEN2019F3 A31 B2 BEHBENES
B SRAR ML 29 ©

=
RAFERBEAREAR  ARARESEE Y
REWT :

HITES
REELLE(Z/E)
BT E
EEERL
BRIEIHLE

BAFHITES

=D

BE S A

PS5 (7201859 A 29 B ELE)
FRELA(FR2018F 12 A28 BEZRT)

RXHRECR Lt B BB ER R RELIEHR
TEF WRERREEZGUEFERNERS
I MEEREEARRZ R EERRS
RARFREE °

REBEABERMAFQ) G EEFSEE
NERMBERERNEERBEESMEESRR
UWEMESEHEHEARR TERRBFK
Rl YHEERNBRAG L2BET -
Bt ARFIELIFAITEFERELENTH
EARFEERREAFA S ((RRBAFAE])
ALk e



REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EEEWREE

In accordance with Article 87 of the Articles of Association, not less than
one-third of the Directors for the time being should retire from office by
rotation at each annual general meeting. Accordingly, Mr. ZHU Xiaojun and
Ms. CAl Jiaying, the executive Directors of the Company and Mr. CHAU Wai
Hing, an independent non-executive Director of the Company, will retire
from office by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming AGM.

Change of Directors’ Information

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, changes in the information
of Directors required to be disclosed in this report as follows:

Mr. CHAU Wai Hing (“Mr. Chau"), an independent non-executive Director,
was appointed as a member of the Remuneration Committee with effect
from 29 September 2018. Mr. Chau resigned as a member of nomination
committee and also resigned as the chairman, executive director, the
chairman and a member of investment committee and authorized
representative of Cocoon Holdings Limited (listed on the main board of
Stock Exchange) with effect from 14 December 2018 and 18 February 2019
respectively.

Mr. YU Lei ("Mr. Yu") was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director and a member of each of Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee with effect from 28 December
2018. Mr. Yu resigned as an executive director, the chief executive officer
and ceased as the chairman of the executive committee of Daohe Global
Limited (listed on the main board of Stock Exchange) with effect from 1
January 2019.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries, which is
not determinable by the employing company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Emoluments

The Directors’ fees and remuneration is disclosed in Note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements. The directors’ fees are subject to
shareholders” approval at general meeting. The emoluments of the
Directors are determined by the Company’s board of directors with
reference to their duties, responsibilities, experience and performance, the
Company’s performance, the prevailing market conditions and after
considering the market emoluments for directors of other listed
companies.

Biographical Details of Directors

Biographical details of the Directors of the Group are set out on pages 40
to 42 of this annual report.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 31 March 2019, the interests and short positions of each Director and
chief executive of the Company and their associates in the shares
("Shares”), underlying shares and debentures of the Company and/or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
the Directors and chief executive were taken or deemed to have taken
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be and are
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were
as follows:

The Company

Number of Shares held
FiEROEE

Personal
interests

Family
interests

Name of Director  Class of shares

EERESITHRAERRY  HERGORE
SEPZERRAR

MR2019F3 A31 B » IRBHLAEED ([#H
REIE®EG ) EXVBE T RESDEBME A
REI KRB (BREREESFRPERIZS
B BEERGESTRABRGIEXNRAEES
2T BEAR)  RIREF KBS R XV ER
FIGATHEE 2 E LMoL RIZE
SAIBMEARARB REZFT AR EEER
BERTBABRESZHBHEARAIARRK
HAMMBBER (E& R EHF L EEDE XV
) Bt ([ ]) - HEBRH REHZEP 2
AR WT

Rk
ZHU Xiaojun Ordinary shares - -
REE EBR
KANG Jianming Ordinary shares/share options - -
e LR/ EkE
CAl Jiaying Ordinary shares/share options - -
28 LR/ EkE
YIN Wansun Ordinary shares/share options - -
Rk LR/ ERE
ZHAO Hong Ordinary shares/share options - -
i LR/ Rk

Number of Approximate %

underlying of the

shares held Company's

under equity total issued

Corporate derivatives share

interests (Note 2) capital

RERATE

IEfEL AR

HEROHE BRTRE

DEER CE) BB BN %

513,300,002 - 513,300,002 71.67%
(Note 1)
(FiszE1)

- 6,000,000 6,000,000 0.84%

- 6,000,000 6,000,000 0.84%

- 6,000,000 6,000,000 0.84%

- 500,000 500,000 0.07%
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Notes:

1. Mr. ZHU Xiaojun (“Mr. Zhu") has beneficial interest in 513,300,002 Shares in
the Company representing approximately 71.67% of entire issued share
capital of the Company held by China Consume Elderly Care Holdings
Limited, a controlling shareholder of the Company, wholly owned by Mr.
Zhu.

2. These represent the number of shares which will be allotted or transferred to
such Directors upon the exercise of the options granted to each of them
under the share option scheme adopted by the Company on 21 May 2007.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 March 2019, none of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company or their associates had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which the Directors and chief executive were
taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were required to be recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures”
above and in the section headed “Long Term Incentive Schemes” below, at
no time during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable a Director or their respective spouse or
children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares, or debentures, of the Company or other body
corporate.

Directors’ Interest in Contracts

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to which
the Company and its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during the Year.

Directors’ Interest in Competing Businesses

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, each of the Directors confirmed
that he/she does not have any interest in any business apart from the
Group's business, which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the Group's business.
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LONG TERM INCENTIVE SCHEMES
Share Option Scheme 2007

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 21 May 2007 (“Share
Option Scheme 2007") for the purpose of providing incentives to eligible
participants to contribute to the Company and enabling the Company to
recruit high-calibre employees and attract human resources that are
valuable to the Group.

The Share Option Scheme 2007 shall be valid and effective for a period of
10 years from its adoption date, after which period no further options
granted under the Share Option Scheme 2007 (“Post-IPO Share
Options”) will be issued but any options then outstanding will continue to
be exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue.

The total number of the Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
Post-IPO Share Options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme
2007 and any other share option scheme of the Group shall not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of the Shares in issue as at the
Listing Date, being 600,000,000 Shares.

The total number of the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the Post-IPO Share Options and any other share options granted and to be
granted to each eligible person in any 12-month period immediately
preceding the date of grant of the Post-IPO Share Options ("Grant Date”")
shall not exceed 1% of the number of Shares in issue as at the Grant Date
unless prior approval of the Company’s shareholders in general meeting is
obtained.

The Post-IPO Share Options may be exercised during a period as notified
by the Board and not exceeding 10 years from the Grant Date and expiring
on the last day of the said 10-year period. Unless otherwise determined by
the Board and specified in the letter of grant, there is no minimum period
for which an option must be held before it can be exercised.

The subscription price of the Post-IPO Share Options shall be determined
by the Board and shall be at least the highest of: (a) the nominal value of
the Shares; (b) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the Grant Date; and (c) the closing price of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheets on the
Grant Date.

The Post-IPO Share Options to subscribe for an aggregate of 41,000,000
Shares were granted on 28 November 2016 at an exercise price of HK$1.45
per Share. The closing price of the Shares on 28 November 2016 was
HKS$1.45.
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The Post-IPO Share Options are granted in two tranches of: (A) a total of ~ EXAREREERESMALFEL - HBIAN
31,000,000 shares of options; and (B) a total of 10,000,000 shares of options & £ 31,000,000 #% 8 #% # : X (8) & £ 10,000,000

shall vest in the grantees in accordance with the timetable below:

RAEIE - RIEA TR R RE T REA :

Tranches

LI/

Exercisable period

1T

Percentage of Options to vest

BTERZBREZBDL

A 28 November 2017-27 November 2021 Up to 50% of the total number of options granted
2017811 A28A 2021911 A27H TR BIERR R AR 4 B2 50%
28 November 2018-27 November 2021 Up to 50% of the total number of options granted
2018411 A28 A -20214F11 A27H BB R BRI RR 2 50%

B 28 November 2017-27 November 2021 Up to 25% of the total number of options granted

20174F11 A28H-20214F11 A27H
28 November 2018-27 November 2021
2018411 A28 B-2021411 A27H
28 November 2019-27 November 2021
2019511 H28H-20214F11 A27H
28 November 2020-27 November 2021
2020911 A28 B-2021411 A27H

TR BIERR AR B2 25%
Up to 25% of the total number of options granted
TERBER BRI RR 2 25%
Up to 25% of the total number of options granted
BB BRI E 2 25%
Up to 25% of the total number of options granted
BRI RS2 25%

Details of movements of the Post-IPO Share Options during the Year are as

follows:

T -

No. of the Post-IPO Share Options
BRAHERRBREHE

RAFEE  BRAFERRBREZZEFE

Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed Balanceas at

Balanceasat  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe  during the 31 March

1 April 2018 Year Year Year Year 2019

142018 R2019%F

Name or category  EFAZ 4A1H REFE REFE REFE REFE 3A31H

of grantee HERER R B’ 7 s XX &R
Directors EE

KANG Jianming B 6,000,000 - - - - 6,000,000

CAl Jiaying 28 6,000,000 - - - - 6,000,000

YIN Wansun BRietk 6,000,000 - - - - 6,000,000

ZHAO Hong Fiz8N 500,000 - - - - 500,000
Employees EE&

In aggregate a4 21,000,000 - - - 4,000,000 17,000,000

Total mst 39,500,000 - - - 4,000,000 35,500,000

During the Year, none of the Options were granted, exercised or cancelled
and a total of 4,000,000 Post-IPO Share Options have lapsed during the
Year. Accordingly, the outstanding of the Post-IPO Share Options was
35,500,000 as at 31 March 2019.
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Share Option Scheme 2017

The Share Option Scheme 2007 was terminated and a new share option
scheme was approved by the shareholders at the general meeting held on
13 January 2017. The new share option scheme was adopted by the
Company on the even date ("Share Option Scheme 2017").

The Share Option Scheme 2017 shall be valid and effective for a period of
10 years from its adoption date, after which period no further options
granted or to be granted under the Share Option Scheme 2017 will be
issued but any options then outstanding will continue to be exercisable in
accordance with their terms of issue.

The total number of the Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme 2017 and any other
option scheme of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
total number of the Shares in issue as at the date of the approval of the
Share Option Scheme 2017, being 646,190,000 Shares.

The total number of the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options and any other share options granted and to be granted to
each eligible person in any 12-month period immediately preceding the
date of grant of the options (“Grant Date”) shall not exceed 1% of the
number of Shares in issue as at the Grant Date unless prior approval of the
Company’s shareholders in general meeting is obtained.

The options may be exercised during the option period determined and
notified by the Board and not exceeding 10 years from the Grand Date but
subject to the provisions for early termination of the Share Option Scheme
2017. Unless otherwise determined by the Board and specified in the letter
of grant, there is no minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised.

The subscription price for Shares under the Share Option Scheme 2017
shall be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion but in any event
will not be less than the highest of: (a) the closing price of the Shares on
the Stock Exchange as shown in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the Grant Date; (b) the average of the closing prices of the
Shares as shown in the daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the Grant Date; and (c) the
nominal value of the Share on the Grant Date.

During the Year, no share options were granted by the Company and there
were no outstanding share options under the Share Option Scheme 2017.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2019, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the following
persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the Company), had the
following interests and short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares
of the Company which were required to be disclosed to the Company
pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or required to be
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of Part XV of
the SFO:

Name of substantial shareholder Capacity

g%

FERREE

TERRRRORERRO 2 EERAR

B2019F 38318 MERATRA - BIREE
HREEIEFIEXVIBE2REIDEARMAR
AIRE - IRERES R EERGIE XVEREE 336
BAEFFEZzZRMATREEE U T AL (I3
ARRESTRESITHRAR) REAARRG &
FERERR () < Em AR IAT ¢

Approximate % of
the Company’s
total issued

share capital
CEANCIIRE: oy
IRABEE 2 BEK%

Number and
nature of
interests held
Fris s
HERME

Beneficial owner
EnE A

China Consume Elderly Care Holdings
Limited (Note)
FEDEBEZERER DR (M)

Note:

China Consume Elderly Care Holdings Limited, the registered owner of 513,300,002
Shares, was owned as to 100% (1 share) by Mr. ZHU Xiaojun, an executive Director
of the Company, in the capacity of beneficial owners respectively.

All the interests disclosed above represents long positions in the Shares
and underlying Shares.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 March 2019, the Company had not been
notified by any persons (other than the Directors and the chief executive
of the Company) who had interests or short positions in shares or
underlying shares of the Company which were required to be disclosed to
the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were required to be recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the Year, all suppliers of the Group are independent third parties.
The Group'’s largest supplier accounted for approximately 7.6% of the
Group's total purchases and the Group's five largest suppliers accounted
for approximately 30% of the Group's total purchases.

Our Group's five largest customers accounted for less than 30% of the total
turnover for the Year.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders of the
Company (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than
5% of the Company's issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the
Group’s major customers or suppliers noted above.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the Year, the Company had the transactions constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules, details of which are set out in section headed “Major and
Connected Transaction” under Management Discussion and Analysis on
page 10 of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in Corporate
Governance Report on pages 13 to 25 of this annual report.

REVIEW BY THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the Year and the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE COMPANY’S
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

As disclosed in sections headed “Disclaimer of Opinion” and “Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion” in the independent auditor’s report contained on
pages 59 to 62 of this report, the auditors of the Company (the “Auditors”)
did not express an audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019 as a result of certain
matters.

The Board’s Response to the Disclaimer Opinion

1.

Going concern

As disclosed on P.7 of the announcement of the Company’s annual
results for the year ended 31 March 2019 published on 28 June 2019,
the Group has implemented various measures to address the
concern about the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
Among those measures, the auditors had requested further
information/documents regarding (i) the stand-by revolving loan
facilities of up to RMB200,000,000 granted to the Group by an
independent third party on 13 June 2019 and guaranteed by Mr. Zhu
Xiaojun, the Chairman of the Board (the “First Loan Facilities"); (ii)
the stand-by revolving loan facilities of up to Euro20,000,000 granted
to the Group by China Investment S.p.A., a company with 70%
interest owned by Ms. Cai Jiaying, a director of the Company (the
“Second Loan Facilities”); and (iii) the Group’s cash flow projections
prepared by management covering a period of twelve months from
31 March 2019 (the "Cash Flow Projections”).

The auditors were of the view that since the management of the
Company was unable to provide the bank statement(s) or financial
statement(s) of the lenders of the First Loan Facilities and Second
Loan Facilities to prove the possession of sufficient financial
resources by the respective lenders to provide the loan facility on a
continued basis the auditors remained uncertain about the financial
capability of the lenders to provide the revolving loan facilities to the
Company as and when the Company shall request it pursuant to the
terms and conditions of the loan agreements. The Company had
conveyed the request of the auditors to the lenders but they were
unable to provide the required documents within the time limit
imposed by the auditors since they were required to follow the
prescribed internal procedures to gain approval before those
documents could be released to external parties. However, since the
agreements governing the First Loan Facilities and Second Loan
Facilities are legal, valid and binding on the lenders, the
management is of the view that they provided assurance that the
Company would be able to obtain the loan facilities as and when
necessary. The Audit Committee concurred with the views of the
management.
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The Directors are considering to take the following actions to address
the audit qualifications surrounding the First Loan Facilities and the
Second Loan Facilities:

—  Seek the consent of the lenders to provide to the auditors all
the bank statement(s) and/or financial statement(s) in
question; and

—  The Company will continue to explore further funding sources
by continuing to approach banks, financial institutions and
potential investors to raise additional capital by way of debt or
equity fund-raising to reinforce the Company’s financial
position.

Loan receivables and refundable advance payment

The Auditors stated that they were unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the loan receivables of
approximately HK$135,846,000 and refundable advance payment of
approximately HK$98,881,000.

The Company has provided all the information/documents
requested by the auditors except (i) detailed repayment schedules of
each of the borrowers under the loan agreements; and (ii) evidence
in support of the financial capability of the vendor under the
acquisition agreement in relation to the sale and purchase of
properties in Milan, Italy ("“Acquisition Agreement”), to refund the
deposit in full to the Company.

The management is of the view that the borrowers under the loan
agreements are capable to repay the outstanding monies in full
based on (i) the due diligence on the borrowers previously
performed by the Group; and (ii) the business relation between the
borrowers and the Company. Also, the vendor under the Acquisition
Agreement is capable to refund the deposit in full in accordance
with the terms and conditions therein based on financial information
provided by the vendor. Since the (i) the Company and the vendor
had entered into a refund agreement dated 27 June 2019 (the
"Refund Agreement’) and (i) the Refund Agreement is legal, valid
and binding on the vendor, the signing of the Refund Agreement
provided assurance to the Company regarding the commitment of
the vendor to honour its refund obligations to the Company. The
Audit Committee concurred with the views of the management.
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In order to resolve the material uncertainties surrounding the loan
receivables and the refundable advance payment, the Company
continued to (i) communicate with the borrowers for renewal of all
of the existing loan agreements with outstanding unrepaid monies;
and (i) negotiate with the vendor to provide to the auditors with the
bank statement(s) and/or financial statement(s) to prove its financial
capability to refund the deposit to the Group in full in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the Refund Agreement; or
alternatively, (iii) identify a potential buyer to acquire the estate units
under the Acquisition Agreement at a premium subject to the
mutual consent of the parties to the Refund Agreement to terminate
the Refund Agreement.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale

The Auditors explained that they were unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to satisfy themselves that the Potential
Disposal is highly probable to complete within one year from the
date of Classification.

The Company has provided all the information/documents
requested by the Auditors except details regarding the status of the
Potential Disposal and expected date of completion. The
management is of the view that since (i) the potential purchaser is
about to complete the due diligence of the target company and (ii)
the potential purchaser has already pay a deposit of HK$15,000,000,
itis highly probable that the Potential Disposal would be completed
within in the near future and latest by 31 December 2019. The Audit
Committee concurred with the views of the management.

In order to resolve the material uncertainties in relation to the non-
current assets classified as held for sale, the Company will coordinate
with the potential buyer to complete the due diligence exercise and
complete the Potential Disposal in the near future and latest by 31
December 2019 and hence remove the audit qualification
concerned.

Impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible assets

The Auditors stated that they were unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to satisfy themselves that (i) the
relevance and reasonableness of key assumptions used in the
Impairment Assessment; and (i) the relevance, completeness and
accuracy of source data used in the Impairment Assessment.
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The Company has provided all the information/documents
requested by the auditors. Based on the information provided, the
auditors were of the view that since the (i) e-Commerce and
e-Payment operation only commenced business in September 2018
with a relatively short track record of business operation and (ii) there
are insufficient evidence in support of the assumptions and input
data (such as the revenue growth rate and other financial
projections) in the valuation model, there were uncertainties about
the reliability and accuracy of the key inputs and assumptions used
in the Impairment Assessment.

The management is of the view that the Impairment Assessment is
reliable since the recoverable amount of the intangible assets and
goodwill concerned was determined with reference to the valuation
report prepared by the independent valuer. The valuation method
used is the income approach which is considered to be a widely
adopted and accepted valuation methods and procedures for
achieving a reliable value and has been adopted consistently to
value the recoverable amount of the intangible assets and goodwill
concerned. In estimating the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit at the financial year-end date of 2019, the directors
of the Company have made certain assumptions including the
revenue growth rate and other financial projections of the
e-commerce and e-Payment business, which are dependent on the
business plan of the development of this business segment adopted
by the Group. The management has compiled the revenue growth
rate and other financial projections based on their understanding in
the e-commerce industry, with reference to the business
performance of this business segment since commence of operation
and the market trends, the current market trends and
macroeconomics changes. The Audit Committee concurred with
view of the management.

In order to resolve the material uncertainties in relation to the
Impairment Assessment, the Company will coordinate with the
potential buyer to complete the due diligence exercise and
complete the Potential Disposal within a short period of time and
latest by 31 December 2019 and hence remove the audit
qualification concerned.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that there is sufficient
public float of at least 25% of the Company's issued shares as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issuance of this annual report.
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EVENTS AFTER THE DATE OF STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION

On 24 May 2019, Genius Earn Investments Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company (“Vendor”) and the purchaser entered into the
disposal agreement, pursuant to which the Vendor will sell entire issued
share capital of Artemis Footwear Limited and 50% of the entire issued
share capital of Walker Shop Footwear Limited at the consideration of
HK$2,500,000 ("“Disposal”). Walker Shop Footwear Limited is principally
engaged in the retailing of footwear in Hong Kong and its owns the entire
equity interest in Billion International Trading (Shanghai) Company Limited,
a company established in the PRC and is principally engaged in the
retailing of footwear in the PRC. Artemis Footwear Limited is principally
engaged in the retailing of footwear in Taiwan. Upon completion of the
Disposal, Artemis Footwear Limited will cease to be a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company and the Group will remain to have 50%
interests in the Walker Shop Footwear Limited. Details of the Disposal are
set out in the announcement dated 24 May 2019. As at the date of this
report, the Disposal had not completed.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

At no time during the financial year and up to the date of this report, there
was or is, any permitted indemnity provision being in force for the benefits
of any of the directors of the Company (whether made by the Company or
otherwise) or an associated company.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is devoted to promoting and maintaining the environmental
and social sustainable development of the regions where it operates. The
Group takes into account of environmental protection issues in developing
and designing the new products. It uses materials which have passed
relevant physical and safety tests and complied with the environmental
laws and regulations. The Group concerns about the responsibilities of its
suppliers on environmental protection.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group's operations are carried out by the Company's subsidiaries in
the PRC, Hong Kong and Taiwan (‘Regions”) as well as the Company itself
is listed on the Stock Exchange. Our operations accordingly shall comply
with relevant laws and regulations in such Regions. During the year ended
31 March 2019, as far as the Board and management are aware, there was
no material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations by the Group that has a significant impact on the businesses
and operations of the Group.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and analysis of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group and an indication of likely future development in the
Group's business are set out in Management Discussion and Analysis on
pages 5 to 12 of this report.

AUDITOR

BDO Limited has resigned as auditors of the Group with effect from 24 May
2019 and the Board has appointed Elite Partners CPA Limited as the new
auditors of the Group to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of
BDO and to hold office until the conclusion of the next AGM with effect
from 5 June 2019. The financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2019 have been audited by Elite Partners CPA Limited.

On behalf of the Board

ZHU Xiaojun
Chairman

Hong Kong
28 June 2019

-/ 58 Vestate Group Holdings Limited BEREEZERARA

E 3 E)

E%HA$%IE;TZIKH e K NRRBARE & 2

/uTu TELA&Z’S%.%%*XT bgéf@
ZEBRHNARELSENAEZERENmKL
DHT

B ED

BRMIEERGMEEMAR AR DTN
SEZEED - B2019F5 A24BBER  mE
SR LR EESIMESMERARA
NEERFIZEE  EBE B EERER
BHREE TR B2019F 6 AsHEAN -
ABRET—ERRAFAE AL - ARREE
2019331 BIEFEHHHREREAAITE
EGT BRI ERAREE

REEFS

2
KREE

55
20194 6 A28 H



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB E

To the Shareholders of Vestate Group Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of Vestate
Group Holdings Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) set out on pages 63 to 172, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
Because of the significance of the matters described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we have not been able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit
opinion on these consolidated financial statements. In all other respects, in
our opinion the consolidated financial statements have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
1.  Going concern

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had net current liabilities of
approximately HK$218,284,000 and incurred a net loss of
approximately HK$257,386,000 for the year then ended.

As disclosed in note 2.1, the consolidated financial statements have
been prepared by the Directors of the Company on a going concern
basis, the validity of which depends upon the results of the
successful implementation and outcome of the measures to be
undertaken by the Group. In view of the extent of the material
uncertainties relating to the results of those measures to be
undertaken by the Group which might cast a significant doubt on
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, we have
disclaimed our audit opinion on the consolidated financial
statements.

Should the going concern assumption be inappropriate, adjustments
would have to be made to the consolidated financial statements to
write down the value of assets to their recoverable amounts, to
provide for further liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-
current assets and non-current liability as current assets and current
liabilities respectively. The effect of these adjustments have not been
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB E

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (CONTINUED)

2.

Loan receivables and refundable advance payment

As at 31 March 2018 and 2019, the Group had (i) loan receivables of
approximately HK$135,846,000 (2018: HK$130,873,000); and (ii)
refundable advance payment of approximately HK$98,881,000 (2018:
HK$98,881,000) (together as “Receivables”).

We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the Receivables, including but not limited to: (i) unable to
carry out any effective confirmation procedures in relation to the
Receivables for the purpose of our audit; (ii) inadequate
documentary evidence available for us to satisfy ourselves as to
whether the expected credit loss assessment in respect of the
Receivables were appropriate; and (iii) no alternative audit
procedures that we could perform to satisfy ourselves as to the
recoverability of the Receivables.

Any adjustments that might have been found necessary might have
an effect on the Group’s net liabilities at as 31 March 2018 and 2019,
and its financial performance and cash flows of the Group for the
years then ended, and the related disclosures thereof in the
consolidated financial statements.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale (“Held for
Sales”)

As at 31 March 2019, the Directors of the Company classified the
assets and liabilities of the e-Commerce and e-Payment business as
Held for Sale (the “Classification”).

As disclosed in Note 25 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group signed two MOUs with the potential buyers to disposal of the
e-Commerce and e-Payment business at consideration with
reference to its market value in August 2017 and June 2018 (the
“Potential Disposal”). However, there were no progress since the date
of signing the MOUs.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB E

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (CONTINUED)

3.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale (“Held for
Sales”) (Continued)

We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
satisfy ourselves that the Potential Disposal is highly probable to
complete within one year from the date of Classification.
Accordingly, we have not been able to determine whether the
Classification is appropriate.

Should the Classification assumption be inappropriate, adjustments
would have to be made to the consolidated financial statements to
reclassify the assets and liabilities included in the Held for Sale to the
appropriate accounts. The effect of these adjustments have not been
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

Impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible assets

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had goodwill and intangible assets
of approximately HK$36,153,000 (2018: HK$36,153,000) and
HK$193,020,000 (2018: HK$202,917,000), respectively, which were
belong to the Group’s cash generating unit of e-Commerce and
e-Payment operation (the "CGU") and recognised under Held for
Sales in the consolidated statement of financial position of the
Group.

An impairment assessment of the CGU has been performed by the
Directors of the Company (the “Impairment Assessment”). As a result
of the Impairment Assessment, no impairment loss has been
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
satisfy ourselves that (i) the relevance and reasonableness of key
assumptions used in the Impairment Assessment; and (ii) the
relevance, completeness and accuracy of source data used in the
Impairment Assessment. Accordingly, we were unable to satisfy
ourselves that the Group's carrying value of goodwill and intangible
assets as at 31 March 2018 and 2019 were fairly stated.

Any adjustments that might have been found necessary might have
an effect on the Group's net liabilities at as 31 March 2018 and 2019,
and its financial performance and cash flows of the Group for the
years then ended, and the related disclosures thereof in the
consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB E

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA and to issue an auditor’s report. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. However, because of the matters described in the
Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we were not able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit
opinion on these consolidated financial statements. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor's report is Yip Kai Yin with Practising Certificate number P05131.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

10/F, 8 Observatory Road
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

28 June 2019
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
W R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE 201943 A31 HILFE

2019 2018
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
M7 FET FET
Continuing operations BFEREER
Revenue Wz 5 110,349 346,157
Cost of sales SHER AR 6 (70,444) (171,069)
Gross profit EF 39,905 175,088
Selling and distribution costs HE RS KA 6 (115,329) (251,757)
Administrative expenses THER 6 (73,048) (103,728)
Other gains or losses Hia kg E 8 (33,676) 30,552
Other income Hablg A 9 3,375 4,000
Operating loss KEEER (178,773) (145,845)
Finance income iR ON 11 12,495 9,701
Finance costs I E R 11 (77,508) (69,502)
Finance costs, net BIFSER - JF58 11 (65,013) (59,801)
Share of losses of associates FEMREEE RN R 2 BB (2,300) (1,634)
Loss before income tax RETFT B ATEIE (246,086) (207,280)
Income tax credit FTiSfiif e 12 = 586
Loss for the year from continuing TEERBFELSEXEKER
operations (246,086) (206,694)
Discontinued operations RIS
Loss for the year from discontinued AFEERBARLEEERER
operations 7 (11,300) (2,689)
Loss for the year REEEE (257,386) (209,383)
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
W R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE 201943 A31 HILFE

2019 2018
Note HK$’000 HKS$'000
liF TR FET
Attributable to: FEqE -
Equity holders of the Company RRFERFEEA
From continuing operations RARFBEEED (245,361) (206,076)
From discontinued operations KRB EER (11,236) (2,600)
Loss for the year attributable to equity RNARIETHH AL
holders of the Company NEZEE (256,597) (208,676)
Non-controlling interests FEPE R MR
From continuing operations REFHEKEET (725) 618)
From discontinued operations AR EER (64) (89)
Loss for the year attributable to IR R BT EEE
non-controlling interests (789) (707)
Loss for the year attributable to: AR FEEE -
Equity holders of the Company RRAEREEA (256,597) (208,676)
Non-controlling interests FEIE R (789) (707)
(257,386) (209,383)
Loss per share for loss from continuing and RRBERFE AEILERER
discontinued operations attributable to BRI EEBEBERZ
equity holders of the Company T EE (AERAIWLYIE)
(expressed in HK cents per share)
— Basic —EK 13 (35.83) (29.14)
— Diluted — %8 13 (35.83) (29.14)
Loss per share for loss from continuing RARIERFE AELRER
operations attributable to equity holders BREEBEBERBZSRER
of the Company (expressed (LAZREABLZIE)
in HK cents per share)
— Basic — HAK 13 (34.26) (28.77)
— Diluted —#E 13 (34.26) (28.77)
Loss per share for loss from discontinued RNRERTEABEREL
operations attributable to equity holders IHEEE TS EE s §REE
of the Company (expressed (AgRRBILZIE)
in HK cents per share)
— Basic — &K 13 (1.57) (0.37)
— Diluted — %5 13 (1.57) (037)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated  BEMIF X DM S A MERER 2 — 5 °
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

SEEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE 201943 A31 HILFE

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THET
Loss for the year S FEEBER (257,386) (209,383)
Other comprehensive income Hi 2wk
Items that have been reclassified or may be EENDESEEBTENHE
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss FE=mIEE
Currency translation differences EmEEE (8,498) 14,729
Total items that have been reclassified EENMIERHETERSE
or may be subsequently reclassified to FIEBRZEBAE
profit or loss _(8498) 14,729
Total comprehensive income for the year AFEEXHREEE (265,884) (194,654)
Attributable to: BEh
Equity holders of the Company EAYNGIE:£E 2SN
From continuing operations RERBBEREER (254,051) (191,137)
From discontinued operations RERIEEEETR (11,273) (2,509)
Total comprehensive income for the year RAEIEZEE AREAREE
attributable to equity holders of the Company PHEN B (265,324) (193,646)
Non-controlling interests IR R
From continuing operations RERFBLEED (489) (933)
From discontinued operations RE K FEEETR (71) (75)
Total comprehensive income for the year IR R (R AT E
attributable to non-controlling interests FHEW B (560) (1,008)
Total comprehensive income for the year B TEAEERFE
attributable to PHEWELEHE
Entity holders of the Company RAFRERFTAA (265,324) (193,646)
Non-controlling interests FEIE R (560) (1,008)
(265,884) (194,654)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
BRI

As At31 March 2019 7201943 A 31 H

Deposits, prepayments and other

we  ANFEREM

2019 2018
Note HK$’000 HKS$'000
B THExT FE&TT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M WEKEE 15 3,389 7,958
Intangible assets EEE 16 373 804
Investment in a joint venture RE B NEZIRE 17 510 510
Interests in associates REE AR 2w 18 12,962 6,530
Available-for-sale financial assets AHESREE 19 - 6,248
Long-term deposits and prepayments REPIZS RIBEHRIE 22 1,155 11,363
18,389 33,413
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 20 2,509 97,010
Trade receivables FEWE 5 5k18 21 4,390 38,323

receivables FEU FhIE 22 114,612 136,014
Loan receivables FEE 23 135,846 130,873
Amounts due from associates FE U B2 N B A 18 6,469 3,662
Cash and cash equivalents BeIEEEEER 24 1,763 53,514

265,589 459,396
Non-current assets classified as held for sale DB AEAEELE Y
ERBEE 25 245,111 241,830
7777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 510,700 /01,226
Total assets EERE 529,089 734,639
EQUITY e
Capital and reserves attributable to AATEREE ABGERE
equity holders of the Company K #E
Share capital A% A 26 71,619 71,619
Share premium f& 3% B 26 673,503 673,503
Other reserves Hib s 27 114,486 120,451
Accumulated losses 2tEE (1,086,568) (827,603)
(226,960) 37,970
Non-controlling interests FEIE R (1,327) (767)
Total equity EREE (228,287) 37,203
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
BRI

As At31 March 2019 7201943 A 31 H

2019 2018
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BaE TFHExT FH&T
LIABILITIES =R+
Current liabilities REBBE
Trade payables JETE 5 F0E 28 62,872 102,737
Accruals and other payables Bzt & A &EIJ’MEH RI8 28 54,242 36,577
Amount due to an associate AR NEIE =] 2,445 _
Borrowings BE 29 - 5130
Obligation under finance lease &S AR 30 97 97
Convertible bonds AR B 55 31 141,522 17,550
Corporate bond RNElESH 32 400,323 -
Current tax liabilities ENERRIIE B (& 1,006 1,077
662,507 163,168
Liabilities directly associated with HAOMBFREELE ZIER
non-current assets classified PEEEEAB AR
as assets held for sale 25 66,477 52,408
728,984 215,576
Non-current liabilities FERBEME
Obligation under finance lease RbE S AR 30 32 129
Convertible bonds AT AR AR 25 31 28,360 137,053
Corporate bond RNElEH 32 - 344,678
28,392 481,860
Net current (liabilities)/assets FE(EE) BESE (218,284) 485,650
Total liabilities =NEEEE 757,376 697,436
Total equity and liabilities EEkEERAE 529,089 734,639

The consolidated financial statement on pages 63 to 172 were approved £ 632172 B 2 8 M BRI EEE S 2019
by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2019 and were signed on its behalf: FeoH2AHMME  WHTIHEEREXEE

Zhu Xiaojun Kang Jianming
RERE B2 5
Director Director

EFE EE

SN

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated — BEF M s VB ZSEEA M BRERZ — 5D
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mERREER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE 201943 A31 HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

I/ 68

AAREREEAES
Share capital Non-
and Other Accumulated controlling Total
premium reserves losses Sub-total interests equity
BRER
RAEE Httfe 2itER M FERES ERAE
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TR TR TAT TAT TAT TAT
(Note 26)
(Hizt26)
Balance at 1 April 2017 R2017F4 A1 B 2R 745122 184,265 (713,302) 216085 21 216326
Comprehensive income 2EME
Loss for the year AEEREE - - (208,676) (208,676) (707) (209,383)
Other comprehensive income Htt2EKE
Currency translation differences ERREEE - 15,030 - 15030 (301) 14729
Reversal upon disposal of land and building  {H& 13 R i F 7 [B1 5 - (94,375) 94375 - - -
Total comprehensive income FEKRELE - (79,345) (114301) (193,646) (1,008) (194,654)
Transactions with owners: EEARS
Share option scheme — value of BiREE - EEREER
employee services (Note 34) (Wist34) - 15,531 - 15,531 - 15,531
Total transactions with owners BEARGHAE - 15,531 - 15,531 - 15,531
Balance at 31 March 2018 R2018F3 A31 B2 &t 745,122 120451 (827,603) 37970 (767) 37,203
Balance at 1 April 2018 R2018F4 51 B2 &8 745,122 120,451 (827,603) 37,970 (767) 37,203
Adjustment on initial application MEEAT AR BRE LR
of HKFRS 9 FORMIEL 2 HE = = (2,368) (2,368) = (2,368)
Adjusted Balance at 1 April 2018 R2018F4 B 1 B2 EARER 745,122 120,451 (829,971) 35,602 (767) 34,835
Comprehensive income 2EME
Loss for the year AEEREE - - (256,597) (256,597) (789) (257,386)
Other comprehensive income Htt2EKE
Currency translation differences S EE - (8,727) - (8,727) 229 (8,498)
Total comprehensive income FERELE - (8,727) (256,597) (265,324) (560) (265,884)
Transactions with owners: BEARS:
Share option scheme — value of B2 — EERBEER
employee services (Note 34) (Bi7t34) - 2,762 = 2,762 - 2,762
Total transactions with owners BEARGHAE - 2,762 - 2,762 - 2,762
Balance at 31 March 2019 R2019F3 A31 Az Ae 745,122 114,486 (1,086,568) (226,960) (1,327) (228,287)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
:nv_\éiﬁﬁﬁiﬂ%

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE 201943 A31 HILFE

2019 2018
Note HK$’000 HKS$'000
B EE FET FET
Cash flows from operating activities REEKZHRERE
Cash used in operations KEMAZEA® 35 (59,315) (94,252)
Interest paid BRFE (28) (1,920)
Net cash used in operating activities REERFTRH R & F58 (59,343) (96,172)
Cash flows from investing activities BRETBHZHESRE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment B A% - 5 M & 15 (622) (6,215)
Purchases of intangible assets BABTLEE 16 - (9,612)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  BELEREZ
plant and equipment Fr1S 5018 148 127,992
Proceeds from disposal of assets held forsale HEFHIEHEEEY
FriS kI8 - 21,948
Interest received EHFIE 4,010 45
Increase in assets held for sale BIEREEEEN 10,745 -
Proceeds from disposal/(Acquisition) of HeE (W) aHHe
available-for-sale financial assets TREEMSHIE 6,248 (6,248)
Capital increment of associates B Nm g - (1,445)
Refundable advance payment ARETRN IR - (98,881)
Loans to third parties ME=ZFER (4,586) (121,217)
Advance to associate Bl NS E N - (3,662)
Cash outflow from disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR ZHERA (904) -
Net cash generated from/(used in) BB EEE, (FTA)
investing activities 2B 15,039 (97,295)
Cash flows from financing activities BMEETHCHERE
Repayment of borrowings BEEE (5,130) (67,110)
Repayment of interest of convertible bonds B8 AJ# I (&5 2 FI & 31 (6,556) (17,550)
Repayment of interest of corporate bond BERREHZFE - (31,500)
Capital elements of finance lease payments B &M EN R 2 EAREZ 5D (97) (104)
Proceeds from issuance of new bond BITHES 215518 - 329,000
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEEE (FTA), /s
financing activities e FE (11,783) 212,736
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ReRESEEER
cash equivalents CR2),/Bhn$EE (56,087) 19,269
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning  F# 2R & RIFSEHEER
of the year 53,514 32,839
Exchange differences MEH ZRE 4,336 1,406

Cash and cash equivalents at the end FRZBEeRBELEHEER
of the year 24 1,763 53,514

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated — FEMIMI IR 2 ZGA HBiRzk 2 — 25 o
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R MR

I/ 70

GENERAL INFORMATION

Vestate Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) are principally engaged in the retailing of
footwear in Hong Kong, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
and Taiwan, and e-Commerce and e-Payment business.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 10
November 2006 as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law (Cap. 22, Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The address of its registered
office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands. The headquarter and principal place
of business in Hong Kong has been changed from Suite 708, 7th
Floor, Champion Tower, 3 Garden Road, Central, Hong Kong to
Unit E 22/F, Tower A, Billion Centre, 1 Wang Kwong Road, Kowloon
bay, Kowloon since 4 January 2019.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the "Directors”), the
Company’s immediate and ultimate holding company is China
Consume Elderly Care Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in
the Republic of Seychelles.

The Company'’s shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of units of Hong Kong dollar (‘"HK$"), unless otherwise stated, which
is the same as the functional currency of the Company. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by
the Board on 28 June 2019.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA") and the applicable disclosure requirements
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by certain financial liabilities (including derivative
instruments) at fair value through profit or loss and assets held for
sale, which are carried at the lower of carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R MR

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

2.1

Going concern basis

The Group incurred a net loss of approximately
HK$257,386,000 for the year ended 31 March 2019 and had net
current liabilities of approximately HK$218,284,000 as at 31
March 2019.

These conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the ability
of the Group to continue as a going concern, and therefore,
that the Group may be unable to realise its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

In view of these circumstances, the Directors have given
careful consideration to the future liquidity of the Group, and
its available sources of financing in assessing whether the
Group has sufficient financial resources to continue as a going
concern. The Directors have reviewed the Group’s cash flow
projections prepared by management covering a period of
twelve months from 31 March 2019. In order to improve the
Group's financial position and alleviate the liquidity pressure,
the Directors have been implementing various measures as
follows:

(@)  On 13 June 2019, an independent third party granted a
stand-by revolving loan facilities of up to
RMB200,000,000 to the Group, which is available to draw
down on or before 30 June 2020. The loan facility is
guaranteed by Mr. ZHU Xiaojun, the Chairman of the
Company, and bears interest at 18% per annum. The
Directors believe that this loan facility is available for
draw down as additional working capital of the Group, as
and when needed.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

2.1

Going concern basis (Continued)

(b)  On 13 June 2019, China Investment S.p.A., a company
with 70% interest owned by Ms. CAl Jiaying, the Director
of the Company granted a stand-by revolving loan
facilities of up to Euro 20,000,000 to the Group, which is
available to draw down on or before 30 June 2021. The
loan facility bears interest at 9% per annum.

(c)  The Group is implementing various measures, such as
optimising its overall sales network by relocating certain
outlets, and controlling the costing to improve the profit
margin and operating cashflows of its footwear retailing
business.

(d)  The Group will also continue to seek for other alternative
financing and bank borrowings to finance the settlement
of its existing financial obligations and future operating
and capital expenditures.

The Directors are of the opinion that, taking into account the
above-mentioned plans and measures, the Group will have
sufficient working capital to finance its operations and to meet
its financial obligations as and when they fall due within the
next twelve months from 31 March 2019. Accordingly, the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to operate as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to reduce the carrying
values of the Group’s assets to their net realisable amounts, to
provide for further liabilities which might arise, and to reclassify
non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current assets
and current liabilities, respectively. The effect of these
adjustments has not been reflected in the consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R MR

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA") for the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and the related Amendments

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

HK(IFRIO)-Int 22

Amendments to Classification and Measurement of

HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment Transactions
Amendments to Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
HKFRS 4 with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to
HKAS 28

As part of the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to
HKAS 40

Transfers of Investment Property

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group's financial performance and positions for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11
Construction Contracts and the related interpretations.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
2.2 New and amended standards adopted by the Group

(Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect of initially applying this Standard recognised
at the date of initial application, 1 April 2018. Any difference at
the date of initial application is recognised in the opening
retained profits and comparative information has not been
restated. Furthermore, in accordance with the transition
provisions in HKFRS 15, the Group has elected to apply the
Standard retrospectively only to contracts that are not
completed at 1 April 2018 and has used the practical expedient
for all contract modifications that occurred before the date of
initial application, the aggregate effect of all of the
modifications was reflected at the date of initial application.
Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared under
HKAS 18 Revenue and HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and
the related interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue from the following major
sources which arise from contracts with customers:

Retailing of footwear; and
e-commerce and e-Payment
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R MR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED) 2 mBLELE (1)
2.2 New and amended standards adopted by the Group 2.2 REEFRNZHE] REBIEET £
(Continued) Al (&

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments and the related consequential amendments to
other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for (1) the
classification and measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities, (2) expected credit losses ("ECL") for financial assets
and other items (for example, contract assets, lease receivables
and financial guarantee contracts).

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the
transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied the
classification and measurement requirements (including
impairment under ECL model) retrospectively to instruments
that have not been derecognised as at 1 April 2018 (date of
initial application) and has not applied the requirements to
instruments that have already been derecognised as at 1 April
2018. The difference between carrying amounts as at 31 March
2018 and the carrying amounts as at 1 April 2018 are
recognised in the opening retained profits and other
components of equity, without restating comparative
information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be

comparable as comparative information was prepared under
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 9 are
disclosed in note 2.

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 9
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Carryingamount  Effect of adoption  Carrying amount

asat31March 2018 of HKFRS9  asat 1 April 2018

R2018F RAFBUBHRSE R2018F

3AIEZEEE ERAFFz¥E 4MAZKEE

HK$000 HKS'000 HKS'000

FET FET FET

Trade receivables e E 5508 38323 (36) 38,287
Deposits, prepayment and other B - BRFERAMEK

receivables E 136,014 (997) 135017

Loan receivables EWER 130,873 (1,337) 129,536

Accumulated losses ZitEE (827,603) (2,368) (829.971)
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I/ 76

the Group

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

HK(FRIO)-Int 23

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKAS 19

Amendments to
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Amendments to
HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKFRS 9

Amendments to

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

2.3 New and amended standards have been issued but
are not effective and have not been early adopted by

Leases'
Insurance Contracts?

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture*

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement!

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures!

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle!

Definition of a Business?
Prepayment Features with Negative

Compensation'
Definition of Material®
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HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2019.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021.

3 Effective for business combinations and assets acquisitions for

which the acquisition date is on or after the first period
beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs will
have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
2.3 New and amended standards have been issued but

are not effective and have not been early adopted by
the Group (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis
of whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer. In
addition, HKFRS 16 requires sales and leaseback transactions to
be determined based on the requirements of HKFRS 15 as to
whether the transfer of the relevant asset should be accounted
as a sale.

HKFRS 16 also includes requirements relating to subleases and
lease modifications. Distinctions of operating leases and
finance leases are removed for lessee accounting, and is
replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases by
lessees, except for short-term leases and leases of low value
assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease
liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the
lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as
well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst others. For
the classification of cash flows, the Group currently presents
upfront prepaid lease payments as investing cash flows in
relation to leasehold lands for owned use and those classified
as investment properties while other operating lease payments
are presented as operating cash flows. Upon application of
HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will be
allocated into a principal and an interest portion which will be
presented as financing cash flows by the Group.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an asset and
a related finance lease liability for finance lease arrangement
and prepaid lease payments for leasehold lands where the
Group is a lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may result in
potential changes in classification of these assets depending
on whether the Group presents right-of-use assets separately
or within the same line item at which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were owned.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
2.3 New and amended standards have been issued but

are not effective and have not been early adopted by
the Group (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable to
lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require
a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease or a
finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16
(see note 38).

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of HK$15,752,000 as disclosed in note 38.
A preliminary assessment indicates that these arrangements
will meet the definition of a lease. Upon application of HKFRS
16, the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability in respect of all these leases unless they
qualify for low value or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental
deposits paid of HK$8,352,000 as rights and obligations under
leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the definition of
lease payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are not
payments relating to the right to use the underlying assets,
accordingly, the carrying amounts of such deposits may be
adjusted to amortised cost. Adjustments to refundable rental
deposits paid would be considered as additional lease
payments and included in the carrying amount of right of-use
assets.

The application of new requirements may result in changes in
measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated above.
The Group intends to elect the practical expedient to apply
HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified as leases
applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply this standard to
contracts that were not previously identified as containing a
lease applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4. Therefore, the
Group will not reassess whether the contracts are, or contain a
lease which already existed prior to the date of initial
application. Furthermore, the Group intends to elect the
modified retrospective approach for the application of HKFRS
16 as lessee and will recognise the cumulative effect of initial
application to opening retained profits without restating
comparative information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries. Inter-company
transactions and balances between group companies together
with unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
impairment on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition or up to
the dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with
those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for using
the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets
transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by
the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed are principally measured at acquisition-date
fair value. The Group's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The
Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to
measure the non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary either at fair value or at
the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other non-controlling interests are measured at fair
value unless another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless they are
incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case the costs
are deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent
adjustments to consideration are recognised against goodwill
only to the extent that they arise from new information
obtained within the measurement period (a maximum of 12
months from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the
acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments to
contingent consideration classified as an asset or a liability are
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3

I/ 80

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss
on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interest.
Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant assets or

liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership interests
in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests at initial
recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s share of
subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is
attributed to such non-controlling interests even if this results

in those non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

3.2 Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able to
exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all three
of the following elements are present: (1) power over the
investee, (2) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the
investee, and (3) the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of

these elements of control.

In the Company'’s statement of financial position, investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company

on the basis of dividend received and receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R MR

3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor a joint
arrangement. Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee

but not control or joint control over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and thereafter,
their carrying amount are adjusted for the Group's share of the
post-acquisition change in the associates’ net assets except
that losses in excess of the Group's interest in the associate are
not recognized unless there is an obligation to make good

those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the Group
and its associates are recognised only to the extent of
unrelated investors' interests in the associate. The investor's
share in the associate’s profits and losses resulting from these
transactions is eliminated against the carrying value of the
associate. Where unrealised losses provide evidence of
impairment of the asset transferred they are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of the
Group's share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and included in the
carrying amount of the associate. Where there is objective
evidence that the investment in an associate has been
impaired, the carrying amount of the investment is tested for

impairment in the same way as other non-financial assets.

3.4 Joint arrangements

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint arrangements.
Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint arrangements are
classified as either joint operations or joint ventures depending
on the contractual rights and obligations of each investor. The
Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements and
determined them to be joint ventures. Joint ventures are

accounted for using the equity method.

The Group is a party to a joint arrangement where there is a
contractual arrangement that confers joint control over the
relevant activities of the arrangement to the Group and at least
one other party. Joint control is assessed under the same

principles as control over subsidiaries.

3

FESTTBERME(E)
3.3 HEQT
BENTA—HAEEHEAHEE

3.4

AREEBIMUFEHBARRAZ
RHZER BEATENEAES
BT E 5 2 W KA EBRRORTE
ZHET) - HEH L F BRI AT 5
HEEHIHE -

BeEnARBESEAR B
It B DRGSR AR - 1t
REREEDAAKEEIGRE S
RAEEFMEZWBRES T IAH
B MRFAEETRHZSEHE
BRIBBARENE S AR WED
MBS R KT SR o

AREBEEBRENRIZE XS
EEZ B EATHEBRE N
BRR SRR T NER - &
TRIEZERHEL 2BE 17
Bam YRS AR REESH -
WEERERBREAMEREE
HIRRME - RERERG RN
BPHER -

BB E AR RRAEEEN
PR 2 Al BB E - BEREA
BEZRAFEZEMEEETE
Ao WEt AR AR ZREERA °
HEFEREBRRINEZE QAR
BHBRE - AIRE 2 BREER/MR
SREAS EMIFE R EERR. 2T
NETTRERH

e
AEBECHMERZELERER
MBHRELIEN 5 - REFE
BB mEEEN K REER
BZRENBERBEEBREER
A BT EREEZENENNE
BME - AEBCHEEAELH
ZHEYHEBEEREERA A
LRERERENE

EAANRIRTARERESS
— B TR OB 2 AR D
HRIEHIER - AAEBER A %
B2 TR - A BEHRTRE
ST 4 2 T 2 AR
T LARFAE -

Annual Report 2018/2019  2018/20194 %% 81 /KGN



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.4 Joint arrangements (Continued)

The Group classifies its interests in joint arrangements as either:

Joint ventures: where the Group has rights to only the
net assets of the joint arrangement; or

Joint operations: where the Group has both the rights to
assets and obligations for the liabilities of the joint
arrangement.

In assessing the classification of interests in joint arrangements,
the Group considers:

The structure of the joint arrangement;

The legal form of joint arrangements structured through
a separate vehicle;

The contractual terms of the joint arrangement
agreement; and

Any other facts and circumstances (including any other
contractual arrangements).

The Group accounts for its interests in joint ventures in the
same manner as investments in associates (i.e. using the equity
method).

Any premium paid for an investment in a joint venture above
the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and
included in the carrying amount of the investment in joint
venture. Where there is objective evidence that the investment
in a joint venture has been impaired, the carrying amount of
the investment is tested for impairment in the same way as
other non-financial assets.

The Group accounts for its interests in joint operations by
recognising its share of assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses in accordance with its contractually conferred rights
and obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R MR

3  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 FESHBRME (#)

(CONTINUED)

3.5 Goodwill 35 BmE
Where the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities exceed WMABREERBEZATFERR
the aggregate of the fair value of consideration paid, the ERREZAFE - REKEST
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the (BERZ T Frgpdsnt- PyND A=
acquisition date fair value of the acquirer's previously held W BAMSHEKETERZ AT
equity interest in the acquiree, the excess is recognised in B2 - AR5 & =T
profit or loss on the acquisition date, after re-assessment. B A EATE IR s FERR
Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses. For the R B IR AR EE R E o 3t
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an BARME - BEEmMEE 2 HE
acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating EHREERTERBEEMEET
units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the BEME 2 SHERSEEEN - 3]
acquisition. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable SEABUARANEE LBTRE
group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely MEENEELANEAZRESN
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of EWABEIRS 2 &/ AR EE
assets. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been Rl BB cReEEEN
allocated is tested for impairment annually, by comparing its AR LA BRE (A R E A E &
carrying amount with its recoverable amount (see note 3.15), BRMFE315)  BERRBTR
and whenever there is an indication that the unit may be P B8 A A2 3R R ORISR
impaired. & -
For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the BB B B AT U T E A&
cash-generating unit (“CGU") to which goodwill has been ZHEBMmME RZMBEEERA
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that RESREE R eEESEM (IR
financial year. When the recoverable amount of the cash- SEEBMN])ETRERG o Wik
generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, TEABNAIREEEDNEN
the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount REE  AEeEBRESE ERE
of any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the other ZEBLLFTE D Bl 2 AR R B LR
assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount HEEE EBRUZEMATIEE
to each asset in the unit. However, the loss allocated to each ERREAEERLISREZE
asset will not reduce the individual asset’s carrying amount to Uz BHMERE - AM - DEESE
below its fair value less cost of disposal (if measurable) or its BEZBEBITEEYBIEEL
value in use (if determinable), whichever is the higher. Any FHERZEAREAFERLEX
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss and ANt &) s A R EE (1
is not reversed in subsequent periods. EBE) (UBREER/E) HEEM

BEBBRIBRER  TERHR%
BAfE R E -

3.6 Segment reporting 3.6 DEME
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with K E s 237 B E a8
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision- RERANRE AT 2 WA —B o
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible BEDRERNEEE HERIR
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the ZEBEERRAN  DHER/NIE

operating segments, has been identified as the Executive REREZHITES °
Directors that make strategic decisions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3

I/ 84

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.7 Property, plant and equipment

Owner-occupied leasehold land and buildings are stated at
valuation less accumulated depreciation. Revaluations are
performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying
amount does not differ materially from that which would be
determined using fair values at the end of the reporting period.
Increases in value arising on revaluation are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of properties revaluation reserve. Decreases
in value arising on revaluation are first offset against increases
on earlier valuations in respect of the same property and
thereafter recognised in profit or loss. Any subsequent
increases are recognised in profit or loss up to the amount
previously charged and thereafter to the properties revaluation

reserve.

Upon disposal, the relevant portion of the revaluation reserve
realised in respect of previous valuations is released from the

properties revaluation reserve to retained earnings.

Other property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment

losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the

acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the financial

period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R MR

3  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 FESHBRME (#)

(CONTINUED)

3.7 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 3.7 WE - BEKXMEE)
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to write Y - WE RS ERESEERGE
off their cost or valuation net of expected residual value over A5 4 BB O B EL K AN S BR TE
their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The useful AR EEE 2 EEMTE - AfF
lives, residual value and depreciation method are reviewed, AEH - MnEERNERERS
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting WEBHRRY  TREERIKEA
period. The useful lives are as follows: o AIEAFHNT :
Leasehold land Over the lease term ME LT THEIA
Buildings 50 years BF 50
Leasehold improvements Over the lease term HEMEEE THEAA
Motor vehicles 25% B 25%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20% Bk~ B NEE 20%
Computer equipment 20% BIEEE 20%
An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable W& ERmES R AT AIRE S
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset's o REESANRHURZEE AT
estimated recoverable amount. =i
Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their RRENERBECEERECHE
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets, or BEMRAR . EERETEHRAEAE
where shorter, the term of the relevant lease. Hisk (0ER52) IRRATE & 2 FERNIT

E o

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and HEE BERREEBMESE
equipment is the difference between the net sale proceeds 2 Mz kB HE LA HH & PSSR IRF R
and its carrying amount, and is recognised in profit or loss on HHEKRAB Z8ET  WHRHE
disposal. REEmER -

3.8 Intangible assets (other than goodwill) 3.8 |IEEE (BERIM)
Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised at BN R 2 BB E A SRR
cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business R REBAIPUEBERTLEE
combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition. ZERARBWERBRZ AFHE H
Subsequently, intangible assets with finite useful lives are & BERAIGEAFH ETLEE
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated BRKAR R R RETRERE
impairment losses. HIHR o
Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over their HIHIRE A ERFHRAERER
useful lives as follows. Intangible assets with indefinite useful TXIRM - EmRAIERAFE &
lives are carried at cost less any accumulated impairment R ERKARBERRTRERE
losses. The amortization expense is recognised in profit or loss FIER - BIHE AN BR P R
and included in administrative expenses. AFTHRFAS o
Licence 25 years heE AR 254
Computer software 5 years EBRLET 54
Trademark 5 years (i3 5%
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.8

3.9

Vestate Group Holdings Limited El#&%

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for impairment
when there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment
annually, irrespective of whether there is any indication that
they may be impaired. Intangible assets are tested for
impairment by comparing their carrying amounts with their
recoverable amounts.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the impairment loss is treated as revaluation
decrease to the extent of its revaluation surplus.

Financial assets
Classification of financial assets
Accounting policy prior to 1 January 2018

All financial assets are initially measured at fair value on initial
recognition. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets (other than financial assets
held for trading and those designated at fair value through
profit or loss) (FVTPL) are added to the fair value of the financial
assets on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of held for trading and FVTPL
investments are recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Financial assets that are classified as “loans and receivables” or
“held-to-maturity investments” are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using an effective interest rate, less impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R MR

3  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 FESHBRME (#)
(CONTINUED)
3.9 Financial assets (Continued) 3.9 2@EEGE)
Classification of financial assets (Continued) TRIEEDE(E)

Accounting policy prior to 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Available-for-sale (AFS) equity investments are subsequently
measured at fair value with changes in fair value being
recognised in other comprehensive income accumulated
under "AFS investment revaluation reserve”. Amounts
previously recognised in “AFS investment revaluation reserve”
are reclassified to profit or loss upon impairment or disposal.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to
and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
investments are subsequently measured at cost less
impairment.

Dividends from AFS equity instruments are recognised in profit
or loss when the Group's right to receive the dividends is
established.

Available-for-debt investments are subsequently measured at
fair value with changes in fair value being recognised in other
comprehensive income accumulated under “AFS investment
revaluation reserve” except for (a) interest income measured
using the effective interest method and (b) foreign exchange
gains or losses determined based on the amortised cost of
debt investments are recognised in profit or loss.

Held-for-trading investments and FVTPL assets are
subsequently measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
being recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R MR

3

I/ 88

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.9 Financial assets (Continued)

Classification of financial assets (Continued)
Accounting policy from 1 January 2018

Investments in equity securities (other than investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures)

An investment in equity securities is measured fair value on
initial recognition. An investment in equity securities is
subsequently measured at FVTPL unless the investment is
designated as at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVTOCI) as at date of initial application of HKFRS 9
based on the specific transitional provisions set out in HKFRS 9.
Under HKFRS 9, an investment in equity securities can be
designated as at FVTOCI on an instrument-by-instrument basis
provided that the investment is neither held-for-trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by the Group in a
business combination to which HKFRS 3 applies.

For investments in equity securities designated as at FVTOCI (as
described above), fair value changes are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the “FVTOCI
(equity investment) reserve”. Such fair value changes will not
be reclassified to profit or loss when the investments are
derecognised. However, they will be transferred to the Group's
retained earnings when the investments are derecognised.

For investments in equity securities that are held-for-trading or
not designated as at FVTOCI (as described above), they are
subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL) such that changes in fair value are recognised in profit
or loss.

An investment in equity securities is derecognised when the
Group sells the investment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.9 Financial assets (Continued)

3 FESHBEEHSMEGE

3.9 SREE (&)

Classification of financial assets (Continued)
Accounting policy from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Investments in debt securities

An investment in debt securities is classified as follows
depending on the instruments’ contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group'’s business model for managing
the investment:

Amortised cost when (a) the contractual terms of the
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payment of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding and (b) the financial asset is held
within a business model whose objective is achieved by
collecting contractual cash flows.

FVTOCI when (a) the contractual terms of the asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payment of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding and (b) the financial asset is held
within a business model whose objective is achieved by
both collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial asset.

FVTPL when either (a) the contractual terms of the asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are not
solely payment of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding or (b) the financial asset is held
within a business whose objective is neither (i) collecting
contractual cash flows nor (ii) collecting contractual cash
flows and selling the financial asset.

For investments in debt securities subsequently measured at
FVTOCI, fair value changes are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the “FVTOCI (debt
investment) reserve” except for impairment loss (see below)
and foreign exchange gains or losses. Interest income is
calculated using the effective interest method and is
recognised in profit or loss. When an investment in debt
securities is derecognised, the fair value changes previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified
from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment.

An investment in debt securities is derecognised when the
Group sells the investment or when the contractual rights to
the cash flows from the asset expire.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R MR

3  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3
(CONTINUED)

3.9 Financial assets (Continued)

TRETHEEE (H)

39 SRMEE (&)

Classification of financial assets (Continued)
Accounting policy from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Transaction costs

Transaction costs directly attributable for the acquisition of
financial assets (other than those classified or designated as at
FVTPL) are included in the initial measurement of the financial
assets. For financial assets subsequently measured at amortised
cost, such transaction costs are included in the calculation of
amortised cost using the effective interest method (i.e. in effect
amortised through profit or loss over the lives of the financial
assets). For investments in equity securities at FVTOCI, such
transaction costs are recognised in other comprehensive
income as part of change in fair value at the next
remeasurement. For investments in debt securities classified as
FVTOCI, such transaction costs are amortised to profit or loss
using the effective interest method (i.e. in effect amortised
through profit or loss over the lives of the financial assets).

Impairment on financial assets

Accounting policy prior to 1 January 2018

Prior to 1 January 2018, the Group had adopted “incurred loss
model” in assessing and measuring impairment losses on
financial assets. Under the “incurred loss model”, an
impairment loss was recognised when there were objective
indicators of impairment which included:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

significant changes in the technology, market, economic
or legal environment that have an adverse effect on the
debtor.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R MR

3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.9 Financial assets (Continued)
Classification of financial assets (Continued)
Accounting policy from 1 January 2018

The Group has applied the expected credit loss model under

HKFRS 9 to the following types of financial assets:

financial assets that are subsequently measured at
amortised cost (including cash and cash equivalents and

trade receivables):

contract assets as defined in HKFRS 15; and

investments in debt securities that are subsequently

measured at FVTOCI;

Expected credit loss (ECL) of a financial asset is measured
based on an unbiased and probability-weighted amount. It
also reflects the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available to the Group without
undue cost or effect at the reporting date about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions. The maximum period considered when estimating
ECL is the maximum contractual period over which the Group

is exposed to credit risk.

ECL is measured on either of the following bases:

12-month expected credit loss when, at the reporting
date, the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased

significantly since initial recognition; and

Lifetime expected credit loss when (a) at the reporting
date, the credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition; or (b) at the
reporting date, the financial asset has become credit-

impaired.

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers quantitative and qualitative reasonable and
supportable information that is available to the Group without
undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in

credit risk since initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Y/ 92

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.9 Financial assets (Continued)
Classification of financial assets (Continued)
Accounting policy from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Specifically, the following information has been taken into
account in assessing whether the credit risk on a financial asset
has significantly increased since initial recognition:

Significant changes in internal price indicators of credit
risk as a result of a change in credit risk since inception.

Significant changes in terms of existing financial assets if
the asset was newly originated or issued at the reporting
date.

Significant changes in external market indicators of
credit risk for a particular financial instrument or similar
financial instruments with the same expected life.

An actual or expected significant change in the financial
instrument’s external credit rating.

An actual or expected internal credit rating downgrade
for the borrower or decrease in behavioural scoring used
to assess credit risk internally.

Existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant change in the borrower’s ability to meet its
debt obligations (e.g. actual or expected increase in
interest rates or an actual or expected significant increase
in unemployment rates).

Actual or expected significant change in the operating
results of the borrower.

Significant change in the quality of guarantee provided.

Contractual cash flows are more than 30 days past due.

In making the abovementioned assessment, the Group
considers that a default occurs when (a) it is unlikely that the
borrower will be able to settle his/her debts in full and (b) the
financial asset is more than 90 days past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R MR

3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.9

3.10

Financial assets (Continued)
Classification of financial assets (Continued)
Accounting policy from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

ECL is remeasured at the end of each reporting period to
reflect changes in financial asset’s credit risk since initial
recognition. Changes in ECL are recognised in profit or loss
with the corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of
the asset through a loss allowance account, except for
investments in debt securities that are subsequently measured
at FVTOCI for which the corresponding adjustment is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in “FVTOCI (debt investment) reserve”.

For trade receivables and contract assets without significant
financing component, ECL is always measured at an amount
equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

At the end of each of the reporting period, the Group assesses
whether its financial assets have become credit impaired.

The Group directly reduces the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset when the Group has no reasonable expectations
of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. This is generally the time when the Group assesses
and concludes that the debtor is unable to settle the debts in
full or part of the debts

Trade and other receivables
Accounting policy prior to 1 January 2018

A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the Group
will not be able to collect the amounts due.

Accounting policy from 1 January 2018

Trade receivables are recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. The Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration when only the
passage of time is required before payment of the
consideration is due.
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Y/ 94

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.10 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Accounting policy from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

For the Group's trade receivables, ECL is always measured at an
amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. In particular,
ECL is estimated using a provision of matrix based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for (a)
information that is specific to particular debtors and (b)
forward-looking information based on the current and forecast
general economic conditions available to the Group without
undue cost or effort at the reporting date. ECL is recognised in
profit or loss with the corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of the trade receivables through a loss

allowance account.

The Group directly reduces the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset when the Group has no reasonable expectations
of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. This is generally the time when the Group assesses
and concludes that the debtor is unable to settle the debts in

full or part of the debts.

3.11 Contract assets and contract liabilities

Accounting policy from 1 January 2018

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer when that right is conditioned on

something other than the passage of time.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has

received consideration from the customer.

For a single contract with a customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented. Contracts assets
and contract liabilities arising from unrelated multiple contracts

are not presented on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 TESHBEBE (&)
(CONTINUED)
3.11 Contract assets and contract liabilities (Continued) 31 AHNEEREGHNERB(E)
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Accounting policy from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

As mentioned in Note 2, the Group has applied HKFRS 15 for
the first time for the current year using the cumulative effect
transition method. Adjustments were made as at 1 April 2018
to reclassify certain amounts from “trade and other receivables”
and “gross amount due from customers” to “contract assets”
and certain amounts from ‘trade and other payables” and
“gross amount due to customers” to “contract liabilities”.
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For the Group's contract assets, ECL is always measured at an
amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. In particular,
ECL is estimated using a provision of matrix based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for (a)
information that is specific to particular customers available
and (b) forward-looking information based on the current and
forecast general economic conditions at the reporting date.
ECL is recognised in profit or loss with the corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the contract assets
through a loss allowance account.
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The Group directly reduces the gross carrying amount of a
contract asset when the Group has no reasonable expectations
of recovering a contract asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. This is generally the time when the Group assesses

and concludes that the Group is unable to recover the costs. AN o
3.12 Financial liabilities 312 2RBE

Accounting policy prior to 1 January 2018

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending on the
purpose for which the liabilities were incurred. Financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially
measured at fair value and financial liabilities at amortised
costs are initially measured at fair value, net of directly

attributable costs incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.12 Financial liabilities (Continued)

Accounting policy prior to 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade and other
payables, borrowings, certain preference shares and the debt
element of convertible loan note issued by the Group are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. The related interest expense is recognised in
profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the amortisation
process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments through
the expected life of the financial asset or liability, or where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments to a
creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or in part as a
result of renegotiating the terms of that liability, the equity
instruments issued are the consideration paid and are
recognised initially and measured at their fair value on the date
the financial liability or part thereof is extinguished. If the fair
value of the equity instruments issued cannot be reliably
measured, the equity instruments are measured to reflect the
fair value of the financial liability extinguished. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability or part
thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is recognised
in profit or loss for the year.
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3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.12 Financial liabilities (Continued)
Accounting policy from 1 January 2018

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending on the
purpose for which the liabilities were incurred. Financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially
measured at fair value and financial liabilities at amortised
costs are initially measured at fair value, net of directly

attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through

profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for

trading are recognised in profit or loss.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded derivatives,
the entire hybrid contract may be designated as a financial
liability at fair value through profit or loss, except where the
embedded derivative does not significantly modify the cash
flows or it is clear that separation of the embedded derivative

is prohibited.

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss if the following criteria are
met: (i) the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the
inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from
measuring the liabilities or recognising gains or losses on them
on a different basis; (ii) the liabilities are part of a group of
financial liabilities which are managed and their performance
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management strategy; or (iii) the financial
liability contains an embedded derivative that would need to

be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss in the period

in which they arise.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.13 Non-current assets held for sale and disposal groups

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held
for sale when:

they are available for immediate sale;
management is committed to a plan to sell;

it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan will be
made or that the plan will be withdrawn;

an active programme to locate a buyer has been
initiated:;

the asset or disposal group is being marketed at a
reasonable price in relation to its fair value; and

a sale is expected to complete within 12 months from
the date of classification.

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for
sale are measured at the lower of:

their carrying amount immediately prior to being
classified as held for sale in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy; and

fair value less costs to sell.

Following their classification as held for sale, non-current assets
(including those in a disposal group) are not depreciated.

The results of operations disposed of during the year are
included in profit or loss up to the date of disposal.
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3  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 FESTTERBE (&)

(CONTINUED)

3.14 Inventories 314 78
Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently at 7(_ SR AR - HIRIRAR
the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost comprises all AEEFEMER 2 BRIEER
costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred 7R ﬁ)ZZlS@%Fﬁ*ﬁ%ﬁ%WZJS i
in bringing the inventories to their present location and R R GTF B X210 A B RER
condition. Cost is calculated using the weighted average WEAMAPTE &£ 2 H KA o B
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling BN AR E o AR R {EE
price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated HEXKEREST 2 Bt EERMART
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to FTLIAARRETIHE L E Z 5T
make the sale. PN

3.15 Impairment of non-financial assets 315 FEmEERE
At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the REFRERR  NEERTATE
carrying amounts of the following assets to determine whether EZREE  ULEEEER B EMT
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an RETRESEER T RERES R
impairment loss or an impairment loss previously recognised IR REBEEETEEE
no longer exists or may have decreased: AR D -

intangible assets; . BIZEE
property, plant and equipment under cost model; and . BIBKARRAE 2 ME

R Rkt &

investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures . RWBAF - BERARRAE
(except for those classified as held for sale or included in ERRIZERE (BRZEIER
a disposal group that is classified as held for sale) (see BHBEELEXFAESER
note 3.13) BEELEZHEARZEZ
SN (R 3E3.13)
If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value less EREEZTWESEBIARF
costs of disposal and value in use) of an asset is estimated to BREEXKTEAFRAEEs RS
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the RE)EFEREREER - A
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss ? JEEEDAREETKE S
is recognized as an expense immediately, unless the relevant B oOREBENNERRAX - &
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another HKFRS, in MHEEERES BBV BmELE
which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation Bz E A5 ERAIRIN - FEULIER
decrease under that HKFRS. T REBEBREZESHBRE

ZRIRREEDRD
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R MR

3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.15

3.16

3.17

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, to the extent that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase under that HKFRS.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset or CGU, discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset or cash generating unit.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held
at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturity of three months or less.

Income tax

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred
tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary activities
adjusted for items that are non-assessable or disallowable for
income tax purposes and is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R MR

3  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 FESTTERBE (&)

(CONTINUED)

3.17 Income tax (Continued) 3.17 FREH (&)
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences BEERIB BB RE 2 EERS
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for (P Hﬁﬁfﬁiﬁi?ﬂ%ﬂ‘%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁﬂﬁ
financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts M EREZHEER BRIATER:
used for tax purposes. Except for goodwill and recognised o e u%ﬁ/ﬁnf'JZﬁ]@&EﬁEE BE
assets and liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable AR SRABERANERE
profits, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable HHRARLEHBEEE RIENIEER
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to ERB r] sEB) A FE R T s A 88 1]
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be HMRERZFE BN TR - BT
available against which deductible temporary differences can MIBRTEREAREREENEE
be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates BEREBEAEREHREEMHLE
appropriate to the expected manner in which the carrying B EEM 2 R E -

amount of the asset or liability is realised or settled and that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
reporting period.

An exception to the general requirement on determining the EREVMERBEEGTERIFE 40
appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred tax amount is SRR EME] BRRATFEIEE T
when an investment property is carried at fair value under EEARGFEEERIBESE  AE
HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless the presumption is BRZ —RREZIFRIER - BRIE
rebutted, the deferred tax amounts on these investment REWHR - SRIZEREME
properties are measured using the tax rates that would apply T IB &R iR S B BiEA
on sale of these investment properties at their carrying RIFERmELEZSREME S
amounts at the reporting date. The presumption is rebutted MEFE - SREMEATINER
when the investment property is depreciable and is held HEEXBENABERE(MIESHBD
within a business model whose objective is to consume E)EEERZEMENTZEH
substantially all the economic benefits embodied in the KBNS EFBEAPFE - AR
property over time, rather than through sale. RMEHER

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary MRMB AR - e r RERE
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates %'JEE“%Z&QEEZ%%%RE Ry 2=
and jointly controlled entities, except where the Group is able HRRELENIEEE  ERNEERE
to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is THIE R AR ARERERE
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the RAFIRETEA] RAg2R T T #0215
foreseeable future. JUERSD o

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when they PG I s i sR - MMM PT1S AR
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income in SR EMmEEmbEPERCERES
which case the taxes are also recognised in other ARSI  FEILERT - FREHIR
comprehensive income or when they relate to items REMEEWEER - L EE
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are also EREaERCEEER  TB
recognised directly in equity. T BIBIEERERER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R MR

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 FESTTBERME(E)
(CONTINUED)
3.18 Foreign currency 3.18 Hhi&

Transactions entered into by the group entities in currencies
other than the currency of the primary economic environment
in which they operate (the “functional currency”) are recorded
at the rates ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign
currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the
rates ruling at the end of reporting period. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period
except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income, in which case, the
exchange differences are also recognised in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollar) at the average exchange rates for
the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the rates approximating to those
ruling when the transactions took place are used. All assets
and liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the rate
ruling at the end of reporting period. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity interests as appropriate). Exchange
differences recognised in profit or loss of group entities’
separate financial statements on the translation of long term
monetary items forming part of the Group’s net investment in
the foreign operation concerned are reclassified to other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as foreign
currency translation reserve.

-/ 102 Vestate Group Holdings Limited Bi&EEZERAFR QA

AEBEERAEKEMETIELR
REzERE ([T’ ) Mz E
WETRS  DAETRIRZR
TERGRK - INEEBEERAR
BHRERRZBRITERBRE - 2R
FEERMAINETEZ IFEH IR
BRETAVFEERAZEREHGR
B mINEELRANGEZIFE
BB MEEHBRE -

REMMBERABMELZER
ZRNEEL RN IS PR -
EFMMERATEIIRZIFEEIR
BFTELZE L ZBAAZHREZ
B EEFREERABLEMY
PEWNERZIFEEHBMES
ZEBRIN EUIBT - BHER
ERITNEAM 2 E RS R

REF BB - BINEBZ WA
B FERPHEXSRE RAEE
ZE2HNEE (AT - HERHERR
HIA KRR EARRIN - EUIER
T BIRETTR B RA 2 BAE
KpE - BINKBZMBEENA
BRBEPRZBTERERE - ;
BEAZERZB(MB)REMLE
E s R - W R AT (A8
) REBERZ B MHRE
PR EERANREBIN TR E
FE-Ho 2 RPEKREAMRE
SR ELER  EMNBEEH
fo 2 mEUas - WD RETRINE
BERFEE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R MR

3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.19 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Short term employee benefit

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected to be
settled wholly before twelve months after the end of the
annual reporting period in which the employees render
the related service. Short term employee benefits are
recognised in the year when the employees render the
related service.

Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss when the
services are rendered by the employees.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of termination
benefits.

Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees and
others providing similar services, the fair value of the
services received is measured by reference to the fair
value of the options at the date of grant. Such fair value
is recognised in profit or loss over the vesting period
with a corresponding increase in the share option
reserve within equity. Non market vesting conditions are
taken into account by adjusting the number of equity
instruments expected to vest at the end of each
reporting period so that, ultimately, the cumulative
amount recognised over the vesting period is based on
the number of options that eventually vest. Market
vesting conditions are factored into the fair value of the
options granted. As long as all non-market vesting
conditions are satisfied, a charge is made irrespective of
whether the market vesting conditions are satisfied. The
cumulative expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve
a market vesting condition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R MR

3  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 FEETNEESEE)

(CONTINUED)

3.19 Employee benefits (Continued) 319 EERF (8)

(d) Share-based payments (Continued)

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified
before they vest, the increase in the fair value of the
options, measured immediately before and after the
modification, is also recognised in profit or loss over the
remaining vesting period.

The Group also operates a phantom share option
scheme which is determined to be a cash-settled share-
based payment transaction with employees. An option
pricing model is used to measure the Group’s liability at
grant date and subsequently at the end of each
reporting period, taking into account the terms and
conditions on which the bonus is awarded and the
extent to which employees have rendered service.
Movements in the liability (other than cash payments)
are recognised in profit or loss.

3.20 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, which it is probable will result
in an outflow of economic benefits that can be reliably
estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R MR

3  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 FESTTERBE (&)
(CONTINUED)
3.21 Revenue recognition 3.21 WaRER

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received W BIERAEE R B EEBREP

or receivable for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary BIHE & R RS 2 U B (E

course of the Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of value- ZNTE o WaRHIRIEET - [

added tax, rebates, returns and discounts and after eliminated SRR 3 AN S B R B

sales within the Group. THERARR o

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue Eam e R SEHETE  AIRER

can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic RELEN S RAEE N T

benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been AEBEREEBETARERE

met for each of the Group's activities as described below. The AEESERWD RNEBEHEEZ

amount of revenue is not considered to be reliably measurable FIBSAZIED AR - NEET

until all contingencies relating to the sale have been resolved. SRR ATRR A SEHEE - K

The Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking into EEBBEL EEETEFT  EF

consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction BEREPELY  RS5BEAREIA

and the specifics of each arrangement. ZHEZ B

(a) Sale of goods (@ SHEEm
The Group operates a chain of retail outlets for selling REBAHEERKETE
footwear. Sale of goods are recognized when a group EHE EEEERHEE
entity sells a product to the customer. Retail sales are mTEPRHEREEER -
usually in cash or by credit card. ZEHE - MRURESHER

REEE -

(b) Sales of goods — wholesale (b) SHEEm —#HLH
The Group sells a range of footwear products in the Zl»‘%ﬁé\ﬁt%?ﬁi%ifﬁ
wholesale market. Sales of goods are recognised when a BHEEL EEEE E‘” 3
group entity has delivered products to the wholesaler, NEMTIER mMitEn
the wholesaler has full discretion over the channel and HHEEM REREBRE
price to sell the products, and there is no unfulfilled TOMIEHE - BXMAKET
obligation that could affect the wholesale's acceptance LEET B EEENZ
of the products. Delivery does not occur until the EEm AXEERAHEE
products have been shipped to the specified location, Eme REMNEZETH
the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred BoREABNRKEXERE
to the wholesaler, and either the wholesaler has EBTHERRAERNDIE
accepted the products in accordance with sales contract, RIEESHNEMNER  BER
the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the objective BXBERUSAEGRRER
evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been fﬁ%%ZFﬁﬁT&“f&i’JELﬁ
satisfied. CREBTEERZN o

(c) Interestincome (0 FEWA
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis FEWAFABERF S EE
using the effective interest method. B P EE ) LR AR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R MR

3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.21 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(d) Licence fee and royalty income

Licence fee and royalty income is recognised on an
accrual basis in accordance with the substance of the
relevant agreements.

(e) Rentalincome

Operating lease rental income is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the lease period.

3.22 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

3.23 Lease

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to lessee. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded
as receivables at the amount of the Group’s net investment in
the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting
periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the
Group’s net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognized as an expense on the straight-line basis
over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as
assets at their fair value or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments. The corresponding lease
commitment is shown as a liability. Lease payments are
analysed between capital and interest. The interest element is
charged to profit or loss over the period of the lease and is
calculated so that it represents a constant proportion of the
lease liability. The capital element reduces the balance owed
to the lessor.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R MR

3  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3
(CONTINUED)

3.23 Lease (Continued)

TRETHEEE (H)

3.23 HE (&)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised as an
integrated part of the total rental expense, over the term of the
lease.

The land and buildings elements of property leases are
considered separately for the purposes of lease classification.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentive received from the lessor and exclusive of any
turnover rental payments which are calculated by reference to
a pre-determined percentage of a tenant’s monthly sales) are
expensed in the income statement on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease. Turnover rental payments are
recognised on an accrual basis.

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment, where the Group has
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership, are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the
lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair value of the
leased property and the present value of the minimum lease
payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance
balance outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations, net
of finance charges, are included in other short-term and other
long-term payables. The interest element of the finance cost is
charged to the consolidated income statement over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each period. The
property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases
is depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the asset
and the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R MR

3  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 FESTTERBE (&)
(CONTINUED)
3.24 Related parties 3.24 BEEA L
@ A person or a close member of that person’s family is @ MMEBATAL BIZZAT
related to the Group if that person: ZATZRERERFH
i
(i) has control or joint control over the Group; () BHASEEEH#EIHE

(] 422 il 4

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or iy HAEAEEBEAFE:
B4

(i) is a member of key management personnel of the iy AAEEHIAEELTA

Group or the Group's parent. RIZEBERBENE -
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following (b) fWFRFE T ERGRE - BIE
conditions apply: EEEEYNC e S )

()  The entity and the Group are members of the () ZEREASEBR—
same group (which means that each parent, SEZKERB(AE
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the (SN =W SR
others). RWE R RRILREE

i) o

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the iy —FERARS—EEBZ
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a /NS oA N /NI
member of a group of which the other entity is a (AZ—EBREEE
member). THEBRRZEE QR

HEERA) °

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third iy MEBEHAER—F=
party. TZEERT] -

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and vy —HEBEERAEF=FER
the other entity is an associate of the third entity. ZEERR MR —&

BRZE=FERZH
NI
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R MR

3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

3.24 Related parties (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the
entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

U]

(ii)

(i)

that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

dependents of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRHEE

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

(a) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation charges for its property, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual residual value and useful lives of
property, plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
It could change significantly as a result of any future
management determination of shop relocation or renovation.
Management will increase the depreciation charge where
residual value or useful lives are less than previously estimated,
or it will write-off or write-down non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold.

(b) Estimated write-downs of inventories to net realisable
value

The Group writes down inventories to net realisable value based
on an assessment of the realisability of inventories. Write-downs
on inventories are recorded where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be realised.
The identification of write-downs requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the expectations are different from the
original estimates, such differences will impact the carrying value
of inventories and write-downs of inventories in the years in
which such estimates have been changed.

(c) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and the
PRC. Significant judgement is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R MR

4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

®

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets under the disposal group of
e-Commerce and e-Payment business

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations or market valuations. The
calculations require the use of judgements and estimates.

Loss allowance for ECL

The Group's management estimates the loss allowance for
trade receivables and loan receivable based on risk of a default
and expected loss rate. The assessment of the credit risk
involves high degree of estimation and uncertainty as the
Group’s management estimates the risk of a default and
expected loss rate for applying provision matrix on debtors
based on the Group's historical information, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of
each reporting period. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
amount of trade receivables.

Fair values of available-for-sale financial assets and
convertible bonds

The fair values of financial assets that are traded in an active
market are determined by the quoted market prices. For fair
values of financial assets not traded in an active market, the
methodologies, models, assumptions used in determining the
fair value of financial assets not traded in an active market and
derivative financial instruments require judgement, which are
mainly based on market conditions existing at each reporting
date.

The fair value of financial instruments and other financial
liabilities (including embedded derivative components of
convertible bonds) that are not traded in an active market is
determined by using appropriate valuation techniques and
making assumptions that are based on market conditions
existing at each reporting date. The fair values of the
embedded derivative components of convertible bonds are
determined using the Binomial Option Pricing Model adjusted
for specific terms and conditions of the respective instruments.
Major inputs into the model include quoted market prices, risk
free rates, expected volatility, dividend yields and the option’s
life.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R MR

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 4
(CONTINUED)

(9) Share-based compensation (9

BEREFHER R (&)

LARRAD B B 2 $REM =1 31

The Group operates equity-settled, share-based compensation
plans under which the Group receives services from employees
as consideration for equity instruments of the Company. The
plan comprises a share option scheme. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant of the
options or shares is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair
value of the options or shares granted as at the date of grant: (i)
including any market performance conditions; (ii) excluding
the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth targets);
and (iii) including the impact of any non-vesting conditions.
Nonmarket vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options or shares that are expected to
vest. The total expense is recognised over the vesting period,
which is the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each reporting
period, the Group revises its estimates of the number of
options or shares that are expected to vest based on the non-
marketing vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of the
revision to original estimates, if any, in the income statement,
with a corresponding adjustment to equity.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the retailing of footwear in Hong
Kong, the PRC and Taiwan, and e-Commerce and e-Payment
business.

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
Executive Directors. The Executive Directors review the Group's
financial information to assess the performance and allocate
resources.

The Group has two reportable segments. The segments are
managed separately as each business offers different products and
services and requires different business strategies. The following
summary describes the operations in each of the Group's reportable
segments:

Retailing of footwear
e-Commerce and e-Payment

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of segment loss without allocation of
administrative expenses, other gains or losses, other income and
finance income/(costs), which is consistent with that in the financial
statements. During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Directors
consider to dispose the e-Commerce and e-Payment business.
During August 2017 and June 2018, MOUs were signed for the
potential disposal, which led to discontinue the operation of
e-Commerce and e-Payment business. In accordance of HKFRS 5,
e-Commerce and e-Payment business for the years ended 31 March
2019 and 2018 were classified as discontinued operation in the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

Segment assets mainly exclude loan receivables in respect of the
Group's financial services business and refundable advance payment
in relation to the purchase of the Milan Properties.

Segment liabilities mainly exclude current tax liabilities, convertible
bonds, corporate bond and obligation under finance lease.

In respect of geographical segment reporting, sales are based on the
country in which the customer is located, and total assets and capital
expenditure are based on the country where the assets are located.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRHEE

5

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(a) Business and geographical segment

The segment results for the year ended 31 March 2019 are as

5

2 EER (&)
() EBEMBEDH

HZE2019F3 A3 HIEFEZHEL

follows: FEWMT
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
BESEEE RIEREER
Retailing of footwear T
BEZE and
Hong Kong The PRC Taiwan Subtotal  Unallocated  e-Payment Total
ETEH
BE HE A8 Nt FABR REFEH @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TARL TR THT TR TR THT TR
Revenue g 51,283 52,801 6,265 110,349 - - 110,349
Segment loss NEER (12,614) (62,284) (526) (75,424) (103,349) (11,300) (190,073)
Finance income BrERA 12,495
Finance costs BIER (77,508)
Share of losses of associates FEEHEARZER (2,300)
Income tax credit FriEHiEs -
Loss for the year AEEER (257,386)
Other segment items EtAHBEALT :
are as follows:
Capital expenditure BRER - 174 - 174 448 - 622
Share of losses of associates EEBENRZER - - - - (2,300) (427) (2,727)
Share option expenses BRERS - - - - 2,574 - 2,574
Depreciation of property, NE - BEREEINE
plant and equipment 1,011 2,875 2 3,888 246 230 4,364
Amortisation of intangble assets B AE 2 EiH 109 53 = 162 = 9,897 10,059
Impairment of property, 0% BEREEBIAE
plant and equipment 157 - - 157 - - 157
Losses on disposal of property, HENE  BRE k%
plant and equipment ZER 14 264 - 278 - - 278
Write back of inventories, net BFERE 58 (6,417) 965 (20) (5,472) = o (5,472)
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5 oIER(E)
(a) Business and geographical segment (Continued) (@) H¥KHEED I (&)
The segment results for the year ended 31 March 2018 are as HZE2018F3A31BIEFEZDEB
follows: FEMOT
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
SENEER el 3
Retailing of footwear e-Commerce
$ETE and
Hong Kong The PRC Taiwan Subtotal  Unallocated e-Payment Total
ETHS
% PE aig INet AOE  BRETIH i

HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HiKS000 HKS 000
TR TR TR TR TR TR TR

Revenue W& 88324 250569 7,264 346,157 - - 346,157
Segment loss NEER (21,609) (54,267) (793) (76,669) (69,176) (2689) (148534)
Finance income 51 UN 9701
Finance costs HBEMR (69,502)
Share of losses of associates NG | (1634)
Income tax credit FriEHiEs o
Loss for the year TEEER (209,383)
Other segment items are EHAERWT -

as follows:
Capital expenditure ERHY 621 5898 1 6520 - 9307 15827
Share of losses of associates EhBENRZER - - - - (1634) (595) 2229
Share option expenses BRERS - - - - 15,531 - 15,531
Depreciation of property, NE - BEREEINE

plant and equipment 1716 5474 14 7204 23 173 7400
Amortisation of intangble assets B AE 2 EiH 135 454 - 589 - - 589
Impairment of property, nE - BERXEZRE

plant and equipment 233 - - 233 - - 233
Gain on disposal of asset WERAELEEEME

held for sale (7217 - - (7217 - - (7217)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, — HENE - BERREL

plant and equipment (%) /BB (23921) 34 9 (23879) - - (23879)
Write back of inventories, net FEEE 58 %3 (6,125) 279 (5753) - - (5753)
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5 DEER (E)
(a) Business and geographical segment (Continued) (a) HEKHE#EDE (&)
The segment assets and liabilities at 31 March 2019 are as R2019F3 31BN EEERE
follows: BT

Discontinued

Continuing operations operations
BEREXK RIEREXR

Retailing of footwear e Gommerce

BETE o

Hong Kong The PRC Taiwan Subtotal  e-Payment Total
ETEYR

) HE =k Mt REFXH st

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T TR T BT TR TiEr

Segment assets AR 15,132 15,155 2,260 32,547 245,111 277,658
Unallocated assets KOMEE 251,431
Total assets BEBE 529,089
Segment liabilities AHaE 31,433 86,610 825 118,868 66,477 185,345
Unallocated liabilities FoEaE 572,031
Total liabilities BfEEE 757,376

-/ 116 Vestate Group Holdings Limited B EEERAR A F



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R MR

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5 oIER(E)
(a) Business and geographical segment (Continued) (a) HEKHE#EDE (&)
The segment assets and liabilities at 31 March 2018 are as R2018F3 3Bz HEERE
follows: BT
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
SENEET Il
Retailing of footwear e-Commerce
$HETE and
Hong Kong The PRC Taiwan Subtotal e-Payment Total
ETHE
Bk i 8 et REFRH feb
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000

TAT TR THT THT TRT TAT

Segment assets AR 84,885 148,267 3989 237,141 241830 478971
Unallocated assets KOWEE 255,668
Total assets BEBE 734,639
Segment liabilities HHERE 28482 109,663 6,106 144,251 52408 196,659
Unallocated liabilities FoEaE 500,777
Total liabilities BfEEE 697,436

Specified non-current assets

BEFRBEE
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFHET FHET
Hong Kong 5 3,021 2,059
PRC =8 14,204 21,042
Taiwan =y 9 11
17,234 23112
(b) Information about major customers by EEEXTEEFZER
For the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018, none of the HZE2019F % 2018F3 A31 HIEF
customers contributed 10% or more of the revenue of the B BEREF BRI AEE10%3K A
Group. EzWE o
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e M HRRHEE

6 EXPENSES BY NATURE

6 BMEIBZMAX

2019 2018
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FERT FAT
Continuing operations BELSEEK
Purchase of and changes in inventories BAGTERGFEEY 75,916 176,822
Auditor’s remuneration ZE AN &
— Audit service — ZHARB 1,200 1,650
— Non-audit service — IEEEART = 44
Depreciation of property, ME - BE RSB ITE
plant and equipment
— owned assets —HBAEE 4,011 7,104
— leased assets —HEEE 123 123
Impairment of property, W% - BB R 2RE
plant and equipment 157 233
Amortisation of intangible assets BB E 2 Y 162 589
Operating lease rental in respect of METHREF 2 ELLHEERS
leasehold land and buildings
— minimum lease payments — REEEFIE 12,864 17,480
— turnover rental expenses —REEEAECHEAX 38,615 105,547
Advertising and promotion expenses EENEERY 3,104 9184
Write-back of inventories, net FER[D - 5 (5,472) (5,753)
Employee benefit expenses (Note 10) B ERAFEX (3 10) 86,774 155,729
Other expenses HAtnFZ 41,367 57,802
Total cost of sales, selling and distribution HERAK - HE XD HEMA R
costs and administrative expenses TRERERE 258,821 526,554

Expenses by nature of the Group have been presented in the

consolidated income statement as follows:

ZRAZNT

WA R R 2 A EREESH

2019 2018
HK$’000 HKS'000
THET FET
Cost of sales $HE Al AN 70,444 171,069
Selling and distribution costs $HE KD EAK AN 115,329 251,757
Administrative expenses THER 73,048 103,728
258,821 526,554

B R A A
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DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

During August 2017 and June 2018, the Group entered into MOUs to
dispose of the e-Commerce and e-Payment business. The disposal is
expected to be completed before the end of the year 2019, the date
on which the control of the e-Commerce and e-Payment business
passed to the acquirer. The sales, results and cash flows of the
e-Commerce and e-Payment business were as follows:

7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R MR

IR

EAzo 7ESAK218F6 A - AEBRI
HRRESHUNLEETEELE T
¥ HEFHEBHN 2019FFRAI T
K BNEFEBREF A ER 2 ZEH
BEBREWBEAZBR EFHHKLE
FIREBHBZHE EERBASREDN
™

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FAT

Other income HAnug A 995 228

Share of loss of an associate FEAE R — & A Al B8 (427) (595)

Expenses i (11,868) (2,322)

Loss before tax expense FRELIER X AT E1E (11,300) (2,689)
Income tax expense FriSfip & =

Loss for the year from discontinued AEFEFRBLIKEEEE 2B

operations (11,300) (2,689)

Operating cash flows REHSRE 14,744 610

Investing cash flows KERERE = (18)

Financing cash flows BERESRE = -

Total cash flows REMEHE 14,744 592

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of e-Commerce and
e-Payment business at the year ended date are disclosed in Note 25
to the consolidated financial statements.

For the purpose of presenting discontinued operations, the
comparative consolidated income statement and the related notes
have been re-presented as if the operations discontinued during the
year had been discontinued at the beginning of the comparative
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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8 OTHER GAINS OR LOSSES 8 HtK=aEE
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FH&TT
Gain on disposal of assets held for sale PERBIELEEE 2 W - 7,217
(Loss)/Gain on disposal of property, HEYE  BmERSEY
plant and equipment (E18) Wz (278) 23,878
Impairment expense BERX (2,086) -
Written off of inventory WiEEE (23,976) -
Provision for doubtful debt TR R AR (7,424) -
Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) SNEW RS (B1R) FE 88 (543)
(33,676) 30,552
9 OTHER INCOME 9 HfslgA
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFHExT FH&T
Licence fee and royalty income B EREREFEBIA 239 460
Government subsidies (note) AT B (P 3E) 1,899 1,882
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries ekl )= NI 512 -
Others Hith 725 1,658
3,375 4,000
Note: Government subsidies represent incentives received from the PRC tax Mt BURTHBIIEREEP RIS BRT
authority for operating investment in Waigaogjiao Free Trade Zone in [ e BT TS A B U B 2 228 -
the PRC.
10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 10 ESEAAX(BEESEHE)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Salaries, wages and bonuses e TERIEA 70,174 117,202
Pension costs — defined contribution plans RIKEEKA — F LB RETE 12,629 20,352
Welfare and other expenses BA R EALR 1,397 2,644
Share option expenses (note 34) RE R F =2 (P 3E 34) 2,574 15,531
86,774 155,729
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10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 10 EERANBX(BRES=ME) (H)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (CONTINUED)

Benefits and interests of directors (disclosures required by section
383 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation
(Cap. 622G) and HK Listing Rules)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

The remuneration of every director and the chief executive for
the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018 is set out below:

For the year ended 31 March 2019:

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services
as a director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary
undertaking.

EFERMEER(FEAERREN(F622
Z)FE33 K AR (FEEEEFFER)
BO(FEenGE) REE LMHAABRE
W)

(@) ESERESTHRAEZME

HE2019F % 2018F3 A31 BIEAF
B ZESER&STTHAES ZHH
;T -

HZE2019F3A31BILEE -

RECER(TRAQFLENME
RANZ ANTEZ SRRz B -

Estimated
money
value of
other benefit
(Notea)
H{t3EA
e
EE
ik e (Kizza) &
Name S HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THET TR THER
Executive directors: HiTEE
Mr. Zhu Xiaojun REFEE - 1,600 - 1,600
Mr. Kang Jianming BEALLE - 283 773 1,056
Ms. Cai Jiaying BEBRZLT - 900 773 1,673
Mr. Yin Wansun BRisHiiE - - 773 773
Independent Non-executive BUFHTEE:
directors:
Ms. Zhao Hong Bkt - - 64 64
Mr. Chau Wai Hing BEE%E - 180 - 180
Mr. Leung Man Ho (note b) 225 d (3ED) - 89 - 89
Mr. Yu Lei (note c) FEaE (M = - - -
- 3,052 2,383 5,435
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10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 10 EERAFEX(BEESME) (&)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 March 2018: BZE2018F3 A3 HIEFE -
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a REFES (TREAQRINEMB AR
director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking. ZANTEZ AR ER S
Estimated
money
value of
other benefit
Fees Salary (Note a) Total
Hi izl
pAE=L
BE
we e (Kteta) GE
Name e HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET TET TET

Executive directors; HITEE

Mr. Zhu Xiaojun REFLE - 2,400 - 2,400

Mr. Kang Jianming FERLE - 1,696 2,590 4,286

Ms. Cai Jiaying eSS Yo - 450 2,590 3,040

Mr. Yin Wansun BREHEE - - 2,590 2,590

Independent Non-executive BUINTEE -

directors:

Ms. Zhao Hong [ L/ G - 203 216 419

Mr. Chau Wai Hing EEELE - 180 - 180

Mr. Leung Man Ho (note b) 2 E(WiEDb) - 141 - 141

- 5070 7,986 13,056

Note a Other benefits include share options. Mizta EMEF2EBRE -

Note b Mr. Leung Man Ho was appointed as an independent non-executive MizEb BN ZRALER2017F6 19RERT
director with effect from 19 June 2017 and resigned on 29 REIIENITEE - W 2018F9 A
September 2018. 20 HBHE -

Note ¢ Mr. Yu Lei was appointed as an independent non-executive director fistc RBEELEEZERBIULIIENTES
with effect from 28 December 2018. B 20184 12 A28 HRBAERK ©
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10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (CONTINUED)

(b)

©

(d)

(e)

®

Directors’ retirement benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any retirement
benefits related to define benefit plan for the year ended 31
March 2019 (2018: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any termination
benefits for the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company did not
pay consideration to any third parties for making available
directors’ services (2018: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

The Company issued CB-Il (as defined in note 31) in August
2016 with personal guarantee obtained from Mr. ZHU Xiaojun
Chairman of the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, there are no loans,
quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in favour of the
directors, or controlled body corporates and connected
entities of such directors (2018: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Company'’s business to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year ended 31 March 2019
(2018: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R MR

10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 10 EERAFEX(BEESME) (&)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (CONTINUED)
(9) Five highest paid individuals (9) ABEREHFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in FR-AEBRRAERESHFWALTE
the Group during the year include 3 directors (2018: 4) whose FE3R(2018F 4% )EE - HF
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in note B 2 7 B 5E10) 2 51 .2 2 17 7 71
10(a). The emoluments payable to the remaining individuals o BRBRTALTZHMESHT

are as follows:

2019 2018
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FHEIT
Basic salaries, housing allowances, EAFE - FHEEM
other allowances and benefits-in-kind H 2R R EWF 2,559 1,560
Share options expenses BEAR R 2 1,097 2,218
Contributions to pension plans ERE IR 36 18
3,692 3,796
The emoluments fell within the B prEBaaRmT
following bands:
2019 2018
HK$500,000 to HKS$ 1,000,000 500,000 7L 2 1,000,000 74 7T 1 -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 77T 2= 3,000,000 78 7T 1 -
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 75 7T Z 4,000,000 % 7T = 1
2 1

-/ 124 Vestate Group Holdings Limited B EEERAR QA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRHEE

1 FINANCE COSTS, NET

n HMBER FH

2019 2018
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FHETT
Finance income TN
— Interest income from bank deposits — RITIFHZFEHA 10 45
— Interest income — others — FBUA — HAth 12,485 9,656
12,495 9,701
Finance costs W% ER
— Amortisation of unrealised fair value of — N[ IR E S AR IR A T E Y
convertible bonds (16,768) (15,869)
— Interest on convertible bonds — A& H 2 FE (5,067) (4,535)
— Interest on corporate bonds — RAEFZHE (55,645) (47178)
— Interest on bank borrowings — iRITEEZFE (17) (1,805)
— Interest expense — others — FERSZ — Hfb - (103)
— Interest on obligation under —REBEHEREZFE
finance lease (11) (12)
7777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 (77,508)  (69502)
Finance costs, net MEER  F58 (65,013) (59,801)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R MR

12

INCOME TAX CREDIT

The amount of income tax credit charged to the consolidated
income statement represents:

FREBER
KBRS RMR L PIEHER SRS

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET

Current income tax BNERPR 1SR
— Hong Kong profits tax — BBFER - -
— PRC corporate income tax — B TSR = -
Deferred income tax IELFTS L o 586
- 586

Taxation has been provided at the appropriate rates prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates. Hong Kong profits tax has
not been provided for as the Group has no assessable profits for the
years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018.

The tax on the Group’s loss before income tax expense differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average
tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as follows:

RIENEREAEBEEMERRZRITE
EMENE - AR AEBEREE2019F
K2018F3 A3 ALEFEWERER G
F - AT BB B FSHETIREE -

REBE RSN AER AR
FEREANGEEREN 2 TR
FAHEZERTBEIERNOT

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Loss before income tax credit RETFTEHE R A EE 246,086 207,280
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates BE I 825% (2018 4F © 16.5%)
8.25% (2018: 16.5%) SHE 2 HIA 20,302 34,201
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMBEAEREL 2 HBAT]
operating in other jurisdictions ZARMER & 20,410 7,956
Income not subject to tax BART WA 42 7613
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes TAERIBEN X (6,958) (19,306)
Deductible temporary differences not ARIER A EINE b =58
recognised (7,475) (2,689)
Tax losses not recognised IR TIAE 1B (26,321) (27,189)
Income tax credit PIES L5190 - 586
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R MR

13

14

LOSS PER SHARE 13
For continuing and discontinued operations
(a) Basic

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

BRER
MIFERKLEEEBMES
(a) E=X

FREARERIIZEANFEARRA]
BB ARMGEERAFASH
TEBBZ NEFHEBEFE -

Loss from continuing operations RAREREE ARGHE

attributable to equity holders of the R 7 BB (AT

Company (HK$'000) (245,361) (206,076)
Loss from discontinued operations KAFIEREE ARG

attributable to equity holders of the LR 2 BE (TET)

Company (HK$'000) (11,236) (2,600)
Loss attributable to equity holders of the A A BIHEZS 158 A FELL

Company (HK$'000) ZEE(FAT) (256,597) (208,676)
Weighted average number of ordinary B 277 &A% 2 hnie F

shares in issue ('000) BE(F) 716,190 716,190

(b) Diluted (b) #F

Diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per share for the
year ended 31 March 2019 and 2018 as there were no dilutive
potential ordinary share outstanding during the year.

DIVIDEND 14

The Board has recommended not to declare dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2019 (2018: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R MR

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 Y%¥ BEERE
Furniture,
fixtures
Land and Leasehold Motor and Computer
buildings  improvements vehicles  equipment  equipment Total
Bk £B
tiREFT HENEEE AE & ERRE #mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR FET FET

Cost A&

At 1 April 2017 R2017E4H1H 104,000 52424 4014 17,123 17,013 194,574
Addition NE - 6,116 - 27 72 6,215
Disposals HE (104,000) (5301) (1,814) (1,924) (39 (113,078)
Transfer to assets held BERAELEEE

for sale - (742) - - - (742)
Exchange differences B H =R - 3436 59 31 724 4532

At31 March 2018 and R2018F3 A31 B K
1 April 2018 2018 4H1H - 55,933 2,259 15,539 17,770 91,501
Addition nNE - 622 - - - 622
Disposals HE - (5,380) - (1,163) (71) (7,114)
Disposal of subsidiary HEMB AR - (66) - (65) (12) (143)
Exchange differences BN EFE - (2627) (4 (218) (497) (3383)

At 31 March 2019 20193 A31H - 47,982 2218 14,093 17,190 81,483

Accumulated depreciation E:HiTE

At 1 April 2017 R2017F481H - 46,273 3,327 15517 15923 81,040
Charge for the year FRHK - 6,140 207 549 504 7,400
Impairment E - 233 - - - 233
Eliminated on disposal B HERH - (5292) (1814) (1819) (39) (8,964)
Transfer to assets held EEREELEELE

for sale - (236) - - - (236)
Exchange differences N - 3,110 55 255 650 4070

At31 March 2018 and R2018F3 A31 A K
1 April 2018 2018F4H1H - 50,228 1,775 14,502 17,038 83,543
Charge for the year FRHRK - 3491 160 314 169 4134
Impairment BIE - 157 - - - 157
Eliminated on disposal B ER - (5,696) - (921) an (6,688)
Disposal of subsidiary HERTBAE - (43) - (20) 3) (66)
Exchange differences PR ZERE - (2,306) (37) (185) (458) (2,986)

At 31 March 2019 M2019F3H31H - 45,831 1,898 13,690 16,675 78,094

Net book value IREEE

At31 March 2019 R201943 4318 - 2,151 320 403 515 3,389

At31 March 2018 R2018%F3 4318 - 5,705 484 1037 732 7,958

Note: Motor vehicle of carrying amount of approximately HK$215,000 (2018: MizE: M2019F3A31H REEN A

HK$338,000) were pledged to secure finance lease as of 31 March 215,000 7T (2018 4F : 338,000/ 7T )
2019. ZAECEMRREREEE LK

e

-/ 128 Vestate Group Holdings Limited Bli&EEZERAER QA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R MR

16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16 |BEEE
Computer
Goodwill Licence  software Trademark Total
BE MR EREY [i2] = st
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
TET TET FET FET FET
Cost 2%
At 1 April 2017 H2017F481H 36,153 193,947 18,195 69,566 317,861
Additions RNE - - 9,612 - 9612
Disposals HE - - (22) - (22)
Transfer to assets held for sale WEREERLELE (36,153)  (193,629) (9,288) - (239,070)
Exchange difference IE N =% - - 548 - 548
At 31 March 2018 and 20183 A31 B K&
1 April 2018 20184 8 1H - 318 19,045 69,566 88,929
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR - - (323) - (323)
Disposal & - - (5) (69,566) (69,571)
Exchange differences i 5 =5 - - (374) - (374)
At 31 March 2019 20193 A31H - 318 18,343 - 18,661
Accumulated amortisation E-5E
At 1 April 2017 20175481 H - 318 17,189 69,566 87,073
Charge for the year FRHkR - - 589 - 589
Disposals & - - (22) - (22)
Exchange difference MR ER - - 485 - 485
At 31 March 2018 and 20183 A31B R
1 April 2018 201844 A1 H - 318 18,241 69,566 88,125
Charge for the year F AR - - 162 - 162
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR - - 81 - 81)
Disposals e - - ) (69,566) (69,571)
Exchange difference EHZER - - (347) - (347)
At 31 March 2019 201943 H31H - 318 17,970 - 18,288
Net book amount BRERE
At 31 March 2019 201953 H31H - - 373 - 373
At 31 March 2018 720183 A31H - - 804 - 804
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRHEE

17 INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 17
2019 2018
HK$’000 HKS$'000
THET THET
Share of net assets [EIE & EFE 510 510
Nature of investment in material joint venture as at 31 March 2019: R2019E3 A3 HREAS L AT 2B
B21HE
% of Nature
Place of interestheld of the Measurement Principal
Name of entity establishment indirectly relationship method activity
EEEE
BREEE B BEzn BEIME A TEXH
Wealthy Trend International Hong Kong 51%  Jointventure Equity method Inactive
Development Limited
ZEIBBRERGRAR B8 BERA B Rk )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R MR

17

18

INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (CONTINUED) 17

Summarised financial information of joint venture which is consider
immaterial:

REEQAAZRE (H)
BERR (KR REIFEANEL) M
BRE -

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT TAT

Aggregate carrying amount of FERIZEEAME 2 AL AR

individually immaterial joint venture FEMBmE RERE
in the consolidated financial statements

510 510

Aggregate amount of the Group's share TEBEEEERRIZHEE

of a joint venture:

— Profit or loss from continuing operations — IFEK S 21838 - -
— Post-tax profit or loss from discontinued  — #& |FREE 2B T1BEZ

operations = -
— Other comprehensive income — HEmrmEikzs - -
Total comprehensive income FHEINZEBER = -

As at 31 March 2019, there are no significant contingent liabilities
and capital commitments relating to the Group's interest in the joint
venture.

R2019F3A31H MESEAEER
BENRAZERZERRIREBERER
FRIE o

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18 REE DT ZER
2019 2018
HKS$’000 HKS'000
THxT FHEIT
Share of net assets EEEEFE 12,962 6,530
Loan to an associate (Note) ERT Mg w () 6,469 3,662
19,431 10,192

Note:  The loan is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRHEE

18 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 18 REtE AT 2= (E)
Set out below are the associates of the Group as at 31 March 2019. AT #E P AREB R 201943 A31 8 2B
The associates as listed below have share capital consisting solely of ENaE e TABENRERERLT AR
ordinary shares. R IR o
Place of Nature of the  Measurement
Name of entity establishment % of interest held relationship method Principal activity
= N N
BREH 3R 3L B BEERZ% BEzME  HERE TEXEB
directly indirectly
HE i
Guangzhou Guoxin Guanfu The PRC - 4335%  Associate Equity Settlement services of
Information Technology acquiring business
Company Limited'’
("Guoxin Guanfu") (Note a)
M %ﬁﬂ(ﬂ‘ﬁﬂﬂ& : o il lNG] Bk WE R ET
BRAR(TREEMN] PR
(Hfita)
Shanghai New World Information  The PRC - 4760%  Associate Equity e-Commerce
Industry Company Limited'
(Note b)
J:i%ﬁﬂiﬁﬁ%%ﬁ ) H N fEE% BFER
RAERAR (b
Carlyon Investment Holdings Hong Kong 34% - Associate Equity Investment holding
Limited (Note c) in Hong Kong
%%;En}ﬁ%ﬁ?%*ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ Bk =YNE] EE% RBEEREREER
fitc
Carlyon Securities Limited Hong Kong - 34%  Associate Equity Securities dealing
in Hong Kong
BEHESFARAT Bk il YNE] % REBNEESEE
Carlyon Finance Limited Hong Kong - 34%  Associate Equity Money lending
in Hong Kong
BESERMERAR N5 /N Bk REBRERE
Carlyon Asset Management Hong Kong - 34%  Associate Equity Asset management
Limited in Hong Kong
BESEEERARIA Bk NS =% REBREEEER
Carlyon Capital Limited Hong Kong - 34%  Associate Equity Inactive
BESERBRAR ; B N A) Bk W EETE D
Carlyon Reits (BVI) Limited Hong Kong - 34%  Associate Equity Inactive
Bk L YNE] @A TEEBED
! English translation is for identification purpose only. ! ENEIEEEHA AR
(@  Guoxin Guanfu is an unlisted limited liability company in the PRC and @ ERMNATE—FEREWEREER
there is no quoted market price available for its shares. A RO IR THRE -
(b)  Asat 31 March 2019, the carrying amount of the Group's interest in (b)  R2019F3HA31 8 "EER LG

Shanghai New World Information, which is listed on the Shanghai
Equity Exchange, was HK$11,056,000.

(0 At 1 November 2018, 66% shares of Carlyon Investment Holdings

Limited had been transfer to third parties and Vestate Group Holdings
Limited reminds holding 34% of its shares.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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18

19

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Summarised financial information of immaterial associate:

18 RBERT e (&)

FERMEZBMERR ZHHENRE

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Aggregate carrying amount of ERIFEE R M E 2B A R
individually immaterial associates rEVBRRZREEE
in the consolidated financial statements 12,962 6,530
Aggregate amount of the Group's share REERIGEZEME DA HBE -
of those associates:
— Loss from continuing operations — B EEBER (2,300) (1,634)
— Post-tax loss from discontinued operations — 4% | F 48 & 2 5% 7 (R 14 518 (427) (595)
— Other comprehensive income — HiamEikas _ _
Total comprehensive income 2EW B (2,727) (2,229

As at 31 March 2019, there are no significant contingent liabilities
relating to the Group's interest in the associate. The Group was
contracted to inject HK$595,000 (2018: HK$637,000) as investment
capital in interest in an associate in the future.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

19

201938318 MMERFBEALQFR
BENRRcEARIREE AEH
BEISZEH - R AR IEE 5950008 7T
(2018 4F : 637,000 7 ) 1E BRI E R B &
NAEREAR -

IHEEESREE

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTET FHET

Unlisted equity securities, at cost EETRAFES - AR - 6,248

One of the Group's strategic investments is a 2.5% interest in JREAKN
FEEE R A PR A A). This company is not accounted for on an equity
method as the Group does not have the power to participate in its
operating and financial policies, evidenced by the lack of any direct
or indirect involvement at board level.

For the above available-for-sale financial assets that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be
settled by delivery of such unquoted equity instruments, they are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R MR

20 INVENTORIES 20 78
Inventories represent merchandising stock. FEEHEESR -
The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and included in cost FABRBRAEBAI LT AHEEK D
of sales during the year amounted to HK$75,916,000 (2018: 7 & KA A75916000% JL(2018 46 -
HK$176,822,000). 176,822,000 7C) ©
21 TRADE RECEIVABLES 21 BWESNIE
Retail sales are in cash, by credit cards or collected by department ZEHEDURS  EARIBEEER
stores on behalf of the Group. The department stores normally settle AIREAEERE - BEQR—BRRE
the proceeds to the Group within 2 months from the date of sales. SHE B AIRRE 2B A MM A& EEEFT
1S58 -
Ageing analysis of trade receivables by invoice date at the statement JEWE 5 RIERM MR R BB EERE
of financial position date is as follows: AEREI D 2 BREC TR -
2019 2018
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHERT FHET
0-30 days 0-30H 1,640 19,724
31-60 days 31-60 H 1,622 8,827
61-90 days 61-90 H 890 2,527
Over 90 days 90 BHIALE 8,185 7,812
12,337 38,890
Less: Provision for impairment W EE SRR 2R E RS
of trade receivables (7,947) (567)
4,390 38,323
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R MR

21

TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

As of 31 March 2019, trade receivables of HK$2,555,000 (2018:
HK$18,072,000) were past due but not impaired. These relate to a
number of independent customers and department stores for whom
there is no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these
trade receivables is as follows:

21

FEWE 5 FIE (&)

MR2019F3A31H B E 5 R E
2,555,000 7T (2018 4F : 18,072,000 7T )
EEHETERE ZSERBERZEL
TR AL BYIRERAERR
Bl - ZEERESFBEZERE T
B

2019 2018

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FH T FAT

1-30 days 1-30 H 1,427 8,300
31-60 days 31-60 H 890 2,527
61-90 days 61-90 H 163 1,451
Over 90 days 90 BLALE 75 5,794
2,555 18,072

As of 31 March 2019, trade receivables of HK$7,947,000 (2018:
HK$567,000) were considered impaired and were provided in full.
The individually impaired receivables mainly relate to department
stores. An aging analysis of these receivables is as follows:

20193 A318 + [BIE S FRIE7,947,000
7 7T (20184 = 567,000 7T ) 1R B 2
B WEFR2EEE - BRI 2 RERE
WHEFZEHEEARE/H - ZS5EK
RIEZREDTIT

2019 2018

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FE T FAT

Over 90 days 9B E 7,947 567

Movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables are
as follows:

R SRR ER R EEMT

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHERT T

At beginning of the year REH] 567 512
Written-off on provision of trade receivables  FEUTE 5 FIB R & 1Y 7,424 -
Exchange differences EH =58 (44) 55
At end of the year ER 7,947 567
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R MR

21 TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 21 EWE S NIE(E)
The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables have FEWEmRPEFT ARG REEERE
been included in the consolidated income statement. Amounts JEM RIE R AR - DINBHBR 2 S8R
charged to the allowance account are generally written off when RIEHSE R B RRIMNR Al 8H o

there is no expectation of recovering additional cash.

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not include a FEUE 5 78 I H b FE U GRIE A 2 H At
provision for impairment of other receivables. FE RN A BIE E At R YGRIE 2 R E R -
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair Rz aaEERRA EXRE
values of trade receivables disclosed above. The Group did not hold ZIEINE G RIA N FE o ANE B EIF
any collateral as security. BT R o
The carrying amounts of trade receivables are denominated in the EWE SRIE KA BRI TEEET
following currencies: & :
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Hong Kong dollar BT 430 499
Renminbi AR 3,510 36,870
New Taiwan dollar et 450 954
4,390 38,323
The carrying amount of trade receivables approximates its fair value. EWE S HIB RESFEEA AN TEME
=
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22 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22 BE& - AARERHEGERRKE

2019 2018
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FERT FAT

Non-current portion: JEmEE D
Deposits 7e 1,155 4,052
Other deposits HEis = 7,311
1,155 11,363

Current portion: MENER S -

Refundable advance payment AR ETE FRIE 98,881 98,881
Deposits "e 8,105 13,257
Prepayments TEfTFRIE 543 17111
Other receivables Hofth pE R IE 3,477 4,040
Value-added tax recoverable ] Uk o] B {E 3,606 2,725

114,612 136,014

115,767 147,377

Denominated in: RATEBHE :

Hong Kong dollar BIT 5,641 28,603
Renminbi AR 10,666 19,753
New Taiwan dollar Ak 40 137
Euro BT 98,881 98,881
Others Hip 539 3

115,767 147377

The carrying amounts of deposits, prepayments and other e BAIFREMAMERFTIEY RE

receivables approximate their fair values. The Group does not hold SHEEEATEES ASEIERE

any security. No written-off have been made for the year ended 31 EEH - HE2019F3ABILEE

March 2019 (2018: NIL). No impairment provision has been made for I AR S (20184 « 4B) - MEAFE

both years. HEEHRERE -

(i)  In relation to the purchase of the Milan Properties, the () HPIEREYWENS  EFEERE
Directors have considered a construction plan provided by the HORBWEE iR 2 EHRETE
Milan Properties Vendor and considered that other than the W FR AR AR 2 TE 15 5k I8 10,200,000
refundable advance payment of Euro10,200,000 (equivalent to B 7T (482 72 £989,892,000 7% 7T ) BA
approximately HK$89,892,000), there are no further payment SN 20193 A31 8 #E 5t A& K
due and payable within the next twelve months from 31 + A AR — SR A R TR
March 2019. As the Directors are consider to withdrawing such He e AREFFAEEER —FARE
refundable advance payment within 1 year, the amount is BB AR R B TR FRIE - aREZ kIR
classified under current portion. DERRENE D °
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23 LOAN RECEIVABLES 23 EWERK
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHE T FH&TT
Loan receivables e E TR 135,846 130,873

The Group's loan receivables, which arise from Hong Kong and PRC,
which are denominated in both Hong Kong dollar and Renminbi
respectively. No impairment loss were provided for the above
balances.

Loan receivables are unsecured, bear fixed interest and are repayable
with fixed terms agreed with the Group'’s borrowers. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at each of the end of reporting period is the
carrying value of the loan receivables mentioned above.

The Group has no past due loan receivables as at the end of the
reporting period.

A maturity profile of the gross amount of loan receivables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on maturity date, is as follows:

AEBZ BB RPBEREBERD BB
TTRAREE - LllESRT ERERS

18-

FEM E R MR - ERWIREARE
fERA W E 2 Bl FE R EIE - NEH
HPRzZEREERRS
ARE(E

-
=
A
=
=
\

/

St

RBEEHR  AEEYEBECEHZ
W E TR -

RBERR - BRENKEHBERES
HIREWE AR S BAE 85I T

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FExT
Within 1 year —F R 135,846 130,873
1to 2 years —EWE - _
135,846 130,873

Certain loan receivables were subsequently renewed with guarantee ATRUEFEREESE  BH—REBL

by an independent third party.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R MR

24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24 HEeRESZEEER
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Cash at banks and on hand wITRFERE 1,763 53,514
Cash and cash equivalents ReELHASEEEE 1,763 53,514
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position are e BRRAEA R RA2EE
denominated in the following currencies: HERATEEE
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Hong Kong dollar BIT 1,130 40,231
Renminbi AR 220 11,687
United States dollar EViH 132 194
Others HA 281 1,402
1,763 53514
The Group’s cash and bank balances denominated in Renminbi are AEBUAREHECE e RIRTHEH
placed with banks in the PRC. The conversion of these Renminbi TFRAREZR1T - S EUARKS
denominated balances into foreign currencies is subject to the rules B2 BB AR BINE BB TR BBUTFT
and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the AR 2 INE B A5 B K R -

PRC government.
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e M HRRHEE

25 NET ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

25 FHRELEZEEFE

2019 2018

HK$’000 HKS'000

TER FETT

Disposal group (Note) HEEH (Mi:E) 178,634 189,422
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Note: At 31 March 2018 and 2019, the Directors intended to dispose of

e-Commerce and e-Payment business and accordingly the assets and
liabilities relating to e-Commerce and e-Payment business were
classified as non-current assets classified as held for sale and liability
directly associated with non-current assets classified as asset held for
sale, respectively. In August 2017 and June 2018, the Group signed
two MOUs with the potential buyers to sell the e-Commerce and
e-Payment business at consideration with reference to its market
value, respectively.

An independent valuation of the China Consume, which non-current
asset classified as held for sale was performed by the valuer, Ravia
Global Appraisal Advisory Limited to determine the fair value as at 31
March 2019 and 2018 by an income approach of fair value less costs of
disposal valuation method.

The following table summarises the China Consume corresponding
assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2019.

(prsa

THA20184F 2019 3A31H EFF

BHEETRKLETIMNER  HE
FTRABMEFINEBZHBEERE
BEEARDEREBAELE ZIERE
BEREDBEAFEEHEELEZIER
HEEAEABZAR - R20175F8 A
K2018F6 A AEEEEBETERS A
FIIMMOMBRETE  HEETREEK
BFZNER  REDELEEME -

DEARBIELEZIERBEEZHEH
SHE 2B E R (A I LIRS
BMAERARET  RAAFERLE
FAEE 5 A 2 WA B TE R 2019F
N 201853 A31 BZ AFE -

TERBMAEEER2019F3 83182
HBREERBE -

2019 2018
HK$’000 HKS'000
F#&T FHET
Fair value less cost of disposal DN EBEERAK 194,000 193,000
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment WmE - HER&E 276 506
Intangible assets (note) mAE () 229,173 239,070
Interests in an associate il NCIA o 174 645
Current-assets REEE
Trade receivables, prepayment JEWE S TE - FBNRER
and other receivables H b eI IR = 865
Cash and cash equivalents Re kB EFEEE 15,488 744
Non-current assets classified SHEAREEHEZERBEE
as held for sale 245,111 241,830
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables FERTE 5308 I B At JE T 5B (30,324) (16,255)
Deferred tax liabilities FEREFHEEE (36,153) (36,153)
Liabilities directly associated HoBABEEHEEER
with non-current assets classified ERBEEEZHABZEE
as assets held for sale (66,477) (52,408)
Net assets held for sale BEELEEETFE 178,634 189,422
ERBRA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R MR

25

NET ASSETS HELD FOR SALE (CONTINUED)

Note:

Impairment tests for goodwill

In February 2017, the Group acquired a provisional licence through
acquisition of China Consume Financial Holdings Company Limited (“China
Consume”). The licence is a provisional licence issued by UnionPay
International Co., Ltd ("UPI") which allows the holder to conduct payment
processing services for UPI credit cards in Hong Kong, Japan, Korea, Italy and
France.

Goodwill is recognised through the acquisition of China Consume during the
year ended 31 March 2017.

Goodwill arising from the acquisition of China Consume is allocated to
e-Commerce and e-Payment business segment. During the year ended 31
March 2019, the recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering a twenty
five-year period. Cash flows beyond the twenty five-year period are
extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated below.

For the impairment test for goodwill, the key assumptions, revenue growth
rate, long term growth rate and discount rate used in the value-in-use
calculations in 2019 are disclosed below.

1% to 182%
20%

Revenue growth rate
Discount rate
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REFHEZEERE(R)
PAE

AR AR

R201742 7 AEBEBRBEFREE SR
ZRAAR AR ([ EHE ) BRS RR
Rt ZFHERESHRBERARAR
([SREERRR |) 30 2 WRIS S AT I - o RF
RHAARESL - BA - BB - BAMBER
HEFTIRE B E A RS SR IR AR -

REZE2017E38BIEEE HEBBK
B EE B R o

WETBEEEBMEAEEIREETRAS K
BEFXNEBRHIL - BHE2019F3A318 1
FE REELEMMATIE S5 HERE
HEENTEET ZStE8FERENER
Bt EN -+ RAFHEBEREEZHRAES
mETER - BB _+HEFHENRSRED
NSt A aT G R R HEA o

HREEREN - 20105 5B EE %
A2 EEME  MEEER  EREE
RRBERER T XHE -

I asig R & 1% % 182%
BhIR & 20%



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRHEE

26 SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM 26 BAKEE
Nominal
Number of value of
ordinary ordinary Share
shares shares premium Total
LTERYME TEREE B3 E wmE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAET T
Authorised EE
At1 April 2017,31 March 2018 7 2017F 4818 -
and 31 March 2019 20183 A31B R
201943 A31H 9,000,000,000 900,000 - 900,000
Issued and fully paid SERTRHRE
At 1 April 2017,31 March 2018 7R 201794 H1H -
and 31 March 2019 2018F3 A31 B R
20193 A31H 716,190,000 71,619 673,503 745122
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27 OTHER RESERVES 27 Htf#E
Foreign
Merger Statutory currency  Share-based  Convertible
reserve reserves  translation  compensation bonds  Revaluation
(Note ) (Noteii) reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
AfHRE EERE HERB RAHE TRRES
(PzED) (ki) i 1] it BftfE @t
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TAT TET TEx TET TET FET THT
(Note 33)
(Wit33)
Balance at 1 April 2017 (restated) 720174 A1 B 7 £64
(&&31) 2002 2389 30,10 6,808 7075 9375 184265
Currency translation differences  ERZEE - - 15,030 - - - 15,030
Share option scheme —value of  EERRIER T8 — BB IRIS
employee service (Note 34) EEGEED) - - - 15,531 - - 15,531
Reversal upon disposal of land &L REF 2 B[
and buildings - - - - - (94,375) (94,375)
Balance at 31 March 2018 20183 A31 B 2 &8 2,002 23,895 45140 2339 7075 - 1041
Currency translation differences  ERZE - - 8727) - - - (8727)
Share option scheme —valueof  EERRIE: T8I — (BB RIS
employee service (Note 34) EEIGEED] - - - 2762 - - 2762
Balance at 31 March 2019 R2019F3 A31 B2 &t 22,002 2389 36413 25,101 7075 - 11448
Notes: P 5T
() The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference between () FAEEAHFERRARDETRAR

(i)

the nominal amount of the share capital issued by the Company and
the nominal amount of the share capital of the subsidiaries transferred
to the Company in connection with the reorganisation for the listing
of the shares of the Company.

Companies which are established in the PRC are required to make
appropriations to certain statutory reserves from profit for the year
after offsetting accumulated losses from prior years and before profit
distribution to equity holders. The percentages to be appropriated to
such statutory reserve funds are determined according to the relevant
regulations in the PRC or at the discretion of the board of the
respective companies. Such statutory reserves can only be used to
offset accumulated losses, to increase capital, or for special bonus or
collective welfare of employees. These statutory reserves cannot be
distributed to equity holders of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRHEE

28 TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

28

BNESRE B BEAREME
E/S

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FHT

Trade payables R E 5508 62,872 102,737
Accruals and other payables FEET & A I B At e~ FRIE 54,242 36,577
117,114 139,314

The ageing analysis of trade payables by invoice date is as follows:

REREAMPIS ZEMNE S RAEZERR
DT

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$'000

THERT T

0-30 days 0-30 H 4 12,323
31-60 days 31-60 H - 5239
61-90 days 61-90 H 19 1,020
Over 90 days 90 HLA E 62,849 84,155
62,872 102,737

The amounts are repayable according to normal trade terms from 30

to 90 days.

The carrying amounts of the trade payables, accruals and other
payables are denominated in the following currencies:

B —RE SIEFRER 30 290 A
=

EN B A - Bt BB REMEN K
B2 RESERIATE®E

2019 2018

HK$’000 HKS$'000

THExT TFETT

Hong Kong dollar BIT 28,988 27,756
Renminbi AR 87,301 110,367
New Taiwan dollar e 825 975
Others Hit - 216
117,114 139,314
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29 BORROWINGS 29 BE
2019 2018
HK$’000 HKS'000
F#&T FETT
Short-term bank loan — secured EHISRITE R — AT - 5,130
The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the EEEmSBITNTEKIE -

following currencies:

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
New Taiwan dollar e - 5,130
The bank loans are repayable in range of 30 days to 90 days from the RITEZAREERITH AR 30E 90 A
date of issuance. e -
At 31 March 2018, a bank loan of HK$5,130,000 was interest bearing 201843 A31H « 58 47 & 25130000
at a fixed rate of 2.2% per annum and secured by the Group's SRR B E R 00 B A E
standby letter of credit amounting to USS1 million, a promissory & > 1,000,000 2 7T 48 F{= B Wk + DA R A
note of New Taiwan dollar 28 million co-made by the Group and the EEEFETERBRILAEL Y
former non-controlling shareholder. 28,000,000 3 & ¥ =~ AT = iE Va3 o
The fair value of the bank loan equals its carrying amount, as the BAER Y ATEMBAENEETLSE
impact of discounting is not significant due to its short maturity. T AN T ARy
TEKRPTE
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30 OBLIGATION UNDER FINANCE LEASE 30

BMEHERE

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Gross finance lease liabilities — minimum HEMEAGEE —EHEE

lease payments: HER:
Within one year —&FR 107 107
In the second to fifth year inclusive FEFLF (BEERWMTE) 37 143

144 250

Less: Future finance charges B RRBEER (15) (24)
Present value of obligation under finance BEHEEAERE

lease 129 226
The present value of finance lease MEMEAERABANT

liabilities is as follows:
Within one year —&FR 97 97
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_ZERF(REEREME) 32 129
Present value of obligation under finance A EAVEIRE

lease 129 226

The weighted average effective interest rates per annum of the
obligation under finance lease was 2.5% (2018: 2.5%).

Interest rates are fixed at contract date. The lease was on a fixed
repayment basis. The obligation under finance lease is secured by
the lessor's charge over the leased asset. The carrying amount of the
obligation under finance lease approximates its fair value and is
denominated in Hong Kong dollar.
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31

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 5 July 2016, the Group issued a 6% convertible bonds (“CB-1") at a
par value of HK$30,000,000. The convertible bonds mature four years
from the issue date at their nominal value of HK$30,000,000 or can
be converted into the Group’s shares at the bondholder’s option at a
conversion price of HK$1.81 per share. The bondholder has right to
redeem the bonds after two years from the issue date at 108% of the
principal amount. The value of liability component of HK$22,025,000
and the equity conversion component of HK$7,075,000, net of
transaction cost of HK$900,000 being allocated proportionally to the
liability and equity components, were determined at issuance of the
bond. The fair value of the liability component included in long-term
borrowings was calculated using a market interest rate for an
equivalent non convertible bond. The liability component is
subsequently states at amortised cost until extinguished on
conversion or maturity of the bond. The residual amount,
representing the value of the equity conversion component, is
included in shareholders” equity in convertible bonds reserves.

On 24 August 2016, the Group issued a 10.5% convertible bonds
("CB-II") at a par value of HK$150,000,000. The convertible bonds
mature three years from the issue date at their nominal value of
HK$150,000,000 or can be converted into the Group's shares at the
bondholder’s option at a conversion price of HK$1.845 per share.
Since the conversion features of CB-Il fail the fixed-to fixed
requirement for equity classification, it was recognised as two
components, liabilities component and derivative component with a
conversion option derivative of the holders and a redemption option
derivative of the holders. The liability component and derivative
component are recognised initially at the fair value of the compound
financial instrument as a whole. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the compound financial instrument is measured at fair value as a
whole, with changes in fair value presented to the consolidated
income statement in the period in which they arise. CB-Il is under
personal guarantee of Mr. ZHU Xiaojun, the Chairman of the
Company.
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30,000,000% 7T 2 6 [ AT #2 f% & % ([ 7 3
BREFI) - JHRRES BT HHRR
MU 1% EI 87 - JE R B A 30,000,000 8 7T
R IBEESEAANEREBUAER181BTT
ZABMEERARER B o EHFEF
EAEBRNRETHEMTRIZERASTE
1%EEEH - BEHBH 2 EE
22,0250008 T R EmE BRI S 2B E
70750008 7T+ IBWHIHEEEER
%2 50 0 1Bk 32 5 E F 900,000 A TL 1%
TRBITESFRETE - sTARBEEZ
BEIFDRAFENFERAERTTBRRKRE
HFZMIGHEFTE - AESH EkkE
SHAK AR BR B B R E i i ol B HR Ry
HEAAL - MR ERERITY
ZBE - DIATTRBRESR#ERE

fas o

MR2016F8 A28 AEBEBITHE
150,000,000 70,2 105 [B A2 f& &% ([ 7]
BREEFN]) - TRBRESEETHEE
ST =& EH - JE KA A 150,000,000
B IREHFFEANERENGR 1845
BT ABREEBARER KRG - A
RARRE SR | 2 B TR EEE D
MrETHETHT  WERRLME
B BEBIUALRERBRFE AER
BEBTETARBEABREEEN
ETEZHTERD - BEED RHTEED
PN IREASHITEEE ANFET
LARERR - RYIPHERE  ZEESHT
B AT EREESE  MAFEES
TREESZHERGEERERARE
Bl o AJRIREHIBAARREEFERES L
AVET B AR o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R MR

31 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONTINUED) 31 oRKRES (E)
The convertible bonds recognised in the consolidated statement of REREMBARRRANRRZ ATRRES
financial position are as follows: w
Financial
liabilities
Financial at fair value
liabilities through
at amortised profit
costs orloss
(“CB-I") (“CB-II") Total
REHRATE BAFEFA
ZemBE BRzoRAR
((erEH]) (TeRESIN) Loy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FAT
Asat 1 April 2017 MN2017F4 A1 H 24,159 127,590 151,749
Interest accretion B igE 4,535 - 4,535
Fair value loss recognised BERERALTEER - 15,869 15,869
Interest paid BAFE (1,800) (15,750) (17,550)
As at 31 March 2018 M 20184F3 A31H 26,894 127,709 154,603
Interest accretion B EE 5,067 - 5,067
Fair value loss recognised ERANTEER - 16,768 16,768
Interest paid BEAFE (1,801) (4,755) (6,556)
As at 31 March 2019 20193 A31H 30,160 139,722 169,882
Representing: AT Z3 2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T FHET
Current portion BNHARR 141,522 17,550
Non-Current portion JEBNEREL 28,360 137,053
169,882 154,603
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31

32

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONTINUED)

The fair values measurement of the derivative embedded to the CB-l
were determined by using binomial model, were assessed by an
independent valuer, with the following key assumption:

31

AR ES (F)

AR ES DA 20T E TAATEE 8
T 64 78 37 ek B 45 R — TR RS A 4% T 5
EEMRETEE -

On inception date Rtk B m 2018
Valuation techniques HEHEM Market approach Market approach

&% s
Discount rate BhIA & 18.37% 12.87%
Risk free interest rate 4 3| fa 1) = 1.38% 1.24%
Time to maturity (years) 2 HARE R (5F) 0.4 14
Expected volatility & B R e 40.00% 30.00%

Increase in discount rate and volatility by 1% and 1% would decrease
or increase the fair value of derivative component in convertible
notes by approximately HK$1,567,000 and HK$226,000.

CORPORATE BOND

On 8 May 2017, the Group issued a two-year corporate bond with
principal amount of HK$350,000,000 at interest rate of 12% per
annum for the first year and 13% per annum for the second year. The
bond is guaranteed by Mr. Zhu Xiaojun, Chairman of the Company,
and is pledged by the shares of the Milan Properties Vendor. The
proceeds from the issuance of the corporate bond were received by
the Group in May 2017.
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33 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The gross movement on the deferred tax liabilities is as follows:

33 EEHREEE
RIETRIB BB 2 BEFHINT

Tax
Fair depreciation
value gain allowance Total
MIBHE
A ERE R EE 5T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FH&T
Asat 1 April 2017 R2017F4 /318 36,153 586 36,739
Transfer to liabilities directly HEBBEHEIFRE
allocated with non-current BEEEMR2EE
assets held for sale (36,153) - (36,153)
Credited to the consolidated BRGRAEWERFEIA
income statement - (586) (586)

As at 31 March 2018 and
31 March 2019

201893 A31H
201943 A31H

As at 31 March 2019, no deferred tax liabilities have been recognised
for the withholding tax as there is no distributable profit for the
Group's subsidiaries established in the PRC. The income tax liability is
not recognised where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The Group has unrecognised tax losses and unrecognised temporary
differences of approximately HK$1,043,013,000 (2018:
HK$905,312,000) to carry forward against future taxable income.
These tax losses are subject to approval by the Hong Kong Inland
Revenue Department and the PRC tax authority respectively,
approximately HK$520,175,000 (2018: HK$492,367,000) of
unrecognised tax losses have no expiry date and the remaining loss
of HK$475,743,000 (2018: HK$403,647,000) will expire in 5 years.
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34 POST-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (“Share Option Scheme”) was adopted by
the shareholders” written resolution of the Company dated 21 May
2007.0n 28 November 2016, share options were granted to directors
and to selected employees under the Share Option Scheme.

The subscription price determined by the board shall be at least the
highest of: (a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the grant date, which must be
a business day; (b) the average closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the grant date; and (c) the nominal value of
the shares. Options are conditional on the employee completing 1
to 4 year's service (the vesting period). The options are exercisable
starting 1 years from the grant date. The Company has no legal or
constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the options in cash.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their
related weighted average exercise prices are as follows:
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34 POST-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) 34 BRAHERZERESS (&)
Average
exercise price
in Hong Kong
dollar per share Options
BREBRH 2B T
FHITEE BRE
('000)
(FtH
At 1 April 2017 M2017F4H18 145 41,000
Lapsed [ - (1,500)
At 31 March 2018 7201843 A31H 145 39,500
Lapsed [ - (4,000)
At 31 March 2019 201943 A31H 145 35,500
Movement in the number of share option vested are as follows: EREBEKESE 2EHuT

Number of share option vested ('000) BB ERESE (TH)

At 1 April n4 A1H 39,500 41,000
Granted =g = -
Lapsed BRR (4,000) (1,500)
Exercised 2171 - -
At 31 March MR3A31H 35,500 39,500
The shares option outstanding under the Post-IPO share option RERBE AN AFREREBRETS
scheme at the end of the year have the following vesting date, expiry MARTEZEREZ2EBRAS - ERAB
date and exercise price: EHRATEERT -
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34 POST-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) 34 BRLAHEEREBRETS (&)

Exercise price Number of share options

in Hong Kong ('000) outstanding at
Grant date Vesting date Expiry date dollar per share 31 March
BRERGBZ R3A31AEKRTHEZ
REBAH FEAM &% B & BILTEE BREZHE (T46)
| 2019 ] 2018
28 November 2016 28 November 2017 27 November 2021 145 15,750 17,500
2016411 A28 H 20174F11 H28H 202111 H27H
28 November 2016 28 November 2018 27 November 2021 145 15,750 17,500
20164 11 H28 H 20184 11 H28H 202111 H278
28 November 2016 28 November 2019 27 November 2021 145 2,000 2,250
2016411 A28 B 2019%F11 A28H 20214F11 A27H
28 November 2016 28 November 2020 27 November 2021 145 2,000 2,250
2016411 A28 H 2020F 11 H28H 202111 H27H
35,500 39,500

Share option expenses charged to the consolidated income
statement are based on valuation determined using binomial lattice
model. Share options granted were valued based on the following

assumptions:

AR A MR 2 B ER S TR (E S
“HAHBERUBEZAERFE -BER
BRI ETIRIE T RRE

Share price Annual
Option  at the date Exercise Expected risk-free Life of Dividend
Date of grant value of grant price volatility interest option yield
fBRE
RHAH £E AR FTERER
RHBAH BREEE ZROER THE  AERE SERRR= £4 ZBRE
28 November 2016 0.6610-0.8400 145 145 72.03% 1.11% 5 years 0.00%
2016411 A28 A 5%

ARER BRE 2 TEHR IR TR IR A 0 9%
HEMZESLRIEMETE -

Expected volatility of the Group’s share price was based on the
historical volatility of the share as at the date of grant.

BB A K B 2,762,000 7T (20184 ¢
15,531,000 70) M & W R P HERR ©

Share option expenses of HK$2,762,000 (2018: 15,531,000) was
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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35 NOTE SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 35 SZEREREXRMEE
CASH FLOWS
Reconciliation of loss before income tax expense to cash Rt R A B
used in operations AziEe iR
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Loss before income tax AEHFTS R I E R (246,086) (207,280)
Loss before tax expense BRI E R 2 ReTTiIA
from discontinued operations F Xz AT E 18 (11,300) (2,689)
(257,386) (209,969)
Adjustments for: T HSEEL R
— Depreciation of property, — W% BERREBEZTE
plant and equipment 4,134 7,400
— Impairment of property, — W% - BB REERE
plant and equipment 157 233
— Net write-back of inventories — FEEEFEE (5,472) (5,753)
— Amortisation of intangible assets — EmIEE Y 162 589
— Impairment expense — RERX 2,086 -
— Inventory written off — FEHH 23,976 -
— Provision of trade receivables — RNE SRR G 7,424 -
— Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, —~ — HEWE « EMEKEZ
plant and equipment BB (Kes) 278 (23,878)
— Gain on disposal of subsidiaries —HEMB AR ZWZE (512) -
— Gain on disposal of assets held — HEREIEREEE &
for sale = (7,217)
— Finance income — BRI (12,495) (9,701)
— Finance expense — IR 77,508 69,502
— Share option expenses — BERER Y 2,574 15,531
— Share of losses in associates — [EREE N R 2 B 2,300 1,634
Changes in working capital: LiEEEE
— Inventories —FE 70,317 51,356
— Trade receivables — KB 5IA 23,819 5,882
— Deposits, prepayments — & ENFIAREME
and other receivables & e 17,180 14,547
— Amounts due from associates — FEURES &N R IR (364) -
— Amount due to an associate — BN —MEEE R EFEIE (1,288) -
— Trade payables — ERNE S8 (33,884) 17514
— Accruals and other payables — EFERREMERNKIA 20,171 (21,922)
Cash used in operations KEACR® (59,315) (94,252)
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36 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES 36 AQFZHBRARRFEEE

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company @) AAEZIEMRRE
As at 31 March
M3A31H
2019 2018
Note HK$’000 HKS$'000
P E FET FETT
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset FRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries SNV 315,458 305,998
Interests in associates REEE N R 2 xS 2,019 -
317,477 305,998
Current assets REBEE
Deposits, prepayments and e ENRIEREME
other receivables WezhiE 102,755 110,853
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReSEER 147 1,844
102,902 112697
Total assets EEHAE 420,379 418,695
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves KAREREE AEML
attributable to equity IR AR 15
holders of the Company
Share capital B 71,619 71,619
Share premium &1 m 8 673,503 673,503
Convertible bond reserve Al E AR 36(b) 7,075 7,075
Share-based compensative M EREE 36(b)
reserve 25,101 22,339
Accumulated losses ZEEE 36(b) (961,231) (857,235)
Total equity ERBE (183,933) (82,699)
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36 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES 36 ADFZHBARRRRBEESE(E)
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company @) ARATZEBARRE (E)
(Continued)
As at 31 March
M3A318
2019 2018
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5T FHET FHT
LIABILITIES =N
Current liabilities REBAE
Accruals and other payables FEETE A M E A e I8 12,934 2,113
Convertible bonds Bk E S 141,522 17,550
Corporate bonds NEESH 400,323 -
Amount due to a subsidiary e —EM B A RIF0E 13,355 -
Amounts due to associates FETEE & N B IR 7,818 -
575,952 19,663
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Convertible bonds IR ES 28,360 137,053
Corporate bond NREH - 344,678
28,360 481,731
Total liabilities aEe® 604,312 501394
Total equity and liabilities EEkEEAE 420,379 418,695
The financial statements were approved by the Board of B EAR N 2019F 6 A28 AKES
Directors on 28 June 2019 and were signed on its behalf. etk WHERREE -
Zhu Xiaojun Kang Jianming
KRE J=3= 1)1
Director Director
EF EFE
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36 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES 36 ADFZHBARRRRBEESE(E)
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

(b) Reserves movement of the Company (b) ARABZEEEE

Convertible  Share-based
bonds compensation Accumulated

reserve reserve losses Total
ARRES
#E ROBERE Rt EE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FHL THL FHET THL
At 1 April 2017 R2017F481H 7075 6,808 (533,267) (519,384)
Loss for the year KEERE - - (323,968) (323,968)
Share option scheme — value of BBkt El — BB IR
employee service EE] - 15,531 - 15,531
At 31 March 2018 R2018F3 A31H 7075 22,339 (857,235) (827,821)
Adjustment on initial application ~ R¥EERE AT HRE
of HKFRS 9 HRIE ORI 2 3% - - (997) (997)
Adjusted balance at T April 2018 2018454 A1 B 2 &A%
e 7075 22,339 (858,232) (8283818)
Loss for the year NEEER - - (102,999) (102,999)
Share option scheme —value of BBk & — (R B AR 7S
employee service BE - 2,762 - 2,762
At 31 March 2019 R2019%3 8318 7075 25,101 (961.231) (929,055)
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37 FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT
37.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk and interest rate
risk), credit risk, price risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall
risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance.

Management regularly manages the financial risks of the
Group. Because of the simplicity of the financial structure and
the current operations of the Group, no major hedging
activities are undertaken by management.

(a) Foreign currency risk

The Group operates principally in Hong Kong and the
PRC. Transactions are mainly conducted in the functional
currency of each group entity and therefore the foreign
currency risk is considered to be minimal. The conversion
of Renminbi into foreign currencies is subject to the rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.

(b) Interestrate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from loan
receivables (Note 23) and borrowings (Note 29). Income,
which both are carried at fixed interest rate. At 31 March
2019, the Group has no cash flow interest-rate risk as
there are no loan receivables and borrowings which bear
floating interest rates. The following table details the
interest rate profile of the Group at the end of the
reporting period.

37

B iR e e
370 BiEBERERZE

(a)

(b)

AEBEBEHZENERERE : ™
2R (81 HNE R B & X E
%) EERR - ERERERE
ﬁiﬂ[ﬂA $El2 SEl
Er=E & BT 5 2 Al TR R
|EE ZIEE?IH BAREEFBERR
BEPNZERERE -

ERETHERAEE KA
(% o HRNASEE T RS MIREE
BEE  WEEBYRETENE
REHES -

SMEER
AREEBRESRFAEE -

SFEBNEREERZINEEHE
T BicSNERREE - AR
SRS B8 <7 B U AR AR
ZHNEE IR A FOEH o

2= &
REBZFERAKREIERAENRE
(M FE23) RAEE (KI5E29) - U
AT IR EEFEEE o 201943
A31H  AEBETERS RSN X
B RRATEEKRERREE
BEFBAEGE - TRFVAER
PIRE AR 2 F AR

2019 2018
Effective Effective
interest rate HK$'000 interest rate HK$'000
ERRAI= TERT EIRFE FHET
Fixed rate borrowings EEREE
Borrowings EE N/A & A - 2.2% 5,130
Less: Loan receivables i JEWE R 10.32% (135,846) 10.36% (130,873)
Total net borrowings BEEFE (135,846) (125,743)
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37 FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
37.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Creditrisk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit
risk. The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables
and cash and cash equivalents represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets. As at 31 March 2019 and 2018, all bank balances
were deposited in reputable financial institutions and
were hence without significant credit risk. Management
does not expect any losses from non-performance by
these counterparties. Credit sales are made to selected
customers with good credit history. The Group has
policies in place to ensure that outstanding trade
receivables are collected on a timely basis. Trade
receivables are subject to the expected credit loss model.
The Group applies HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables from
initial recognition. To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The
expected loss rates are based on the historical payment
profiles of sales and the corresponding historical credit
losses experienced. The historical loss rates are adjusted
to reflect current and forward-looking information on
factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the
receivables.

The credit quality of the other receivables excluding
deposits and prepayments have been assessed with
reference to historical information about the
counterparties’ default rates and financial position of the
counterparties. The directors are of the opinion that the
credit risk of other receivables is low due to the sound
collection history of the receivables due from them.
Therefore, expected credit loss rate of the other
receivables excluding deposits and prepayments is
assessed to be close to zero and no provision was made
as of 31 March 2019 and 2018.
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(c)
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37 FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 37 BIEERERE(E)
37.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 370 BiiEERREZE (E)

(d) Liquidity risk

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group
reported a net loss of HK$257,386,000 (2018:
HK$209,383,000) and had a net cash outflow from
operating activities of HK$59,343,000 (2018:
HK$96,172,000). As at 31 March 2019, the Group'’s cash
and cash equivalents amounted to HKS$1,763,000. On 8
May 2017, the Group issued a two-year bond with
principal amount of HK$350,000,000 at interest rate of
12% per annum for the first year and 13% per annum for
the second year. The bond is guaranteed by Mr. ZHU
Xiaojun, Chairman of the Company and is pledged by
the shares of China Investment S.p.A. The Group would
redeem the bond at its principal amount HK$350,000,000
in May 2019.

In view of these advance factors, a series of remedial
measures to mitigate the liquidity pressure have been
taken to improve its financial and liquidity position of the
Group as a whole. Details are disclosed in Note 2.1 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the end of reporting date to the contractual
maturity date. The accounts disclosed in the table are
the contractual undiscounted cash flows based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.

Within 1 year

1R
HK$’000

(d)

RBE SRR

HE2019F3HA31H IEHF
B AEBEERSEEF
%8257,386,0007%8 JT(20184F :
209,383,000/ 7C) © &L &
EEBEALA RS R L F
%4 459,343,000 70 (2018 F -
96,172,000 70) ° 122019 4F
3ANAE AEBEZEER
HeZEEB A1,763000%8
JC e PR2017F5H8H » K&
317 7K € 88 A 350,000,000
BILZMFEHES  FFX
RE—FRE_FHHAEI
[ERI3E - ZEHBARRQF
FEREELEER  UH
China Investment S.p.AR% 17 &
B ANEE K N2019F5
A §& Bl A & %8 /350,000,000
BILZES °

EREHEE BERI—XR
FI 2 TR 7 AR R B &
BN RAAEEER
PEERBEERR - BE
HBEBEENGRE M BEHRERN
E2.1°

TRERNEERESDLE
HHSTHE A2 HE
Ao ANEBcERAIE-
RPAIHEZ SR RERAR
SEARERNRZHEFEA
G EZ R HORBBARER

=
E-°

Between
1to 5 years Total
15E55 o
HK$'000 HK$'000

TR

FTET FRET

As at 31 March 2019: MR2019F3A318 :
Other payables, accruals HAbfETZIE - FEET

and other liabilities ERNHEMBE 54,349 36 54,385
Amount due to an associate i {~f — RSB 42 X 7

IA 2,445 - 2,445

Trade payables FERTE S 7018 62,872 - 62,872

Corporate bond NRESH 406,875 - 406,875

Convertible bonds AT E S 169,656 30,893 200,549

696,197 30,929 727,126
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37 FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 37 BIXERER(HF)
37.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 370 BKREBEZE(E)
(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) (d) REBELRMR(E)

Between
Within 1 year 1105 years Total
1A 1FE5F st
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FET T FET

As at 31 March 2018: R2018F3A31H :
Other payables, accruals E T FRIR

and other liabilities FEETE A R E A
BB 36,687 143 36,830
Trade payables FENE B IE 102,737 - 102,737
Borrowings B 5,138 - 5138
Corporate bond NEEH 44,625 361,375 406,000
Convertible bonds AT E S 17,550 187,957 205,507
206,737 549,475 756,212
37.2 Capital risk management 37.2 EXEBERE
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to REBEREAER BERBRA
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in EEEEMFELE - UARERE
order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other B Rk AHMBHEREFZE R
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to RRFREZEREEUREER
reduce the cost of capital. AR o
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group RRTGRPFREREE  NEEK
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, FHEBEKNTREZRESRE R
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to EIERTRE « BITHRKIEEE
reduce debt. ERIEER -
The Group's capital structure is being reviewed annually to TEBEEFHRATEARLERE  UE
ensure these objectives are to be achieved. REDZEFRR -
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37 FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 37 HIEERKBEE (&)
37.2 Capital risk management (Continued) 37.2 EXERERE (F)
The gearing ratios at 31 March 2019 and 2018 were as follows: MR2019F K 2018F3 H31 B2 EE
BELEAT
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Borrowings (Note 29) B8 (35 29) - 5,130
Corporate bond (Note 32) NAfES (M5E32) 400,323 344,678
Convertible bonds (Note 31) AR BE S (EE31) 169,882 154,603
Obligation under finance lease (Note 30) @& T & & (1 5F 30) 129 226
Total debts EIH4ERE 570,334 504,637
Total assets BERE 529,089 734,639
Gearing ratio BEBEEX 107.8% 68.7%
Note: The calculation of gearing ratio is based on the total debts M B EABH R IR3I AN B2 E
divided by total assets as at 31 March. THBEEG AEEQESE -
37.3 Fair value estimation 37.3 AVEMAET
The table below analyses the Group’s financial instruments TR#HIZFTEAFEFMAGBER
carried at fair value as at 31 March 2019 by level of the inputs M ABBRERD TR EERN 2019
to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. Such inputs FIANARAFEIE 2RI
are categorised into three levels within a fair value hierarchy as B BRBASBERUT=EQF
follows: BERDE :
Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical . MHAEENBBEERETS
assets or liabilities (level 1). LB (CRIERAR) (B 1R) -
Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 . E1RFTBRERELIINZBA
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly B FHEBWABEBREE
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from REERERPERE (AE
prices) (level 2). %) sk (AR EER) /T
(F28) °
Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on . A I LA A] #7245 BB A AR
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) B EESEERAZRE A
(level 3). TRIBRBABIE) (F38) -
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37 FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 37 BIXERER(HF)
37.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 37.3 A EMEE (E)

Details of the property, plant and equipment and net assets BHRATEFAEZNE BER
held for sale measured at fair value are disclosed in note 15 HEUARBAELE CEEFEZ
and 25 respectively. 15 DRI 15 K25 HEE o
The following table presents the Group's financial liabilities TREJAEERATEAZRZE
that are measured at fair value. BAafE-
As at 31 March 2019 720193 A31H

Level 1 Level 2

F1R F28

HK$'000 HK$'000

Level 3 Total
FE3K st

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

FHET FET

Liabilities =L
Convertible bonds (CB-Il) AT E A (AT H# AR
BEH )
— financial liabilities at fair ~ — IZ AL (EE A8z
value through profit or ZEmBaE
loss - - 139,722 139,722
Total financial liabilities BEAFEFEZ SR
measured at fair value aEBzsE - - 139,722 139,722
As at 31 March 2018 120183 H31H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B B FI3R 5T
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FHEIT FHET FHET FHEIT
Liabilities =L
Convertible bonds (CB-II) AR E S (AT HAR%
BEH )
— financial liabilities at fair ~ — # AT (A ABZ
value through profit or Zemas
loss - - 127,709 127,709
Total financial liabilities AT EFEZ S/
measured at fair value BE8E - - 127,709 127,709
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iR EE (&)
37.3 NPEMLE (E

37 FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 37
37.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The valuation techniques used for the valuation of fair value of
convertible bonds and the movement of the convertible
bonds recognised as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss during the year are disclosed in Note 31.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
is based on quoted market prices at the reporting date. A
market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions
on an arm’s length basis. These instruments are included in
level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market is determined by using valuation techniques.
These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable
market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on
entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair
value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included
in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

The carrying values of trade and other receivables and
payables are a reasonable approximation of their fair values.
The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is
estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at
the current market interest rate that is available to the Group
for similar financial instruments. There were no transfers
between level 1, 2 and 3 during the year.
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38 COMMITMENTS
(a) Capital commitments

(b)

As at 31 March 2019 and 2018, the Group had no capital
commitments.

Operating lease commitments

The future aggregate minimum lease payments and turnover
rental expenses under non-cancellable operating leases in
respect of retail shops, offices, warehouses and furniture,
fixtures and equipment are as follows:

38 RIE
@

(b)

BANESE

PR2019F K% 201853 A31H » A%
(B £ AR o

MEHEERE

REFHEZTEER HWRE BER
B RERRBZ TR RERLE
HMER ARz &EBREMNRRIRE
XEHIHEER AR ¢

2019 2018
HK$’000 HKS'000
FERT FAT
Land and buildings T REF
— No later than 1 year —1FR 10,791 28,463
— Later than 1 year and no later — 1 FERETEZRSF
than 5 years 3,836 7,674
14,627 36,137
Furniture, fixtures and equipment Rl REREE
— No later than 1 year —1FR 354 333
— Later than 1 year and no later — 1 FERETZRSF
than 5 years 771 1,125
7777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 1,125 1458
15,752 37,595

Leases are negotiated for varying terms, escalation clauses and
renewal options. The operating lease rentals of certain outlets
are based on the higher amount of the minimum guaranteed
rental and the sales level based rental. The above operating
lease commitments include commitments for fixed rent only.

In addition, rental payable in some cases include additional
rent, calculated according to gross revenue, in excess of the
fixed rent.
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39 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Y/ 166

(a) Key management compensation

During the year, the Group had the following significant

transactions with related parties:

39 EREHMALIRS

(@) FEEBASWHE
REBNFREEE AL ET T
BEARS

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Key management compensation TEEEAERE

Basic salaries, housing allowances, EXFHS - E£FEF - Ei)Ee,
other allowances and benefits-in-kind KREWF = 4,862 6,912
Share options expenses B ER 3,261 11,682
Contributions to pension plans IRIRS IR 18 18
8,141 18,612

Note:

Key management includes directors and certain senior management
who have important roles in making operational and financial

(b)

G

IEEBRASEREERETREER
MHEREAEEREZRRERAS -

decisions.
Year-end balances (b) FHREEER
2019 2018
HKS$’000 HK$'000
FHBT FHET
Amounts due from associates FEUHE & N B IR
— Prepayment — FERTFRIE - 7311
— Loan to associates — BERFHE QR 6,469 3,662
Amount due from a related party FEW — H BAEE A T 5RIE
— Refundable advance payment — ARERNNIE 98,881 98,881
Amount due to a related party FERS— R BB A L RUR
— Other payables — HhEFRIE 2,220 626

Note:

Refundable advance payment related to the purchase of the Milan
Properties from a related party. Other payables with related parties are
repayable on demand, unsecured and non-interest bearing.

Vestate Group Holdings Limited E#&R % HE

ERAR QA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R MR

40 SUBSIDIARIES 40 KEAF

TH AR 2019 % 2018F3HA31BHZ *

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2019

and 2018: EWBARIIK
Place of incorporation Principal activitiesand Particulars of
Name of company and kind of legal entity place of operation issued share capital Interest held
NEEH SRR IHEREEERERN IEEBREEMREL BROREFRE PR
Directly held:
EERE:
Carlyon Investment Holdings The British Virgin Islands, Investment holdingin 10,000 ordinary share of = 100%
Limited (o limited liability company Hong Kong US$1 each
RESRERRBR AR W RBRAEE  ARATF REBR/BE 10000 R &M 1T
EiBik
Genius Eam Investments Limited The British Virgin Islands, Investment holdingin 90 ordinary shares of 100% 100%
limited liability company Hong Kong USS1 each
BRREBRAR EBRUEE  ARAF REER/BE NRER 1 FLz EBK
Silver Summit Ventures Limited The British Virgin Islands, Investment holdingin 1 ordinary shares of 100% 100%
limited liability company Hong Kong USS1 each
REEIRBR AR RBREAEE FRAF REAZR/EE 1RERIETZ EER
Indirectly held:
BEEA
Artemis Footwear Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Retailing of footwearin 10,000,000 ordinary shares 100% 100%
company Taiwan
L AkHEEBRAR BB ARARA TEEE/PE 10,000,000 f % A%
Ascent Pride Investments Limited The British Virgin Islands, Investment holdingin 10,000 ordinary share of 100% 100%
limited liability company Hong Kong Us$1
AMRERRAR RERLAEE ARAF REER/BE 10000 A1 ETZ
Lk
Asia Glory Investments Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Investment holdingin 1 ordinary share 100% 100%
company Hong Kong
EEREBRATA E8 BRRA REBR/BE 1 Ek
Billion International Trading The PRC, wholly foreign-owned Retailing of footwearin ~ US$1,000,000 100% 100%
(Shanghai) Company Limited enterprise limited liability the PRC
company
ERAKRES (L) BRAT hE A EBECEERAA TEEE/TE 1,000,000 7T
Carlyon Asset Management Hong Kong, limited liability Asset managementin 5,000,000 ordinary share - 100%
Limited (te®) company Hong Kong
BRESEEERARARM & ARAF BEER/ B4 5,000,000 B ¥ AR
Carlyon Capital Limited <! Hong Kong, limited liability Inactive 100,000 ordinary shares - 100%
company
RESERBR AR W BE BRRA TEEKED 100,000 it & Rk

Annual Report 2018/2019  2018/2019 € %% 167 /KGN



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R MR

40 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Place of incorporation

40 B2 E (&)

Principal activitiesand Particulars of

Name of company and kind of legal entity place of operation issued share capital Interest held
kL MR GHREFRERERN FEEBREEMEH BRITRAFE FrisEs
Carlyon Properties Limited "< Hong Kong, limited liability Inactive 10,000 ordinary shares = 100%
company
REHMERR AT ) EE ARAA TEREBED 10,000 % & B Ak
Carlyon Securities Limited "< Hong Kong, limited liability Securities dealing in 10,000,000 ordinary shares - 100%
company Hong Kong
REDEFBR AR EE BRRA BREE/BR 10,000,000 AR & 8 %
Carlyon Finance Limited ¢ Hong Kong, limited liability Money lending in 100,000 ordinary shares 100% 100%
company Hong Kong
REBLRERRR ME BE BRAA BE/EE 100,000 B & iBAR
Carlyon Reits (BVI) Limited The British Virgin Islands, Investment holding 6,700 ordinary shares of 100% -
limited liability company in Hong Kong HK$1 each
RBRLEE  ARATF REBR/BE 6700 BB 178 7T
EiBik
China Consume Financial Holdings Hong Kong, limited liability Investment holding, 60,000,000 ordinary shares 100% 100%
Company Limited company e-Commerce and
e-Payment business
in Hong Kong
HEEERRIERERAR EE ARAA RERR - TFEBR 60000000 R EHE
ERSUES V&
Citiward Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Investment holdingin 1 ordinary share 100% 100%
company Hong Kong
ENERRAE EE ARAA REER/BE 1Bk
Million Fortune Star Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Corporate secretary 1 ordinary share 100% 100%
company
EREBRAR & BRRA PEWE 1REBER
Senet International Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Holding of trademarks in 10 ordinary shares 100% 100%
company Hong Kong
BRERBRAF EE BRRA BERR/BE 10 E B
Silver Focus International Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Inactive 100 ordinary shares 100% 100%
company
EFERERRA EEARAA TERERED 100 & A
Smart Sky International (Beijing) The PRC, wholly foreign-owned Inactive HK$2,800,000 100% 100%
Limited enterprise limited liability company
HRERES (tR) BRAE hE - HEBECERRAR  UEEXBEY 2,800,000 7T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R MR

40

SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Place of incorporation

40 B2 E (&)

Principal activitiesand Particulars of

Name of company and kind of legal entity place of operation issued share capital Interest held
DEER MR HEREEBRERN ETTERRCEMEL CROTREFESE FrisEs
Smart Trend Trading (Shenzhen) The PRC, wholly foreign-owned Retailing of footwearin -~ HK$41,000,000 100% 100%
Company Limited enterprise, limited liability the PRC
company
HEES (R BRRR HENEEEACEERLR  TERE/TE 41,000,000 7T
Smarter Trading (Beijing) The PRC, wholly foreign-owned Retailing of footwearin  HK$40,000,000 100% 100%
Company Limited enterprise, limited liability the PRC
company
BEE S (ILR) BRAF HEMEBECEERAT  TEEE/TE 40,000,000 7T
Surplus Jet Investments Limited The British Virgin Islands, Investment holdingin 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100%
limited liability company Hong Kong
BEREBRARA RBRAEE ARAF REZR/EE a1 Zr ERk
Trunari Enterprises Company Limited  Hong Kong, limited liability Holding of trademarks and 22,000,000 ordinary 100% 100%
company properties in Hong Kong
EHREXBRAR B BRRA BAMRRYE/BE 22000000 %L B
Walker Group (Shanghai) The PRC, wholly foreign-owned Retailing of footwearin  U55200,000 100% 100%
Company Limited enterprise, limited liability the PRC
company
BRRARES (LB ERAT  HE IEBECEERLR  TEER/TE 200000 % 7T
Walker Group China Company Hong Kong, limited liability Investment holdingin 100 ordinary shares 100% 100%
Limited company Hong Kong
REEE(TE)ERAF BE AR REER/BE 100 A & @i
Walker Group International Hong Kong, limited liability Investment holdingin 100 ordinary shares 100% 100%
Company Limited company Hong Kong
REEE(ER)ERARA EE  BRRA RERR/ % 100 B & 3B AR
Carlyon Trading Limited 9 Hong Kong, limited liability Trading and investment 100 ordinary shares 100% 100%
company
REREHERAF (= EB BRRA BHLERE 100 B & sRA
Walker Shop Footwear Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Investment holding and 500,000,000 ordinary 100% 100%
company retailing of footwear in -~ shares
Hong Kong
&k BRAA RERRLTE 500,000,000 % & i
8H/E%
Guangzhou Yinghui Trading The PRC, wholly foreign-owned Trading of footwearin ~ HK$1,500,000 100% 100%
Company Limited* enterprise limited liability the PRC
company
ENREBEZERAF HEMEBECEERAT  BEEE/TE 1,500,000/ 7T
Annual Report 2018/2019 2018/2019 & 5%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRHEE

40 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Place of incorporation

40 B2 E (&)

Principal activitiesand Particulars of

Name of company and kind of legal entity place of operation issued share capital Interest held
DEER MR HEREEBRERN ETTERRCEMEL CROTREFESE FrisEs
Guoxin Wangfu Information and The PRC, foreign and domestic Information technology ~ RMB100,000,000 85% 85%
Technology Company Limited? owned enterprise limited liability
company
BEAEEERRBR AR hE - AEERNAELE EERR AEH 100,000,000 7T
AR
Shanghai Shenglv Advertisement The PRC, foreign-owned enterprise  Sales and marketing RMB16,000,000 85% 85%

Company Limited?
FEBRESERAR

limited liability company

HE - AHEEBERRT 5 HRE

T The English names of certain companies represent the best effort by
the management of the Group in translating their Chinese names as
they do not have official English names.

Notes

a. The company name of Carlyon Exchange Limited has changed to
Carlyon Properties Limited on 17 May 2018 and disposed to an
independent third party on 6 June 2018.

b. At 1 November 2018, 66% shares of Carlyon Investment Holdings
Limited had been transfer to third parties and Vestate Group Holdings
Limited reminds holding 34% of its shares.

c. The Chinese name of 1832 S8 % B R A 7] has changed to /&1 5
S EABRAE] on 7 March 2019.

d. The company name of Walker International Footwear Limited has

changed to Carlyon Exchange Limited on 29 October 2018 and has
further changed to Carlyon Trading Limited on 8 May 2019.
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R R R MR

41

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 41 HEMEBLARA
During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group entered into an HE2019F3831BIEFE  AEERE
agreement with an independent third party to dispose of its 66% —BBUER=FEINHE - NEBRAL
equity interests in Carlyon Investment Holdings Limited (“Carlyon EERBESRERERBR AR (KR
Investment”), an directly wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, SRE ] AR EEZENBRR) 2
for a total consideration of HK$5,000,000 in cash. The disposal was 66% X HE - HAR[E RIRE 5,000,000 7T ©
completed on 1 November 2018. HEER2018F 11 A1 HREK °
Assets and liabilities derecognised at the date when the REBAERESREZRER QA
group lost control over Carlyon Investment Holdings EHEEARIBRCEERARE
Limited

HK$'000

FAT
Cash consideration HEREB 5,000
Property, plant and equipment WE - BB R&E 77
Intangible assets BIVEE 242
Rental deposits — non-current HERS — FEAIH 236
Trade receivables EWE 55R1E 88
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables e BNFOE A EWREIE 130
Intercompany balance — HK NalffEs —BAE 1,238
Cash and cash equivalents ReEkReEFEEE 5,904
Accruals and other payables FEETE R K EAth FE A FRIE (1,115)
Net assets disposed of FIEEEEFE 6,800
Recognition of an associate MEREE N A (2312)

4,488

Gain on disposal BT SHEs 512

Net cash flow on disposal of Carlyon Investment Holdings
Limited

HERESREZRERAAKZR
TREFE

HK$'000

FAT

Cash consideration received SRS RE 5,000
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of W BHEReRASEEER (5,904)
(904)
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e M HRRHEE

42 EVENTS AFTER THE DATE OF REPORTING PERIOD

On 24 May 2019, the Group entered into a disposal agreement with
an independent third party to sell the entire issued share capital of
Artemis Footwear Limited and 50% of the total issued share capital
of Walker Shop Footwear Limited at consideration of HK$2,500,000.

As of the date of this report, the transaction had not completed.
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WREHRBREIER

R2019F5 248 REBBEBYE=
F R E Wk 0 LARE 2,500,000 T
HE NGRS AR AR 22 3T
fi% 7K K2 Walker Shop Footwear Limited & 3
TR A 4B EE 2 50% ©
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
FFEHE

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS

meakask
For the year ended 31 March
HE3A3ALEE
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(mE5) (mE5) (mE5)
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
HK$’000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FET THIL TET T THEL
Continuing operations BEREEY
Revenue Wzs 110,349 346,157 561,557 840,658 1,090,668
Cost of sales SHER K (70,444) (171,069) (272,996) (357,342) (473,751)
Gross profit ES 39,905 175,088 288561 483316 616917
Operating expenses REBH (188,377) (355,485) (513,646) (642,913) (719,836)
Other gains/(losses), net Higizs/ (B1B) - 3E (33,676) 30,552 (400) (394) 8262
Other income HetA 3,375 4,000 4,742 4277 7,035
Operating loss Fy (178,773) (145.845) (220743) (155,714) (87,622)
Finance (costs)/income, net B (BA) /A - %E (65,013) (59,801) 11,107 (524) (489)
Share of losses of associates JE(REEE AR BB (2,300) (1634) — — —
Loss before income tax RetFrEHER/
credit/(expense) (B%) BiEE (246,086) (207,280) (209,636) (156,239) (88,111)
Income tax credit/(expense) iEfEe,/ (FAX) - 586 (116) (656) 2415)
Loss for the year rEEHR (246,086) (206,694) (209,752) (156,894) (90526)
Continuing operations FESELH
Attributable to: FEfS
Equity holders of the Company AR ARIHEZIEB A (245,361) (206,076) (209,065) (155,892) (89,546)
Non-controlling interests IR (725) (618) (687) (1,002) (980)
(246,086) (206,69%4) (209,752) (156,894) (90,526)
Dividends KE - — — — —

Annual Report 2018/2019

2018209 %% 173 /AKGGGW



FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
FFEHE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mEMBEMRRE
As at 31 March
®3A31H
(Restated) (Restated)
(E7) (&7
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
TER TET THT TET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plantand equipment 1%  BE R & 3,389 7,958 113,534 29,252 34,942
Intangible assets B AE 373 804 230,788 1873 2,570
Investment in a joint venture EA—F%\%QTZ&E 510 510 510 — —
Interests in associates i YN 12,962 6,530 7,227 — —
Deferred income tax assets ukﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁ — — — — 6,091
Available-for-sale AHLEERERE
financial assets — 6,248 — — —
Long-term deposits and RERe RENTIE
prepayments 1,155 11,363 27,354 12,588 10,995
18,389 33413 379413 43713 54,598
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 2,509 97010 132,59 203446 242,388
Trade receivables R E 5308 4,390 38323 39,751 72,939 115,024
Deposits, prepayments and e BNFEREML
other receivables i AlE e 114,612 136,014 32014 27,081 40,044
Loan receivables EWER 135,846 130,873 — — —
Amounts due from associates JE i Bk 4\ B 008 6,469 3,662 — — —
Cash and cash equivalents Be kB e%(EIEE 1,763 53,514 32,839 41,039 94,939
265,589 45939 237,198 364,505 492395
Non-current assets classifiedas D EEBIFEIEHE Y
held for sale EREEE 245,111 241,830 14,730 13,900 26,660
510,700 701,226 251,928 378405 519,055
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
FFEHE

As at 31 March
R3A31H
(Restated) (Restated)
(s 7)) (& E7)
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TER AT TAT FHL FEL
LIABILITIES af
Current liabilities REAE
Trade payables ERES5E (62,872) (102,737) (79,576) (104,026) (101,396)
Accruals and other payables [E:TBR M EMER
B (54,242) (36,577) (73,408) (41,129) (53,193)
Amount due to an associate [N — R & A R F0A (2,445) — — — —
Borrowings &g — (5130) (72,240) (44,920) (25,040)
Obligation under finance lease & E#IE (97) (97) (105) (106) (106)
Current tax liabilities HEFIEARE (1,006) (1077) (973) (1,102) (1,001)
Corporate bond ARIER (400,323) — - - -
Convertible bonds A#RES (141,522) (17,550) (17,550) — —
(662,507) (163,169) (243,852) (191,283) (180,736)
Liability directly associated with ~ A ABHIEHE 2
non-current assets classified as ~ JEREIEEEE
assets held for sale R AE (66,477) (52,408) — — —
(728,984) (215,576) (243,852) (191,283) (180,736)
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
FFEHE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mEMBEMRRE
As at 31 March
M3A31AH
(Restated) (Restated)
(&E51) (&E5)
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T TET TET TAET TRT

Net current (liabilities)/ B (&&),
assets EEFE (218,284) 485,650 8,076 187,122 338,319

Total assets less current EEZLERTHER

liabilities (199,895) 519,063 387,489 230,835 392917
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Convertible bonds AR E A (28,360) (137,053) (134,199) — —
Obligation under MEMERE
finance lease (32) (129) (225) 9) (115)
Corporate bond NAES — (344,678) — — —
Deferred income RIEFFEIHAE
tax liabilities — — (36,739) (351) (5,990)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, (28,392) ~ (481860)  (171163) (360) (6105
Net (liabilities)/assets (BB EERE (228,287) 37,203 216,326 230475 386,812
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves BEARRFE
Share capital A& 7N 71,619 71,619 71,619 64,136 62,356
Reserves i (298,579) (33,649) 144,466 168,353 326,772
(226,960) 37,970 216,085 232,489 389,128
Non-controlling interests EI 2]l grida (1,327) (767) 241 (2,014) (2,316)
Total equity EREE (228,287) 37,203 216,326 230,475 386,812

-/ 176 Vestate Group Holdings Limited B&EEZERER QA



=

=3
VESTATE

JL
X

Tyﬁﬂ



	Cover
	Contents
	Corporate Information
	Financial and Operational Highlights
	Management Discussion and Analysis
	Corporate Governance Report
	Environmental, Social and Governance Report
	Biographical Details of Directors
	Report of Directors
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Income Statement
	Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
	Five-Year Financial Summary
	Back Cover



